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London Legacy Development Corporation

CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD
This annual report is published at a significant
juncture in our transformation of east London with
the election of a new Mayor for London in May
2016. I speak for all the team at LLDC in saying
I am looking forward to working with Sadiq Khan
over the course of the next four years. As a
Mayoral Development Corporation, we believe
that we can work with the new Mayor to support
his commitments and his vision for London.
It is also a significant moment in time as Rio 2016
approaches. Four years on from London 2012, we
believe the scale of what has been achieved on
and around Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park is
extraordinary. London 2012 was a great catalyst
for regeneration plans in and around Stratford
and we need to maintain the momentum.
This formerly highly deprived part of London
is morphing into a new metropolitan centre,
shifting London’s centre of gravity eastwards.
Since fully opening to the public in April 2014,
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park has become one of
London’s most popular destinations, for our local
communities and tourists alike. In 2015/16 a
packed programme of community and sporting
events kept the eyes of the world on east London.

Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park is more
than just a leisure destination — its aim
is to be a dynamic new heart of London.
Creating thousands of new homes
will play a vital part in this …
The finale of the great Newham Run started
summer athletics activity which culminated
in the Anniversary Games when over three days
we had 125,000 fans in the Stadium cheering
on Usain Bolt, Mo Farah and Jessica Ennis-Hill,
confirming the Stadium’s place as a home of
world-class sport, which will help further secure
the Park’s legacy and act as a catalyst for further
economic investment and growth in the area.
We then had our first chance to operate a multiuse stadium when we deployed our retractable
seating for the first time to host five Rugby World
Cup matches, broadcast to millions of viewers
around the world. National Paralympic Day, the
Race of Champions, Six Day London Cycling in the
Velodrome, Ufest London youth culture festival
and Sport Relief, which was broadcast live on the
BBC, helped to attract 5.1m visitors in 2015/16 —
a million more people than in 2014/15.
Attracting visitors to the Park is important —
it brings cash into the venues and brings people
who spend in the local economy. But Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park is more than just a leisure
destination — its aim is to be a dynamic new heart
of London. Creating thousands of new homes
will play a vital part in this and the last year saw
us taking major strides in building these new
communities — with the first residents moving into
Chobham Manor, our first housing development,
which will deliver 828 homes, and the submission
of a masterplan for East Wick and Sweetwater
which will deliver a further 1,500 homes. These
developments form part of a wider story both on
and off the Park, with 24,000 new homes planned
throughout the Legacy Corporation area.
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Job creation is fundamental to generating
opportunities for local people. Building continued
throughout the year on The International
Quarter and at Here East, both of which are now
positioned to support tens of thousands of jobs,
including major employers such as the Financial
Conduct Authority, BT Sport and Transport for
London, and smaller digital start-ups. The Park
and its surrounding area will eventually host
more than 40,000 jobs.
Our vision includes the new Cultural and
Education District at the south of the Park with
the Victoria and Albert Museum, UCL, UAL’s
London College of Fashion, Sadler’s Wells and
the Smithsonian Institution all with a presence.
Significant progress was made during the year,
with masterplans developed for both sites and
a major fundraising underway through the
charitable body, Foundation for FutureLondon.

I believe that the foundations are in place to
continue to deliver the most successful urban
renewal legacy programme of any modern
Olympics which — most importantly — will make
tangible differences to the lives of people in
east London.
I am grateful to David Goldstone and the
excellent team at LLDC for their hard work in
delivering a busy and challenging programme
of activity. I would like to extend my thanks
to our key partners in local government and the
wide range of private sector interests who are
investing in the regeneration of east London.
We have strong relationships which we shall
maintain and develop.
David Edmonds
Chairman
29 July 2016

I joined the Board of the Legacy Corporation
in 2010 and am proud to have been appointed
its Chairman in October 2015. I would also like
to thank my two predecessors in the year,
Boris Johnson and Neale Coleman, for their
leadership of the Corporation.
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retractable seating installation, the Stadium is now
a flexible, world-class multi-use venue which will be
a source of national pride for many years to come.
The arrival of Premiership football in summer 2016
will take the Stadium into billions of homes around
the globe and help to make it the centrepiece
of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. Alongside the
other sporting venues, the Park itself and future
developments such as the new Cultural and
Education District, the Stadium will help deliver
millions of additional visitors to the area every
year and will be part of a regeneration programme
that will create an additional economic benefit
to east London of well over £3bn.
As well as the world-class Stadium, plans to
enhance the visitor experience at the ArcelorMittal
Orbit progressed through 2015/16. Construction
began on the Slide which opened in June 2016
and is the longest tunnel slide in the world.

Transformation is at the heart of everything
we do and it has been a year of massive
transformation across Queen Elizabeth Olympic
Park, with work continuing at pace to ensure
the Park fulfils its legacy potential and that we
maximise the benefits for local communities.
The main transformation effort this year focused
on ensuring the Stadium was ready for its
temporary opening in summer and autumn 2015,
in time to host athletics and the Rugby World Cup.
Investing in transforming a temporary athletics
venue into a permanent world-class multi-use
arena required a significant amount of work
and innovative engineering solutions. From the
world’s largest cantilevered roof, to an innovative

06

Since opening in 2014, Queen Elizabeth Olympic
Park has become one of the UK’s most popular
destinations for Londoners and tourists alike. In
2015/16, 5.1m people visited the Park, one million
more than visited in its first year. The venues
which inspired such success in 2012 continue to
be popular with the public today — for everyday
leisure and major sporting events alike. Since
2014, the Copper Box Arena has attracted
762,000 visitors while the London Aquatics
Centre has attracted 1.7m visitors.
The Park has created diverse opportunities for
community engagement in sport. In this financial
year alone, 42,000 people have participated in our
Active People Active Park Programme and, over
the past three years, over 80,000 people have
taken part in Motivate East — a project inspired by
the 2012 Paralympic Games to deliver sport and
physical activity opportunities to disabled people.
This story of community engagement extends
across our arts and cultural programme. Over
the past three years, close to 150,000 people

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

engaged directly with arts and culture in and
around the Park. A particular highlight in 2014/15
was the Local Programme which gave local groups
the chance to create events across the Park and
explore how the Park can be a catalyst for
community connections.

Construction began in July for the new Transport
for London building at the International Quarter
and continues apace, with construction for the
Financial Conduct Authority building starting
in September. Overall, the International Quarter
will bring 25,000 jobs.
A fundamental plank of our strategy is to use our
powers as a regeneration agency to ensure that
business growth, development and construction
generate job opportunities for local people, and
that local people are supported to access these
jobs and develop the appropriate skills through

… our strategy is to ensure that business
growth, development and construction
generate job opportunities for local
people … by the end of this financial
year, 83% of the workforce at the Copper
Box Arena and London Aquatics Centre
were host borough residents.
apprenticeships and other forms of vocational
training. The strategy is paying dividends.
For example, by the end of this financial year,
83% of the workforce at the Copper Box Arena
and London Aquatics Centre were host
borough residents.

Development of the new Cultural and Education
District took a big step forward with the
approval of the stage 1 masterplan for Stratford
Waterfront and the progression to the design
stage for UCL East. The first in a series of public
consultation events for members of the public,
students and local businesses to give their
views also got under way.
2015/16 marked the year that the Park welcomed
its first new residents at Chobham Manor and
phase 2 works commenced. The zonal masterplan
for East Wick and Sweetwater was approved
and will see the development of a vibrant new
community on the west of the Park, linking to
existing communities in Hackney Wick and
Fish Island.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT

Transformation can be seen across the Park. Here
East is fast taking shape as a unique campus where
start-up entrepreneurial businesses will co-exist
and collaborate with global established businesses
and support genuine innovation. Here East is now
home to Loughborough University’s London team
and 391 students, while UCL will be taking studio
and offices, including for the Bartlett School of
Architecture, which will be used to undertake
ground-breaking research in areas including
architecture, infrastructure, transport, robotics,
healthcare and environmental measurement.

This past year alone, 61 apprentices have started
work on the Park. As we welcome new partners on
to the Park, we will continue to develop initiatives
with employers that will deliver opportunities
across a broader skills spectrum, so as to pave the
way for skilled, technical roles that will be created
through the next phase of the Park’s development
at the Cultural and Education District.

Around the wider area, our work continued
to deliver sustained improvements that will help
deliver new employment opportunities, homes
and infrastructure in key local centres such as
Hackney Wick, Bromley-by-Bow and Pudding Mill.
People are at the heart of everything we do and,
in 2015, the Legacy Corporation was awarded
Investors in People accreditation. I’m proud of
the team and what we have achieved.
As we welcome Sadiq Khan, I’m looking forward
to working with the new Mayor and his team on
the continuing transformation of Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park and the surrounding area. Together
we can continue to improve lives and create
opportunities for all Londoners.
David Goldstone
Chief Executive
29 July 2016
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MEMBERS OF THE LONDON LEGACY
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
The Members of the London Legacy
Development Corporation (LLDC) are
as follows:

David Edmonds  Chairman
David has extensive experience
within the housing, commercial
property and regeneration sectors
in both private and public sectors.
He is a former civil servant and
was in charge of the government’s
Inner Cities programme in England. He is a former
Chief Executive of the Housing Corporation,
and was the Managing Director of the NatWest
Group’s property portfolio arm for seven years.
He has been a board member of English
Partnerships, a Non-Executive Director of
Hammerson plc, and Chairman of Crisis, the
charity for the single homeless. He was also the
UK’s Telecoms Regulator for five years and the
Chairman of NHS Direct for four years. He chaired
the Board of the UK logistics company, Wincanton
plc, and for nine years was a Board Member
of William Hill plc. He is currently the Chairman
of PhonepayPlus, the UK premium rate services
regulator, and in addition chairs the Boards
of Kingston University and NHS Shared Business
Services Ltd. He is a Board member of Barchester
Healthcare Ltd and Director and Chair of the Audit
Committee of the Trinity Laban Conservatoire.
He is also an LLDC nominee to the Board of
E20 Stadium LLP, which he chairs. David was
appointed Chair of the Legacy Corporation
in October 2015. Prior to this, David had been
Deputy Chair of the Legacy Corporation since
June 2015, and a Board Member and Chairman
of the Investment Committee since 2010.
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Sonita Alleyne
Sonita currently holds a number
of non-executive posts, including
the British Board of Film
Classification and the BBC Trust.
Her previous board experience
included work with the London
Skills and Employment Board and Chair of the
Radio Sector Skills Council. Sonita was also
a Non-Executive Director of the Department for
Culture, Media and Sport at the time London’s
bid for the 2012 Games was being put together.
She was brought up in east London. Sonita won
the Carlton Multicultural Achievement Award
for TV and Radio in 2002 and is a Fellow of The
Royal Society of the Arts and the Radio Academy.
She was awarded an OBE for services to
broadcasting in November 2003. She founded
and launched the educational careers company,
the Yes Programme in 2013.

JOHN BIGGS
John Biggs was elected as the
Executive Mayor of Tower Hamlets
in June 2015. John was first
elected to Tower Hamlets Council
in 1988 and became Leader in
1994, before the Executive Mayor
post had been created. In 2000 he was elected
as the first Greater London Authority Assembly
Member for City and East London, chairing the
Assembly Budget and Performance Committee,
but stood down in 2016 to concentrate on Tower
Hamlets. In his role as Mayor of Tower Hamlets
John is working to improve the openness and
transparency of the Council, to increase the
availability of affordable housing for residents,
to improve access to employment and training
opportunities for local people, and to improve
the physical environment of the borough.
Elected following a period of some controversy
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and instability in Tower Hamlets, he is also
keen to strengthen the good reputation of the
Borough and the confidence of its communities.
A graduate of Chemistry and at postgraduate
level in Computer Science and Law, John has
worked as an analyst in the City and as Director
of a political pressure group. John is also an
Honorary Fellow of Queen Mary University
of London.

Bars Group plc, Senior Independent Director of
Supergroup plc, a Non-Executive Director of the
Hillingdon Hospital Trust and a Non-Executive
Director of Safestore Holdings plc. Prior to Arsenal,
he was CEO of Storehouse plc and Managing
Director of Carlton Communications plc.

David Gregson

Nicky Dunn

Philip Lewis  DEPUTY Chairman

Nicky has extensive experience in
the leisure industry. Her company
IMD Group provides strategic
advice and operational guidance
to venues, events and the arts.
Previously she held a number of
positions within the industry, most recently as
Chief Executive of Odyssey Arena in Belfast where
she oversaw the operational design, planning,
opening and management of the venue. Odyssey
Arena became internationally recognised as one
of the top ten busiest arenas worldwide. Her
experience includes theatres, arenas, stadia and
conference and exhibition venues. Nicky chairs
the Titanic Foundation which opened in Belfast in
April 2012 and is on the board of the Lyric Theatre.
She was a board member of the The Prince’s
Trust (NI) from 2007 to 2011. She is also a Board
Member of E20 Stadium LLP.

Philip is a chartered surveyor and
heads the property division of the
Kirsh Group, the international
trading business founded by Nate
Kirsh. He is also a Board Member
of the London Land Commission.
Previously he was Chief Executive of Lambert
Smith Hampton and Milner Estates plc and
Executive Chairman of Safestore plc and Hines
UK. He is a former Chairman of Sport England,
London and past President of the British Council
of Shopping Centres. He has held non-executive
roles in a number of companies and is involved
in various charitable organisations.

Nick Bitel

Keith Edelman
Keith Edelman was formerly the
Managing Director of Arsenal
Holdings plc and was instrumental
in the development of the Emirates
Stadium and the attendant
regeneration of the surrounding
area including the development of Highbury
Square. He is currently Chairman of Revolution

Lord Mawson

MEMBERS OF THE LONDON LEGACY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Nick Bitel is Chief Executive
of the London Marathon and one
of the country’s leading events
experts. A consultant at law firm
Kerman & Co LLP, he is Chairman
of Sport England and a board
member of UK Sport.

David is Chairman of the
Lawn Tennis Association, and of
Karma Group, the UK’s largest
independent marketing services
agency. He is also a member
of the advisory boards of The
Sutton Trust and of the Education Endowment
Foundation. David is a Board Member of E20
Stadium LLP and he was previously Chairman of
the Mayor of London’s Legacy Board of Advisors.

Lord Mawson is one of the UK’s
leading social entrepreneurs. Over
30 years he has created a family of
projects, including the renowned
Bromley-by-Bow Centre in east
London. Today he is a leader,
motivator and adviser to major projects including
the St Paul’s Way Transformation Project in the
London Borough of Tower Hamlets and Water
City, a visionary plan to revitalise east London. He
is the Director of Water City Community Interest
Company. In addition, he is now Chairman of
Well North, a public health initiative supported
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worked in the trade union movement for 27
years, representing low paid workers in health,
local government and the printing industry.
Cllr Robbins was born and brought up in Bethnal
Green and has spent his entire life living in east
London. He lives with his family in Leyton,
where he has lived for 41 years.

Jules Pipe

Sir Robin Wales

Jules Pipe was re-elected as
Mayor of Hackney for a fourth
term in May 2014, having become
the borough’s first directly
elected Mayor in October 2002.
Since Jules Pipe became Mayor,
Hackney has seen the establishment of six new
secondary schools, one of the country’s largest
housing programmes, one of the fastest falls
in crime in London and the successful campaign
to put Hackney on the tube map. Council tax
has been frozen for the past ten years, with no
cuts to services. Jules was also at the forefront
of Hackney’s ambitious plans and aspirations
for the borough’s 2012 legacy. Jules has been
Chair of London Councils, the organisation that
represents the 32 boroughs and the Corporation
of London, since 2010. On 30 June 2016, the new
Mayor of London Sadiq Khan appointed Jules
Pipe as Deputy Mayor for planning, regeneration
and skills. He is due to resign as Mayor of Hackney
in July 2016 to take up this role at City Hall.

Sir Robin Wales is the directly
elected Mayor of the London
Borough of Newham. He was
a Councillor from 1982 to 1986
and then from 1992 to 2002 and
leader from 1996 to 2002. He
was elected Mayor in 2002 and was re-elected for
a fourth term in 2014. His goals include raising
employment and aspiration in the borough. Sir
Robin was involved with a number of organisations
that were concerned with staging the London
2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games and ensuring
the local legacy. He is Chair of Local London,
the east London sub-regional partnership.

Chris Robbins
Chris Robbins has been serving
Waltham Forest since 2002,
when he was elected as a
Councillor for Grove Green
in Leyton. He is now in his third
term as Leader of the Council,
having first been elected as Leader in 2009,
and prior to that acted as Cabinet Member for
Children and Young People. Previously, Chris

Baroness Grey-Thompson
Baroness Grey-Thompson of
Eaglescliffe has competed in five
Paralympic Games, winning 11
gold, four silver and one bronze
medal. She has held 30 world
records. She is a member of the
Board of Transport for London and a Director of
the London Marathon as well as holding other
prominent positions in sports bodies. In
December 2012 she became a Member of the
London Legacy Development Corporation board.
She has been a member of the National Disability
Council and Senior Deputy Chair of the UK Lottery
Award Panel. She was made a Dame of the British
Empire in 2005 and was appointed to the House
of Lords as a cross-bench peer in March 2010.

Changes to Board membership: During 2015/16 there were several changes to the Board membership. On 23 April 2015,
Lutfur Rahman ceased to be the Mayor of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets and a member of the Legacy Corporation Board.
John Biggs, the newly elected Mayor of Tower Hamlets was appointed to the Board on 9 July 2015. On 5 May 2015, the former
Mayor of London, Boris Johnson, resigned as Chairman and a member of the Legacy Corporation Board with immediate effect.
Neale Coleman, in his capacity as the then Deputy Chairman fulfilled the role of Chairman until he was formally appointed
following a confirmatory hearing on 2 June 2015. Neale Coleman resigned as Chairman on 17 September 2015 and David
Edmonds, the then Deputy Chairman, was appointed Chairman following a confirmatory hearing on 14 October 2015; Philip
Lewis was appointed Deputy Chair in October 2015. During 2015/16 two members of the Board resigned: David Ross whose
appointment came to an end at the end of November 2015; and Jayne McGivern whose service came to an end at the end
of January 2016. The biographies of these members are available in the previous annual report.

MEMBERS OF THE LONDON LEGACY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

by Public Health England, which is building
ten innovative pathfinder projects in the north
of England. He has recently been appointed
a member of the new Estates Regeneration
Advisory Panel by Lord Heseltine, a government
programme designed to improve 100 housing
estates across England.
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Attendance at LLDC BOARD and Committee meetings 2015–2016

Members

Board meetings
attended

Audit Committee
meetings attended

Investment Committee
meetings attended

Total number of
meetings in the period

6

5

7

Boris Johnson

0/0

–

–

Sonita Alleyne

4

–

–

John Biggs

3/5

–

–

Nicholas Bitel

6

5

–

Neale Coleman

2/2

–

3/3

Nicky Dunn

5

2/3

6

Keith Edelman

5

5

5

David Edmonds

6

2/2

6

David Gregson

5

–

7

Baroness Grey-Thompson

5

3

–

Philip Lewis

4

–

–

Lord Mawson

5

–

–

Jayne McGivern

3/5

–

3/6

Jules Pipe

3

–

–

Chris Robbins

0

–

–

David Ross

0/4

–

–

Sir Robin Wales

3

–

–

Lynda Addison

–

–

–

Cllr Rachel Blake

–

–

–

Cllr Ken Clark

–

–

–

Cllr Ian Corbett

–

–

–

Piers Gough

–

–

–

Cllr Lester Hudson

–

–

–

Cllr Forhad Hussain

–

–

–

Cllr Rabina Khan

–

–

–

Joanne Moon

–

–

–

Cllr Geoff Taylor

–

–

–

Dru Vesty

–

–

–

Cllr Terry Wheeler

–

–

–

Notes:
A dash (–) indicates that an individual is not a member of a Board or Committee
1.	Resigned during the course of the financial year: Boris Johnson (May 2016), Neale Coleman (September 2016), Jayne McGivern (January 2016),
David Ross (November 2015)
2. Some Members indicated that they were unable to attend specific Board or Committee meetings when the meeting calendar was issued
3. Joined Board during the course of the financial year: John Biggs (July 2016)
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Regeneration and
Communities Committee
meetings attended

Chairman’s Committee
meetings attended

Notes

11

3

3

–

–

–

See note 1

–

3

–

See note 2

–

–

–

See note 3

9

–

–

–

1/1

1/1

See note 1

–

–

2

See note 4

–

–

3

See note 2

–

–

3

See note 4

–

2

0/2

See note 4

–

–

–

11

–

2

See notes below

6

3

2

See notes below

–

–

–

See notes 1 and 2

–

–

–

See note 2

–

–

–

See note 5

–

0/2

–

See note 1

–

–

–

See note 2

9

–

–

7

–

–

See notes 6 and 7

7

–

–

See note 6

3/3

–

–

See note 6

9

–

–

See notes below

1/3

–

–

See note 6 and 7

8

–

–

See note 6

0/3

–

–

See note 6

0/7

–

–

See note 6

7

–

–

See notes below

10

–

–

See notes below

10

–

–

See notes below
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Planning Decisions
Committee meetings
attended

4.	Joined or left a Committee during financial year: Nicky Dunn (joined the Audit Committee in October 2015), David Edmonds (left the Audit Committee in October
2015), David Gregson (joined the Chairman’s Committee in October 2015)
5. Cllr Claire Coghill attended the May and November 2015 meetings on behalf of Cllr Robbins
6.	Joined or left the Planning Decisions Committee during the financial year: Cllr Rachel Blake, Cllr Amina Ali, Cllr Ken Clark, Cllr Forhad Hussain (joined July 2015);
Cllr Ian Corbett, Cllr Lester Hudson, Cllr Rabina Khan (left July 2015), Joanne Moon (left November 2015)
7. Cllr Amina Ali attended July 2015 meeting as substitute to Cllr Blake, Cllr Ken Clark attended the June 2015 meeting as substitute to Cllr Lester Hudson
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Opening Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park to the public in April 2014 was a
crucial staging post in the move from Games-time to a long-term legacy.
There are now clearly defined and costed plans in place for all eight
permanent venues, and the Park has been reopened as an amenity for
Londoners, an international visitor attraction and a platform and catalyst
for the future success of east London.

London Legacy Development Corporation

LAND OWNERSHIP
The majority of the Queen Elizabeth Olympic
Park land is owned by the Legacy Corporation
with additional land leased from third parties,
predominately the London Borough of Hackney
and the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority.
London Aquatics Centre
and Copper Box Arena
The London Aquatics Centre contains a 50m
competition pool, 25m competition diving pool
and a 50m warm-up pool — as well as a 50-station
gym, dry diving facilities, a café, crèche, meeting
rooms and seminar and sport science space.
It reopened at the start of March 2014 as a venue
accessible to the public and capable of hosting
elite sports. With 2,500 permanent spectator
seats, the venue has hosted a range of local and
national competitions, including the Invictus
Games, British Swimming Championships, FINA
World Diving Championships and in 2016, the LEN
European Aquatics Championships. The venue
has had over 1.8m visitors since it opened in
April 2014, with 3,000 school children attending
weekly lessons and 3,500 young people signed
up to the Better Swim School programme.
The Copper Box Arena hosted handball, fencing
and goalball during the London 2012 Olympic and
Paralympic Games, and reopened as a multi-use
arena in July 2013. With retractable seating for
up to 7,500 spectators, the Arena now hosts a
wide range of sport including basketball, netball,
handball, badminton, fencing and boxing. The
venue also contains a café and 80-station gym
with events spanning major sporting tournaments,
television broadcasts and corporate events.
Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) is the operator
of the London Aquatics Centre and the Copper
Box Arena. Under the ten-year arrangement,
GLL get an annual fee and surpluses and deficits
are shared between the Legacy Corporation
and GLL.

Stadium
The Stadium is surrounded by water on three
sides and the ‘island’ site, excluding bridges,
is leased to E20 Stadium LLP, a joint venture
between the Legacy Corporation and Newham
Legacy Investments Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary of London Borough of Newham),
until 2115. The venue is being transformed into
a multi-use world-class stadium. Work on the
transformation paused in 2015/16 to host a
number of events including the Morrisons Great
Newham Run, the Sainsbury’s Anniversary Games,
five matches of the Rugby World Cup, a Rugby
League international match and the Race
of Champions. Work commenced again in
November 2015 and the Stadium will fully reopen
in 2016 as the home of West Ham United Football
Club and the national competition centre for
athletics in the UK. The partnership entered
into a 25-year service concession arrangement
with London Stadium 185 Limited (a subsidiary
of Vinci Stadium) on 30 January 2015. The
agreement relates to the operation of the
Stadium and South Park within Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park and grants the operator sole and
exclusive rights to promote, sell and manage
events in the Stadium and South Park.
Here East
The Here East buildings are leased to Innovation
City (London) Limited (iCITY) for a period of 200
years to May 2214 with the Legacy Corporation
receiving a proportion of net rents. iCITY is a joint
venture between Delancey and Inifity SDC, with
a vision to provide an innovative new commercial
space focused around established and start-up
technology companies. Here East consists of
1.2 million square feet of space, and will feature
three main buildings — a 300,000 square feet
innovation centre, a 1,045-seat auditorium and an
850,000 square feet building housing educational
space, broadcast studios, office space and a
state-of-the-art data centre. iCITY tenants include:
•	British Telecommunications — broadcasting
BT Sport;
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•	IDSC Developments (No6) Ltd
(trading as Infinity) — a data centre;
• Studio Wayne McGregor; and
• Loughborough University
University College London will be taking space,
including for the Bartlett School of Architecture,
later in 2016.

Engie (formerly known as Cofely) manage
the ArcelorMittal Orbit on behalf of the Legacy
Corporation as part of their wider contract for
delivering estates and facilities management
services on the Park and receive a management
fee. The Legacy Corporation meets all cost
associated with the facility and receives all income.
The Podium building close to the base of the
ArcelorMittal Orbit contains the Podium Bar &
Kitchen and hospitality suite. Engie pay the Legacy
Corporation a rent and service charges for the
premises, with a potential turnover share. The
operator contract with Engie runs to 2023.
Timber Lodge
The Timber Lodge is located in the northern part
of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. It is a single
storey timber framed building providing a café
and canteen, toilet facilities and two function
rooms, which are available for hire. The land is
leased by the Legacy Corporation from Lea Valley
Regional Park Authority and the building is sublet
to the Camden Society who have run the Timber
Lodge since its opening in July 2013 and the
contract runs until July 2018.

3 Mills Studio
3 Mills Studio is a large film and TV studio
offering production offices, construction and
prop stores, make up, costume and green rooms
and a mix of production related tenants such
as camera hire and casting. The site is on land
owned by the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority
with a long lease to the Legacy Corporation
until August 2103. The long-term future use
of 3 Mills Studio is subject to review.
Knight Frank (formerly Deloitte Real Estate)
has managed 3 Mills Studios for the Legacy
Corporation since 2013, and the contract has
been extended to March 2017.

LAND OWNERSHIP

ArcelorMittal Orbit
The ArcelorMittal Orbit has been open to the
public since 5 April 2014. At 114.5m high the
ArcelorMittal Orbit is the UK’s tallest sculpture
incorporating two observation platforms at 76m
and 80m which provide stunning views across
London and Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. Since
its opening more than 225,000 people have
visited the ArcelorMittal Orbit. A new abseiling
promotion has proven popular and initiatives
are underway to enhance the visitor experience
with new internal and external facilities, including
the longest tunnel slide in the world (which
opened in June 2016).

Off-Park properties
A number of off-Park properties were transferred
over from the former London Development
Agency and former London Thames Gateway
Development Corporation and are predominantly
located in the areas neighbouring the Park. The
majority are in Hackney Wick and to the south of
Stratford High Street in Bromley-by-Bow and are
currently managed by Hartnell Taylor Cook LLP on
behalf of the Legacy Corporation and are leased
out on a variety of short-term leases.

Development platforms
The Legacy Corporation owns a number
of development platforms, listed below:
Chobham Manor
The Legacy Corporation has a development
agreement in place with Chobham Manor LLP,
which is a joint venture between London &
Quadrant and Taylor Wimpey Construction. The
agreement is for a new residential neighbourhood
at Chobham Manor, just south of Lee Valley
VeloPark. Planning permission has been granted
for the first two phases of the development and
the third is expected to be submitted later this
year. The development will comprise 828 new
homes of which 75% will be family homes with
three or more bedrooms and 28% affordable
homes (affordable rent, social rent or intermediate
housing). Works are progressing on site and due
to complete by 2020.
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East Wick and Sweetwater
The East Wick and Sweetwater development
platform will deliver 1,500 new homes, including
private rented and affordable homes. The
homes will be accompanied by a mix of social
infrastructure including nurseries, primary schools
and a library. The Legacy Corporation entered into
a development agreement with its development
partner, a joint venture between Places for
People Homes and Balfour Beatty Investments,
in February 2015. The zonal master plan for East
Wick and Sweetwater was approved in December
2015 and the development partner expects to
start the first phase of works in East Wick later
in the year.

University College London (UCL) East
Also part of the Cultural and Education District
project, this development platform will, in its
first phase, comprise 50,000m2 of new university
facilities, including academic facilities, and
student residential accommodation. The Legacy
Corporation signed an Agreement for Lease
with UCL in April 2015. Under the terms of
this agreement, upon satisfaction of a number
of conditions, a 299-year lease of land will be
granted by the Legacy Corporation to UCL.

LAND OWNERSHIP

Pudding Mill Lane
The Pudding Mill Lane development platform
currently has outline planning consent as part of
the Legacy Communities Scheme for up to 1,290
homes, as part of a mixed use development.
The outline scheme also includes a new local
centre close to the DLR station. This is one of the
later planned phases of development and the
land is being considered for interim uses.

Stratford Waterfront
Located opposite the London Aquatics Centre
in the south of the Park, this development
platform forms part of the Cultural and Education
District project and will be home to Victoria and
Albert Museum incorporating the Smithsonian,
University of the Arts London’s College of Fashion
and Sadler’s Wells, as well as residential and retail
properties. Masterplanning for the development
platform is complete, with detailed RIBA Stage 3
design work now being undertaken. Legal
agreements with partners, with the exception
of the Smithsonian, are advanced.

Rick Roberts Way
Rick Roberts Way is jointly owned by the Legacy
Corporation and the London Borough of Newham.
It is planned as the final phase of the Legacy
Communities Scheme and has outline consent for
up to 400 homes and a secondary school. It is now
proposed that the secondary school is delivered
earlier on the Stadium Island site and the Legacy
Corporation and London Borough of Newham
are working together on the future of the site;
interim uses are currently being considered.
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NARRATIVE REPORT
The Legacy Corporation
London Legacy Development Corporation
(Legacy Corporation) is a Mayoral Development
Corporation, established on 1 April 2012, under
the provisions of the Localism Act 2011, with the
vision of creating a dynamic new metropolitan
centre for London. Its mission is:

4.	INSPIRE

“To use the opportunity of the London 2012
Games and the creation of Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park to change the lives of people in
east London and drive growth and investment
in London and the UK, by developing an
inspiring and innovative place where people
want to live, work and visit.”

Deliver excellent value for money, and champion
new models and standards which advance the
wider cause of regeneration, in line with LLDC’s
core values: Ambition, Responsibility,
Collaboration and Excellence.

The Legacy Corporation will seek to deliver
this mission through pursuing the following
objectives:

1. LIVE
Establish successful and integrated
neighbourhoods, where people want to live,
work and play

2.	WORK
Retain, attract and grow a diverse range of high
quality businesses and employers, and maximise
employment opportunities for local people

3.	VISIT
Create a diverse, unique, successful and financially
sustainable visitor destination

5.	DELIVER

In July 2015, the Legacy Corporation approved a
five year strategy which sets out the areas of focus
for the organisation for the five years from 2015
to 2020 to support its mission and delivery of
its objectives.
The Local Government Act 2003 section
21 empowers the Secretary of State to make
provision about the accounting practices to be
followed by a local authority and likewise issue
guidance. Section 23 defines ‘local authority’
to include functional bodies of the GLA and
therefore the Legacy Corporation comes within
the definition.

NARRATIVE REPORT

The Mayor of London appoints the Members to
the Legacy Corporation’s Board and allocates its
budget. In addition, the Legacy Corporation is
required to prepare its Statement of Accounts in
accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom (‘the Code’).

Establish a 21st century district promoting
cross-sector innovation, education, culture, sport,
aspiration and participation in east London

Regulation 31 of the Local Authorities (Capital
Finance and Accounts (England)) Regulations 2000
directs that the appropriate accounting practices
for local authorities are those in the CIPFA ‘Code
of Practice for Local Authorities’ (the Code). These
Accounts have been produced in accordance
with this guidance and regulation. The Legacy
Corporation replaced the Olympic Park Legacy
Company, a company limited by guarantee,
established in 2009 to create a lasting legacy from
the London 2012 Games. As part of the statutory
instrument creating the Legacy Corporation,
it took over the property, rights and liabilities
of the Olympic Park Legacy Company.
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financial review
Overview
Good progress has been made to support
delivery of the Cultural and Education District1
vision, bringing world class arts and educational
institutions to the Park. Masterplanning and
design has progressed, as have legal agreements
with the Victoria and Albert Museum (V&A),
Sadler’s Wells Theatre, University of the Arts
London (UAL) and University of College London
(UCL). Overall, the programme is on target to
submit a planning application and a final business
case to government in 2016/17. An independent
charity, the Foundation for FutureLondon, has
been established with the support of the Legacy
Corporation to raise funds for the project, and to
help realise the potential of locating these world
class institutions on the Park to successfully raise
expectation and aspiration for east London.
Philanthropic funding is just one element of the
funding of this complex project, which is also
supported by the GLA, government, Cultural and
Education District partners and the private sector.
A series of summer events were held in the
Olympic Stadium including five Rugby World
Cup matches, a rugby league international match
and the Race of Champions motor sport event.
The final phase of the Stadium transformation
will complete in 2016 and the Stadium will open
permanently in the summer to host an AC/DC
concert, athletics and from the start of the
Premier League season, West Ham United
Football Club. On our residential developments,
the first residents moved into homes at Chobham
Manor and the zonal masterplan for East Wick
and Sweetwater received planning approval
in December 2015. Work progressed on the new
slide at the ArcelorMittal Orbit, which opened
in June 2016, and charging of the Community
Infrastructure Levy commenced during the year.
LLDC’s planned net capital funding requirement
for the year from the Greater London Authority
was £133m, against which we spent £115m,
an underspend of £18m reflecting mainly timing
differences on capital projects. This was partially
offset by funding for accelerated Stadium
1
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transformation works on the roof and seating,
brought forward from 2016/17.
Funding for the Legacy Corporation’s programme
for the development of the Park is on the basis
that capital investment will be self-financing
over the long term, repaid from capital receipts
generated from the exploitation of the Legacy
Corporation ownership of development platforms
on and around the Park. In 2015/16 consistent
with this, the Legacy Corporation drew down
£100.9m of loan funding from the GLA reflecting
actual cash drawn down to fund capital
expenditure in the period and movements in
accruals, bringing the total outstanding loan
balance due to the GLA to £271.6m. Expected
future capital receipts generate a long-term
surplus for the GLA helping it to repay its
obligations to the National Lottery.
The Legacy Corporation’s portfolio has been
revalued at 31 March 2016 in line with accounting
policies. The assets are being developed by the
Legacy Corporation for their income potential and
are classified as investment property. A number
of valuation methodologies have been applied
but the investment method, where rental income
is capitalised at appropriate yields, and the profits
method, where earnings are multiplied by an
appropriate factor, predominate. The Legacy
Corporation’s investment property portfolio is
now valued at £372.8m, a decrease in fair value
of £53.1m from the prior year, reflecting for the
first time the Cultural and Education District
development plans (and the associated costs) in
the valuation of Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park
development zones. The movements in long-term
assets are detailed more fully in the note 13 to
the accounts.
A deferred tax liability of £58.5m is recognised
within the Legacy Corporation’s accounts in
relation to its investment properties (2014/15:
£53.4m). The liability will crystallise as and when
the Legacy Corporation disposes of its property
portfolio and the increase in the value of its
portfolio is realised. The CIPFA Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting is silent on how
to treat such deferred tax and the Legacy
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Corporation is required to revert to International
Accounting Standards, which under IAS 12
(Income Taxes) charges the full liability to the
General Fund. The resulting negative General
Fund balance of £41.9m as at 31 March 2016
does not therefore reflect the true underlying
performance of the Legacy Corporation. The
balance of the General Fund before recognition
of deferred tax charges is £13.5m, which is
considered appropriate for the Legacy
Corporation’s current and future financial
challenges, excluding deferred tax. The Legacy
Corporation, with support from the GLA, has
progressed discussions with representatives
from government to seek a change to the Local
Government Capital Finance Regulations so that
capital receipts can be used to pay corporation
tax arising on the capital gain upon the disposal
of the asset or so that corporation tax on capital
gains is added to the list of revenue items
that can be funded from capital under statute.
These discussions have not concluded and the
treatment of deferred tax in the 2015/16
accounts is unchanged from the prior year.

The local Stratford economy is strong, reflecting
the significant public and private investment in the
area over the last decade, and is situated well to
attract the significant growth in jobs projected in
the wider London area over the period to 2031.
Over the next couple of years on the Park we
are expecting to see further homes coming to
market on Chobham Manor and East Wick and
Sweetwater and further retail office and
workshop accommodation at Here East. The
International Quarter will welcome Transport for
London (TfL) and the Financial Conduct Authority
(FCA). Development plans for Hackney Wick
Neighbourhood Centre are being brought
forward alongside plans to refurbish the Hackney
Wick Station. Further into the future, the Legacy
Corporation will welcome world class cultural
and educational bodies to the Park in the
Cultural and Education District.
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The Legacy Corporation is a member of a joint
venture, E20 Stadium LLP, with Newham Legacy
Investments Ltd, a subsidiary of the London
Borough of Newham. This partnership is
designed to give the local area ownership of a
key asset within the Park — the Stadium — under
the terms of a 102-year lease. The partnership
is responsible for the transformation that will
deliver a multi-use venue along with further
planned improvements to the Stadium beyond
the transformation works that will deliver broad
benefits across the range of its operations. Its
business plan, approved by the partnership Board
in March 2016, demonstrates how it will operate
long term without requiring ongoing public
subsidy. The Stadium is operated by London
Stadium 185, a subsidiary of VINCI Stadium.
The Legacy Corporation invested £90.1m in E20
Stadium LLP in the year under review — see note
14 for more information regarding the Legacy
Corporation’s investment in the joint venture.

capital work is completed in the summer of
2016, and accordingly the value of the capital
works on the Stadium have been impaired in
the partnership accounts. In 2015/16 the total
comprehensive loss of the partnership was
£105.1m of which £100.7m relates to the
impairment of the Stadium capital works.
In accordance with the Members Agreement
between the Legacy Corporation and Newham
Legacy Investment Limited, any impairment loss
should be offset against the Legacy Corporation’s
capital contribution in the first place. While the
Stadium has hosted a number of world class
events over the last year, works to transform
and further enhance the Stadium complete
this Summer and the Stadium becomes fully
operational in 2016/17. E20 Stadium LLP’s
approved business plan anticipates that the
level of income that the former Olympic Stadium
can generate will be in excess of operating
expenditure — further detail can be found in note
14. Given the business is still in start-up mode,
the Legacy Corporation currently holds its interest
in the partnership at nil value, and as a result the
contribution made by the Legacy Corporation
during the year has been fully impaired.

The fair value of the Stadium is expected to
be £22.5m2 once the transformation and other
2

	The Stadium is subject to a lease to E20 Stadium LLP until 2115. The Legacy Corporation’s reversionary interest in the freehold of the Stadium and Stadium Island site
is valued at £1.5m (as at 31 March 2016) — see Note 13 for further details.

25

London Legacy Development Corporation

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
The following table reports the same underlying information as the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, but in the form of the Legacy Corporation’s management accounts.
£’000

Total net revenue expenditure
Trading net (surplus)/deficit
Total

2015/16

2015/16

2015/16

Actual

Budget

Variance

24,818

30,140

(5,322)

1,962

1,180

782

26,780

31,320

(4,540)

Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement not reported to management in the management accounts

(25,033)

Amounts included in the management accounts not included
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(12,128)

Net costs of services (as in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement)

(10,381)

The Legacy Corporation’s revenue performance has been robust in 2015/16, generating income
of £10.4m (£4.1m higher than budgeted) whilst maintaining expenditure broadly in line with budget
(£37.2m against a budget of £37.6m). The Legacy Corporation seeks to manage its cost base down
and has been efficient and effective in the use of its revenue resources.
The increase in income is driven from trading activities, in particular 3 Mills Studios, where income
was £2.6m higher than planned due to increased tenancies at the studios, and higher than budgeted
planning-related income (planning fees, CIL administration fees and Quality Review Panel charges).
Balance sheet
The balance sheet as at 31 March 2016 is summarised below.
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Long-term assets

387,178

428,202

Cash and cash equivalents

22,094

21,025

(11,430)

499

(8,805)

(9,746)

(337,438)

(230,128)

51,599

209,852

41,937

37,516

Unusable reserves

(93,536)

(247,368)

Total reserves

(51,599)

(209,852)

Net current assets/(liabilities)
Net pension liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Net assets

Represented by
Usable reserves
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Long-term assets
The decrease in long-term assets relates to the
net decrease in the fair value of investment
property reflecting the inclusion of the Cultural
and Education District development within this
year’s valuation. Whilst significant income will
be generated by the development, the sale of
land to development partners will ultimately
be disposed of at below market value (following
Mayoral approval in 2015/16); moreover the
significant associated cost of the development
to the Legacy Corporation (necessary to generate
that income) is also reflected in the valuation.
The Legacy Corporation’s portfolio was valued
as at 31 March 2016 by GL Hearn Limited —
external, independent property valuers, who have
appropriate recognised professional qualifications.
The assets are being held by the Legacy
Corporation for their income generating potential
or for capital appreciation and have therefore been
classified as investment property in accordance
with IAS 40. Overall the value of investment assets
has decreased from £425.9m at the end of last
year to £372.8m as at 31 March 2016.

Pooling resources allows the GLA’s Group
Treasury team to make larger individual
transactions and exploit the greater stability
of pooled cash flows to obtain better returns.
A risk sharing agreement ensures risk and reward
relating to each instrument within the jointly
controlled portfolio are shared in direct
proportion to each participant’s investment.

The Legacy Corporation does not hold significant
cash balances. Working capital is requested from
the GLA on a weekly basis based on forecast
requirements. Cash inflows are generated from
other sources including trading operations,
planning fees and events held on the Park.
Consequently, the Legacy Corporation has low
sensitivity to variations in cash flow during the
year. In 2015/16, the Legacy Corporation also
received £3.1m in capital receipts from the
development land, which are forecast to grow
significantly in the future. Future plans may
be affected by a number of factors, including
inflationary increases that affect the Legacy
Corporation’s capital and revenue costs,
fluctuations in the House Price Index, planning
assumptions and the level of affordable housing
that are material to receipts from the disposal of
development land, and potential changes to the
Legacy Corporation’s strategy, such as accelerating
planned housing developments. The Legacy
Corporation is following closely the impact of
the EU referendum outcome on the property
and construction sector in particular.

ACCOUNTS

Cash and short-term investments
The Legacy Corporation’s short-term cash
balances are invested through the GLA Group
Investment Syndicate (GIS). The GIS is an
operation jointly controlled by the participants
for the investment of pooled monies belonging
to those participants and operated by the GLA
as Investment Manager under the supervision
of the Syndics (the participants’ respective Chief
Financial Officers). The other participants are
the GLA, London Fire and Emergency Planning
Authority, the London Pensions Fund Authority
and The Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime,
and such bodies as sign the Syndicate Agreement
agreeing to the terms of the syndicate.

Additionally, the Executive Director of Finance
and Corporate Services may from time to time
instruct the Group Treasury team to invest sums
independently of the GIS, for instance if the
GLA identifies balances which are available for
longer-term investment. The balance held with
the GIS at 31 March 2016 is £15.7m (31 March
2015: £15.6m).

Pension scheme
The Legacy Corporation is a member of the
Local Government Pension Scheme, administered
by the London Pensions Fund Authority. The net
liability (the amount by which pension liabilities
exceed assets) affects the Legacy Corporation’s
net worth as recorded in the balance sheet.
However, statutory arrangements for funding
the deficit mean that the Legacy Corporation’s
financial position in relation to its pension
obligations remains healthy. The net pension
liability as at 31 March 2016 has decreased from
£9.7m to £8.8m. This reflects a decrease in the
number of active employees from 111 to 104
in 2015/16, and more significantly, changes in
the financial assumptions used by the actuaries.
A total of £0.4m (net) has been credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
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Statement of which £2.7m is related to the
remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability,
which is offset by service costs (£1.8m), net
interest charged on the deferred liability (£0.4m)
and the movement on the deferred tax pension
asset (£0.5m). The deficit on the pension scheme
will be made good by increased contributions
over the employees’ remaining working life,
as assessed by the Scheme actuary.

and Sweetwater (EWS) Developers, the Legacy
Corporation has provided a warranty such that
until the EWS Development Agreement (DA)
goes unconditional, it will provide an indemnity
to the EWS Developer for the cost of the road
and fees up to a maximum sum of £1.0m. This
is disclosed in note 27 to the accounts.

Other assets and liabilities
The Legacy Corporation has a rolling loan facility
with the Greater London Authority to finance the
Legacy Corporation’s capital expenditure. As at
31 March 2016, the Legacy Corporation had drawn
down funding to the value of £271.6m. This loan
will be repaid from capital receipts generated
from the exploitation of the Legacy Corporation
ownership of development platforms on and
around the Park.

Reserves
At the end of the financial year, the Legacy
Corporation had negative usable reserves
of £41.9m in the General Fund.

£16.7m of liabilities on the Legacy Corporation’s
balance sheet relate to its obligation under
the Olympic Park Transport Environment
Management Strategy (OPTEMS) and Section 106
schemes. The Legacy Corporation has ring-fenced
the funds required to meet its obligation.
Provisions and contingent liabilities
In 2014/15 the Legacy Corporation disclosed
a contingent liability regarding its historic VAT
recovery rate (1 April 2012 – 31 March 2015).
Substantial progress has been made on the issue
with HMRC and agreement has been reached on
the approach. The Legacy Corporation has now
disclosed a contingent asset in relation to this
matter. Revised claims for the period covered
will need to be processed and agreed by HMRC
in order for sums due to be finalised.
A contingent liability is recognised in regard to
the relocation of a road near the Here East building
on the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. Whilst the
related construction work will be done by Here
East’s contractor Laings, under the direction
of Here East, and at the cost of the East Wick
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No provisions are recognised as at 31 March 2016.

Due to a significant increase in the fair value of
the Legacy Corporation’s investment properties,
the Legacy Corporation recognised a net deferred
tax charge of £50.4m in 2014/15 — this liability
increased by net £5.1m in 2015/16. The liability
will crystallise in future years as and when the
Legacy Corporation recovers the carrying amount
of the assets to which it relates through the
disposal of its investment property portfolio.
The Code does not provide guidance on how
to treat such a liability within the Statement
of Accounts, therefore the Legacy Corporation
is required to revert to International Accounting
Standards (IAS) and account for the liability
according to IAS 12 (Income Taxes). Doing so
results in the full liability being charged to the
General Fund in the year that it arises, rather than
at the time when the asset’s carrying amount is
realised and the related liability crystallises.
The resulting negative General Fund balance
as at 31 March 2016 does not therefore reflect
the true underlying performance of the Legacy
Corporation. The following table shows the
General Fund balance with the impact of the
deferred tax disclosed separately. The balance
before recognition of deferred tax is £13.5m
(see table below), which is considered appropriate
for the Legacy Corporation’s current and future
financial challenges, excluding deferred tax.
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General Fund
£’000

Balance as at 1 April (excluding deferred tax)
Movements (excluding deferred tax)
Balance at 31 March before recognition of deferred tax
Deferred tax — balance brought forward
Deferred tax — movement in year
Balance at 31 March

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(12,869)

(4,945)

(630)

(7,924)

(13,499)

(12,869)

50,385

–

5,051

50,385

41,937

37,516

Forecasted net cash position
In line with the Legacy Corporation’s approved budget as updated for the 2015/16 outturn, the net cash
position of the Legacy Corporation’s activities in the coming three years is expected to be as follows:
Capital
£’000

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

122.5

126.2

356.5

605.2

Capital receipts

35.4

51.6

63.5

150.5

Other grants/funding

26.2

129.3

119.5

275.0

Borrowing from GLA
drawdown/(repayment)

60.9

(54.6)

173.5

179.8

122.5

126.3

356.5

605.3

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

Total

£m

£m

£m

£m

Income

(4.8)

(6.6)

(7.4)

(18.8)

Revenue expenditure

30.6

29.7

28.4

88.7

Financing costs

10.9

11.6

13.0

35.5

Net expenditure

36.7

34.7

34.0

105.4

GLA funding for core activities

17.2

14.0

14.0

45.2

GLA funding for financing

10.9

11.6

13.0

35.5

8.6

3.8

–

12.4

–

5.3

7.0

12.3

Capital expenditure
Funded by:

Total funding

£’000

ACCOUNTS

Revenue

Funded by:

Reserves
Net revenue position

Cost reduction and commercial income opportunities such as advertising, sponsorship, new vending
opportunities and additional visitor attractions on the Park are being explored to assist in bridging the
forecast revenue deficits in 2017/18 and 2018/19, however these are unlikely to eliminate the deficit
and additional funding will be sought from the GLA.
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Changes to accounting policies
In 2015/16 the Legacy Corporation has added a
new accounting policy to reflect the adoption of
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement by the CIPFA
Code. The main impact of this new policy, and the
requirements of IFRS 13, is the need for enhanced
disclosures in respect of the measurement of the
Legacy Corporation’s investment properties and
financial instruments. Further details are
provided in notes 13 and 26.
The Legacy Corporation has made no other
significant changes to its accounting policies.
Commentary on key live projects
Cultural and Education District
The Cultural and Education District will be one
of the most significant legacies of the London
Olympic Games of 2012. It will bring together the
world-class cultural institutions of the V&A and,
Sadler’s Wells Theatre and first-rank educational
institutions of UCL and the UAL. Together,
these institutions will form a new cultural and
educational hub for east London, cementing
the regeneration of the area, being a catalyst for
job creation and economic growth, and strongly
complementing the world-leading creative
and technology sectors of east London. The
developments will be located on the Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park (QEOP).
Masterplanning for UAL, V&A, Sadler’s Wells
Theatre and associated public realm and
infrastructure is complete, with detailed RIBA
Stage 2 design work now being undertaken. The
masterplan for UCL was approved in by the project
board in April 2016 and RIBA Stage 1 design has
commenced. The Cultural and Education District
programme as a whole will seek Full Business Case
approval from government in the last quarter of
2016/17, and the Legacy Corporation will submit
a planning application for the Cultural and
Education District towards the end of 2016.
The costs will be met through a mixture of
partner and private sector funding, philanthropic
funding and public sector funding, from the
GLA and government. In total this investment
is anticipated to generate 3,000 new jobs,
economic benefits of circa £3bn at net present
values and deliver over 100,000m2 of cultural
and educational space.
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The Legacy Corporation continues to work
with partners to develop collaborative projects
and proposals to help deliver the programme’s
strategic objectives. A series of task and finish
groups to investigate further joint working have
been established and their first meetings were
held in this period; outputs from these groups
are scheduled for late summer 2016. This work
will inform a strategic objectives delivery plan
which will set out how the overall regeneration
objectives of the project will be achieved.
Chobham Manor development
In November 2012 LLDC entered into a
development agreement with Chobham Manor
LLP (a joint venture between Taylor Wimpey and
London & Quadrant). The development of 828
homes of which 28% is affordable, will contain 75%
family housing (defined as three bedrooms or
more) in line with planning requirements and
will be supported by facilities including a nursery
and community spaces.
The first homes were occupied from late 2015 and
residential sales have been successful. In 2015/16
the Legacy Corporation recognised £3.1m of
capital receipts arising from its share of proceeds
from sales of homes on the Chobham Manor site.
The development was awarded Best Scheme in
Planning at the National Housing Awards 2015
awards held on 10 September 2015, which is
recognition of the Legacy Corporation’s strength
in achieving excellence, innovation, creativity
and progression in the affordable housing sector.
This development zone is held as an investment
property (as part of the ‘Queen Elizabeth Olympic
Park’ asset) in the Legacy Corporation’s accounts,
further detail of which is given in note 13.
East Wick and Sweetwater
Places for People and Balfour Beatty have been
appointed to bring forward plans to create new
neighbourhoods in East Wick and Sweetwater.
The plans include building up to 1,500 new
homes of which up to 30% will be affordable and
500 private homes to rent on the Park, six years
ahead of the original masterplan. Work to
develop East Wick and Sweetwater will create
a vibrant new community on the west of the
Park, linking to existing communities in Hackney
Wick and Fish Island. The aim is to complete the
development by 2023. The first phase of East
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Wick and Sweetwater is due to start construction
in 2016/17. It is anticipated that the Legacy
Corporation will begin to receive capital receipts
from this development in 2017/18.
Hackney Wick Station
Improvements to Hackney Wick Station have
been identified as a key factor in helping to unlock
the full economic potential of Hackney Wick.
The Legacy Corporation has secured a loan of
£8.5m from the London Enterprise Panel (LEP) for
improvements to the station. The improvements
include new routes to reduce journey-times
between the station and Here East and Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park; a new and enlarged
station concourse; the installation of lifts to the
platforms; and the creation of a new north-south
pedestrian route for both passengers and other
pedestrians under the railway embankment. Work
is ongoing with partners on the station design,
costs and funding, ahead of final approvals.
Prospects and outlook
Looking forward the Legacy Corporation has
number of key milestones to achieve in 2016/17.

The Legacy Corporation’s significant residential
projects, Chobham Manor and East Wick and
Sweetwater, will provide new homes for people
who want to live in the area. These projects will
also generate significant capital receipts for the
Legacy Corporation, enabling it to repay its
borrowings from the GLA, and the GLA to repay
its obligations to the National Lottery.

The new Slide at the ArcelorMittal Orbit will open
in June 2016; measuring 178m, it is the world’s
tallest and longest tunnel slide. In the 40-second
trip sliders are expected to reach speeds of up
to 15 miles per hour. 7,000 tickets were sold in first
week after going on sale and the first weekend
was sold out. Increased revenues are expected
to be generated by this enhancement, further
contributing to the success of the Park.
The Legacy Corporation has access to sufficient
funding through the Greater London Authority
to complete the development programme set
out in our Ten Year Plan and begin to repay the
investment made by the Greater London Authority
in the Olympic legacy. The Ten Year Plan sets out
the Legacy Corporations objectives over the period
and was approved by the Legacy Corporation
Board and the Mayor in March 2016, and will be
revisited annually as part of the statutory budget
process of the Greater London Authority.
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Transformation works on the Stadium are due to
complete in time for the summer event schedule
which includes an AC/DC concert in June, the
Diamond League Athletics competition in July
and West Ham United Football Club’s first game
in August.

As part of the Legacy Communities Scheme
planning permission, the Legacy Corporation is
required to deliver two primary schools and one
secondary school to meet the need generated
from our housing development. The first of
those primary schools, the Mossbourne Riverside
Academy School, is currently under construction
at East Wick and is due to open in September
2016. This school is being jointly funded by the
Department for Education, through the Targeted
Basic Needs Fund and the Legacy Corporation.

The Legacy Corporation continually seeks to
maximise the value for money of the investment in
its activities and ensure that the organisation is as
lean and effective as possible, while still resourced
to deliver a challenging programme.

New facilities created as part of the Cultural and
Education District project will not only strengthen
the Park’s offer for national and international
visitors, but also create a home for skilled artists,
designers, academics, engineers, scientists,
architects and craftspeople — and the global
companies that need this talent. Key milestones
in 2016/17 are submission of planning applications
and the final business case to government.
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Performance measures
The following performance indicators demonstrate how the Legacy Corporation has used its resources
to deliver against its five strategic objectives during the year.
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Measure

Progress to 31 March 2016

Chobham Manor: first residents moved
in and phase 2 works commenced

Residents started to move into new homes
in October 2015

Progress East Wick and Sweetwater planning
and design

Development Agreement is in place. The zonal
masterplan was approved at the December
2015 Planning Committee. Detailed design
is underway and submission of the Reserved
Matters Application is expected later in the year

Begin phased opening for East Wick School
(now Mossbourne Riverside Academy)

The school began phased opening in September
2015 with a 30-place reception class located
temporarily at Brook Community Primary School
in Hackney

Commence construction for DRET London Free
School (all-through school)

Planning approval will be sought ahead of
construction work commencing in July 2016
for the primary school site and August 2016
for the secondary school site

Progress Hackney Wick Station improvements

Working closely with Network Rail on detailed
design and costings. Programmed completion
date has moved back to autumn 2017

Progress 3 Mills River Wall repairs

Planning permission granted September 2015.
Contractor procurement exercise underway and
negotiations on price continue, but main works
cannot start until autumn 2016 at the earliest
because of the Studios’ filming schedule

Hackney Wick Neighbourhood Centre outline
planning determination

Outline planning received Board approval on
10 March 2016, (planning submission has since
been made in May 2016 for determination in
October 2016)

Complete Rick Roberts Way masterplanning brief

Work continues with joint landowners
and stakeholders to reach agreement on a
delivery strategy and programme, including
consideration of scheme priorities

Leaway: progress phase 1 (Twelvetrees bridge)

Contractor procurement is complete with
Buckingham Group appointed. Construction
commenced and the project is scheduled
for completion in August 2016

Progress Stratford Station Carpenters entrance

Planning submission has been submitted
for determination in May 2016.

Adopt the Local Plan

The Local Plan was adopted by the Board in July
2015 following a public examination
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Progress to 31 March 2016

Adopt the Community Infrastructure Levy
and commence collection (from April 2015)

Board approved the charging schedule in January
2015 and collection has commenced

Deliver an effective and responsive planning
service — at least 70% of applications
determined in time

This target has been exceeded each month
in this period, including 97% determined in time
in March 2016

Here East: former Press Centre ready
for phased occupation

Loughborough University in London (LUiL)
opened on site in the former Press Centre in
September 2015, receiving hundreds of students.
This was the temporary home for the University
prior to their move to their permanent home
in the Broadcast Centre

Stadium complete for Rugby World Cup

Five Rugby World Cup matches successfully held
at the Stadium in 2015

Progress ArcelorMittal Orbit enhancements
and slide

Planning permission was approved in July 2015
and BCG appointed to construct the slide.
(The Slide has since completed and opened
in June 2016)

Meet estimate of 4.4m visitors to the Park
in 2015/16

Exceeded target with 5.1m visitors to the Park

Meet London Aquatics Centre annual throughput
target of 700,000

Exceeded target with 959,363 visitors in 2015/16

Meet Copper Box Arena annual throughput
target of 440,000

427,790 visitors in 2015/16

Meet ArcelorMittal Orbit annual throughput
target of 163,000

101,633 visitors in 2015/16

Progress masterplanning and design of UCL East

The masterplan for the UCL East site has been
fixed and procurement is in train for the detailed
design stage

Progress masterplanning and design
of Stratford Waterfront

The stage 1 masterplan has been signed off; mid
stage 2 design has been presented to partners

Community engagement
By March 2016: 195 people supported to achieve
training or qualification certificates through
community projects (three-year target)

Exceeded target over the three years with 267
people supported

Engage with 150,000 people through community
projects and activities (over three years)

Exceeded target over the three years with
175,574 people engaged

100,000 engaged through education projects
and initiatives (over three years)

Exceeded target over the three years with
101,818 people engaged

ACCOUNTS
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Measure

Progress to 31 March 2016

Arts and culture
Engaging directly with over 60,000 people
(three-year target) through activities with artists,
cultural festivals, mentorship scheme, outdoor
performances, creative workspaces and Art
in the Park

The latest figures show direct engagement with
148,531 people. This figure does not include Park
visitors who have enjoyed or interacted with the
artworks, both temporary and permanent in the
Park, which would significantly increase this
number if counted

Sport
Target 30,000 people through sport

Active People Active Park has exceeded annual
targets delivering in the year (the twelve months
to February 2016) over 84,000 opportunities to
try sport to over 42,000 individuals

LLDC organisational strategy complete
and published

The strategy was approved by the Board in
July 2015 and has been published: http://www.
queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/our-story/
the-legacy-corporation/business-plan

Corporate risks
The Legacy Corporation regularly reviews risks at a project, directorate and corporate level. The table
below shows the current top corporate risks identified their potential impact, and what mitigating
action is being taken.
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Summary

Impact

Mitigation

Red risk that the Cultural and Education
District will be delayed or costs will be
more than anticipated

Reputational damage,
delays and cost overruns

Effective design management and
coordination. Cost control. Close work
with partners.

Red risk relating to the delivery
of budget savings year on year

Financial and/ or delivery
impacts. Reputational impacts

Ongoing budget process, discussions
with GLA, commercial strategy

Risk relating to delivery of E20 Stadium
Business Plan

Significant financial and
reputational impacts

Support commercial negotiations,
close monitoring of performance

Red risk relating to budget overruns
for the Stadium

Significant financial and
reputational impacts

Cost control, close budget monitoring
and reporting

Red risk on corporation tax liabilities
for the Legacy Corporation

Significant financial implications

Continue discussions with HMRC

Red risk on VAT for the Legacy
Corporation for current and
future activities

Significant financial implications

Continue discussions with HMRC

Red risk that there are challenges to
the ability of LLDC to return expected
capital receipts

Significant financial and
reputational impacts

Consider alternative deal structures
to support generation of receipts Close
working with GLA

Red risk to the Cultural and
Education District funding
through philanthropic funding

Significant financial implications
and programme delays

Close working with Foundation
for FutureLondon

Red risk that increased construction costs
in London will impact on the Legacy
Corporation’s construction projects

Financial implications, reduced
scope for capital projects

Early cost reports, tight monitoring,
value engineering where required

Risk that Hackney Wick Station
Improvements costs will exceed budget

Significant financial and
reputational impacts

Seek further funding and review costs

Red risk relating to security on the Park
and the threat level

Reputational, operational
and financial implications

Monitoring threat levels across the Park,
implementation of new initiatives and close
cooperation with partners
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Impact

Mitigation

Amber risk relating to agreeing
future strategy for 3 Mills Studios

Significant reputation impacts

Discussions with partners ahead
of presenting options for a decision

Amber risk that proposed Hackney
Wick Neighbourhood Centre scheme
will not be supported by the Planning
Decisions Committee (PDC)

Programme delays,
financial impacts (receipts),
reputational damage

Ensuring scheme is compliant, stakeholder
consultation and engagement

Amber risk relating to trading and
activities including venues (CBA, LAC,
AMO), events and car park

Financial impacts, reduced
income or increased costs

Manage and monitoring financial targets
and contracts. Commercial strategy update

Risk relating to the need to identify
and implement savings in Park
operational contracts

Reputational, operational
and financial implications

Savings being identified,
contractual negotiations ongoing

Amber risk about successful
implementation of the Local Plan

Reputational impacts

Progress reporting including annual
monitoring report

Amber risk relating to the potential
impact of policy change on the
Legacy Corporation

Programme delays,
budget impacts.

Continue political engagement work
and briefings

Amber risk about the impacts
of serious accidents or episodes
of significant ill health on site

The possibility of serious injuries
or fatalities, the consequences
of which may include significant
delays and reputational damage

A comprehensive health and safety
programme is in place, designed to identify
and manage the construction risks and
led actively by LLDC and its Project
Management Partner

Amber risk relating to failure to embed
fraud and assurance processes.

Significant financial and
reputational impacts

New finance system has been implemented,
anti-fraud policy updated, controls,
assurance and internal and external audit;
ongoing fraud awareness briefings

Amber risk relating to meeting
priority theme targets and wider
regeneration aspirations

Significant reputation impacts

A strong set of targets agreed through
procurement and contracts; close working
with Partners

Amber risk relating to the success
of off-Park developments

Significant financial and
reputational impacts

Local plan approved and being implemented.
Work ongoing on development
opportunities

Green risk relating to construction
communications

Impacts on the reputation
of the Legacy Corporation

Deliver a clear communication plan which
manages expectations and explains the
reasons for the construction work

Green risk relating to Park visitor
numbers and experience.

Significant reputational impacts

Marketing plan, good customer services,
animation of the Park through events.
Positive initial figures for visitors to the Park

Amber risk that related development
projects undertaken by third party
organisations are not successful

Negative knock on effect
on the success of the Park
and its developments

Close working with partners to influence
developments and monitor progress

Green risk relating to historic
VAT liabilities

Significant financial implications

Submit revised returns to HMRC

Green risk relating to information
security non compliance

Potential loss, theft or corruption
of data with reputational and
financial impacts

Information security gap analysis complete,
action plan being implemented. Ongoing
information security briefings
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Purposes of major schedules
within the financial statements
The nature and purpose of the primary schedules
included within the financial statements are set
out below:
Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement
This statement shows both the revenue received
and the costs incurred in the year of providing
services, in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
Balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the value as at the
balance sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Legacy Corporation. The net
assets of the Legacy Corporation (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by
the Legacy Corporation. Reserves are reported
in two categories. The first category of reserves
is usable reserves, being those reserves that
the Legacy Corporation may use to provide
services, subject to the need to maintain a
prudent level of reserves. The second category
of reserves is those that the Legacy Corporation
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is not able to use to provide services.
This category of reserves includes reserves
that are impacted by timing differences shown
in the movement in reserves statement line
‘Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations’.
Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement shows the movements
in cash and cash equivalents of the Legacy
Corporation during the financial year. The
statement shows how the Legacy Corporation
generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by
classifying cash flows as derived from operating,
investing and financing activities.
Movement in reserves statement
This statement shows the movements in the
year on the different reserves held by the Legacy
Corporation analysed between usable reserves
and unusable reserves. The statement shows
how the movement in the Legacy Corporation’s
reserves is broken down between gains and
losses recognised on an accounting basis and
the statutory adjustments required to control the
amounts chargeable to council tax for the year.
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Statement of responsibility for the accounts
The Legacy Corporation’s responsibilities
The Legacy Corporation is required to:
•	make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one
of its officers has responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In the Legacy Corporation
that officer is the Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services;
•	manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets; and
• approve the Statement of Accounts.
The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services’ responsibilities
The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services is responsible for the preparation of the
Statement of Accounts for the Legacy Corporation in accordance with proper practices as set out in
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services has:
•	selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
•	made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
• complied with the Code;
•	kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
•	taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Gerry Murphy
Executive Director of Finance
and Corporate Services
29 July 2016
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Certificate of the Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services
I certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Legacy Corporation at the accounting date and of the income and expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2016.
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Independent auditor’s report to the Members
of THE London Legacy Development Corporation
Opinion on the Corporation’s
financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of the
London Legacy Development Corporation for the
year ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014. The Corporation’s
financial statements comprise the:
•	Corporation and Group Movement
in Reserves Statement;
•	The Corporation and Group Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement;
• The Corporation and Group Balance Sheet;
•	The Corporation and Group Cash Flow
Statement; and
•	The related notes 1 to 27 to the
Corporation Accounts and notes 1 to 4
to the Group Accounts
The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015/16.
This report is made solely to the members of
the London Legacy Development Corporation,
as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and for no
other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the
corporation and the corporation’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed.
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Respective responsibilities of the Executive
Director of Finance and Corporate Services
and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of
the Executive Director of Finance and Corporate
Services Responsibilities set out on page 37,
the Executive Director of Finance and Corporate
Services is responsible for the preparation of
the Statement of Accounts, which includes the
financial statements, in accordance with proper
practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2015/16, and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error. This includes an assessment of: whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Corporation and Group’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Executive
Director of Finance and Corporate Services and the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the Annual Report
and Accounts 2015/16 to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information
that is apparently materially incorrect based on,
or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report.
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Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:

•	give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the London Legacy Development
Corporation as at 31 March 2016 and of
its expenditure and income for the year
then ended;

•	in our opinion the annual governance
statement is misleading or inconsistent with
other information forthcoming from the audit
or our knowledge of the Corporation;

•	give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2016
and of its expenditure and income for
the year then ended; and
•	have been prepared properly in accordance
with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015/16.
Opinion on other matters
In our opinion, the information given in the
Annual Report and Accounts 2015/16 for the
financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements.

•	we issue a report in the public interest under
section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;
•	we make written recommendations to the
audited body under Section 24 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
•	we make an application to the court for a
declaration that an item of account is contrary
to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014;
•	we issue an advisory notice under Section
29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014; or
•	we make an application for judicial review
under Section 31 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014.
We have nothing to report in these respects.

ACCOUNTS
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Conclusion on the Corporation’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
Corporation’s responsibilities
The Corporation is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources,
to ensure proper stewardship and governance,
and to review regularly the adequacy and
effectiveness of these arrangements.
Auditor’s responsibilities
We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy
ourselves that the Corporation has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. The
Code of Audit Practice issued by the National
Audit Office (NAO) requires us to report to you
our conclusion relating to proper arrangements.
We report if significant matters have come to
our attention which prevent us from concluding
that the Corporation has put in place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are
not required to consider, nor have we considered,
whether all aspects of the Corporation’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.
Scope of the review of arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance
with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard
to the guidance on the specified criterion issued
by the Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG)
in November 2015, as to whether the London
Legacy Development Corporation had proper
arrangements to ensure it took properly informed
decisions and deployed resources to achieve
planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers
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and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor
General determined this criterion as that
necessary for us to consider under the Code
of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether
the London Legacy Development Corporation
put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
We planned our work in accordance with
the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we
considered necessary to form a view on whether,
in all significant respects, the London Legacy
Development Corporation had put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources.
Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the
guidance issued by the C&AG in November 2015,
we are satisfied that, in all significant respects,
London Legacy Development Corporation put
in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources
for the year ended 31 March 2016.
Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit
of the accounts of London Legacy Development
Corporation in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the
National Audit Office.

Debbie Hanson
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP,
Appointed Auditor
29 July 2016
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Gross income

1

Gross expenditure

1

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Notes

£’000

£’000

2

(41,525)

(45,917)

4

31,143

35,041

Net cost of services

(10,382)

(10,876)

7

(10,158)

(7,448)

Change in fair value of investment properties

13

64,986

(215,711)

Impairment of investment in joint venture

14

90,103

110,209

Financing and investment expenditure

8

28,847

19,268

Capital grants and contributions

9

(8,596)

(7,191)

154,800

(111,750)

619

313

Financing and investment income

(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services before tax
Corporation tax

10

Deferred tax

10

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services after tax

5,051

52,821

160,470

(58,616)

(2,220)

1,643

158,250

(56,973)

Other comprehensive income and expenditure
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset
Total comprehensive income and expenditure

18

¹	All the Legacy Corporation’s services are classified under CIPFA Services Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) for local Authority Accounting in the UK as Olympic legacy.
This classification is consistent with the disclosure in the group accounts of the Greater London Authority.
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 March 2016
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Notes

£’000

£’000

11

92

70

Long-term assets
Intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment

12

13,424

2,207

Investment property

13

372,810

425,925

Investment in joint venture

14

–

–

Long-term debtors

15

852

–

387,178

428,202

Current assets
Short-term debtors

15

18,346

22,012

Cash and cash equivalents

16

22,094

21,025

Total assets

40,440

43,037

427,618

471,239

(29,776)

(21,513)

(29,776)

(21,513)

(271,568)

(170,626)

Current liabilities
Short-term creditors

17

Long-term liabilities
Long-term borrowing

17

Long-term creditors

17

(7,395)

(6,078)

Deferred tax liability

10

(58,475)

(53,424)

Retirement benefit obligation

18

(8,805)

(9,746)

(346,243)

(239,874)

(376,019)

(261,387)

51,599

209,852

41,937

37,516

Total liabilities
Net assets
Reserves
Usable reserves

20

Unusable reserves

20

Total reserves

(93,536)

(247,368)

(51,599)

(209,853)

These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements certified by Gerry Murphy
(Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services) on 3 June 2016.
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Movement in Reserves Statement
As at 31 March 2016

Notes

At 1 April 2015

Unusable
reserves

Total
unusable
and other
reserves

Total
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

37,516

37,516

(247,368)

(247,368)

(209,852)

General
Fund

Total
usable
reserve

£’000

Movement in reserves
during 2015/16
Deficit on the provision of services

From CIES

160,470

160,470

–

–

160,470

Other comprehensive
income and expenditure

From CIES

503

503

(2,723)

(2,723)

(2,220)

160,973

160,973

(2,723)

(2,723)

158,250

Total comprehensive
income and expenditure
Adjustments between accounting
and funding basis under regulations

21

(156,552)

(156,552)

156,552

156,552

–

Transfer to reserve

20

–

–

–

–

–

4,421

4,421

153,832

153,832

158,253

41,937

41,937

(93,536)

(93,536)

(51,599)

General
Fund

Total
usable
reserve

Unusable
reserves

Total
unusable
and other
reserves

Total
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(4,945)

(4,945)

(147,934)

(147,934)

(152,879)

Decrease/(increase) in 2015/16
Balance at 31 March 2016

As at 31 March 2015

At 1 April 2014
Movement in reserves
during 2014/15
Deficit on the provision of services

From CIES

(58,616)

(58,616)

–

–

(58,616)

Other comprehensive
income and expenditure

From CIES

(2,436)

(2,436)

4,079

4,079

1,643

(61,052)

(61,052)

4,079

4,079

(56,973)

Total comprehensive
income and expenditure
Adjustments between accounting
and funding basis under regulations

21

103,513

103,513

(103,513)

(103,513)

–

Transfer to reserve

20

–

–

–

–

–

Decrease/(increase) in 2014/15

42,461

42,461

(99,434)

(99,434)

(56,973)

Balance at 31 March 2015

37,516

37,516

(247,368)

(247,368)

(209,852)

ACCOUNTS

Notes
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes
Surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(160,470)

58,616

Adjustments to net (deficit) for non-cash movements

19

175,818

(76,703)

Adjustments for items included in the net (deficit) on the
provision of services that are investing and financing activities

19

(11,741)

(7,191)

3,607

(25,278)

Net cash flows from operating activities
Investing activities

19

(101,786)

(145,098)

Financing activities

19

99,248

170,053

1,069

(323)

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

21,025

21,348

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

22,094

21,025

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
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Accounting policies
a. Code of practice
The Legacy Corporation is required to prepare
an annual Statement of Accounts by the
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations
2015 (the 2015 Regulations). These regulations
require the financial statements to be prepared
in accordance with proper accounting practices.
These practices primarily comprise the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom 2015/16 (the Code), and
the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16,
supported by International Financial Reporting
Standards adopted by the European Union
(Adopted IFRS) and statutory guidance issued
under Section 12 of the Local Government
Act 2003.
The Statement of Accounts summarises the
Legacy Corporation’s (“the Corporation”) and
the Legacy Corporation Group’s (“the Group”)
transactions for the 2015/16 financial year
and its position at 31 March 2016. The Group
financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Code.

The accounts have been prepared under the
accruals concept and in accordance with the
historical cost accounting convention, modified
by the revaluation of certain categories of
non-current assets and financial instruments.
Where items are sufficiently significant by
virtue of their size or nature, they are disclosed
separately in the financial statements in order
to aid the reader’s understanding of the Legacy
Corporation’s performance.
c. Accruals of income and expenditure
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes
place, not when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:

•	expenses in relation to services received
(including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are
received rather than when payments are
made; and
•	interest receivable on investments and payable
on borrowings is accounted for respectively as
income and expenditure on the basis of the
effective interest rate for the relevant financial
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.
Where revenue and expenditure have been
recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant
amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors
is written down and a charge made to revenue
for the income that may not be collected.
d. Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis as it is considered that the
Legacy Corporation will continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and meet its
liabilities as they fall due for payment.

ACCOUNTS

b. Basis of accounting
The accounts are made up to 31 March.
The accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently in the period presented
in these financial statements.

•	revenue from the provision of services is
recognised when the Legacy Corporation can
measure reliably the percentage of completion
of the transaction and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow
to the Legacy Corporation;

e. Accounting Standards
issued but not yet effective
The Code requires the Legacy Corporation
to identify any accounting standards that have
been issued but have yet to be adopted and
could have a material impact on the Statement
of Accounts.
At the date of authorisation of the financial
statements, the following amendments to the
Code, standards and interpretations, which have
not been applied in these financial statements,
were in issue but not yet effective:
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• Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions (Amendments to IAS 19)
— clarifies the requirements that relate to how
contributions from employees or third parties
that are linked to service should be attributed
to periods of service;
• Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations (Amendments to IFRS 11)
— covers accounting for an interest in a joint
operation when the joint operation is formed
and there is an existing business that is
contributed or where the acquisition of the
interest is in an existing joint operation that
is a business;
• Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation (Amendments
to IAS 16 and IAS 38) — the amendments
provide additional guidance on how the
depreciation or amortisation of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets should
be calculated;
• Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 —
changes to the format of the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, movement
in reserves statement and the introduction
of the new Expenditure and Funding Analysis;
• Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1)
— various improvements to the presentation
of, and disclosures in financial statements;
• Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010–2012 and
2012–2014 cycles — various amendments that
enhance the quality of standards, by amending
existing IFRSs to clarify guidance and wording,
or to correct for relatively minor unintended
consequences, conflicts or oversights.
The Legacy Corporation does not consider the
above mentioned amendments to the Code and
standards, amendments or interpretations
issued by the IASB will have a significant impact
on the financial statements. They are all
applicable from 1 April 2016.
f. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits
with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours.
Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments
that mature in three months or less from
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the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with
insignificant risk of change in value.
In the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Legacy Corporation’s
cash management.
g. Critical judgements on
applying accounting policies
In applying the accounting policies, the Legacy
Corporation has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving
uncertainty about future events. The critical
judgements made in the Statement of
Accounts are:
Funding
There is a degree of uncertainty about future
levels of funding for the Legacy Corporation.
However, the Legacy Corporation has determined
that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient
to provide an indication that its long-term
objectives will not be achieved.
Investment properties
The Legacy Corporation owns a number of
commercial properties where all or part of the
property is leased to third parties. Judgement
needs to be exercised in determining whether
these properties should be classified as
investment properties in accordance with IAS 40.
As investment properties are valued at fair value
with movements in the fair value being recorded
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement this could have a significant effect
on the reported financial performance of the
Legacy Corporation.
h. Assumptions made about the future
and major sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with the Code requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgement
in applying the Legacy Corporation’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions or estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed opposite:
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Item

Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

Investment
properties

Investment property valuations have been
based on the potential income to be generated
by the various assets. Should evidence emerge
that causes the Legacy Corporation to amend
these estimates, the estimated fair value of
its investment properties could change.

A reduction in the estimated valuations would
result in a loss being recorded in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES). For
example, a 10% reduction in the value of the
investment properties would result in a £37.3m
charge to the CIES. Conversely, an increase in value
would result in increases to the CIES.

Property,
plant and
equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that
are dependent on assumptions about the levels
of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred
in relation to individual assets.

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation
increases and the carrying amount of the assets falls.

Pensions
liability

The estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rates to be used, the rate
at which salaries are projected to increase, changes
in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets.

The assumptions interact in complex ways.
The actuaries review the assumptions triennially
and changes are adjusted for in the Accounts.
Details on sensitivity analysis can be found
in note 18.

Fair value
measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets (i.e. Level 1 inputs),
their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques (e.g. quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities in active markets or the discounted
cash flow (DCF) model).

The authority uses the discounted cash flow (DCF)
model to measure the fair value of some of its
investment properties and financial assets.

Where possible, the inputs to these valuation
techniques are based on observable data, but
where this is not possible judgement is required in
establishing fair values. These judgements typically
include considerations such as uncertainty and risk.
However, changes in the assumptions used could
affect the fair value of the Legacy Corporation’s
assets and liabilities.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement include management
assumptions regarding rent growth, vacancy levels
(for investment properties) and discount rates —
adjusted for regional factors (for both investment
properties and some financial assets).
Significant changes in any of the unobservable
inputs would result in a significantly lower or higher
fair value measurement for the investment
properties and financial assets.

Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of
the authority’s assets and liabilities is disclosed
in notes 13 and 26.

i. Events after the reporting period
Events after the balance sheet date are those
events, both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the end of the reporting period
and the date when the Statement of Accounts
is authorised for issue. Two types of events
can be identified:
Adjusting events
Those events that provide evidence of conditions
that existed at the end of the reporting period
— the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to
reflect such events.

ACCOUNTS

Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Legacy
Corporation employs relevant experts to identify
the most appropriate valuation techniques to
determine fair value (for example for investment
properties, external valuers GL Hearn).

Non-adjusting events
Those events that are indicative of conditions
that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect
such items, but, where a category of events
would have a material effect, disclosure is
made in the notes of the nature of the events
and either their estimated financial effect
or a statement that such an estimate cannot
be made reliably. Events taking place after the
date of authorisation for issue are not reflected
in the Statement of Accounts.
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j. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have passed
to the buyer and it can be reliably measured.
Revenue generated from planning fees is
recorded on completion of the service provided.
Revenue generated from rental of commercial
properties is recorded in line with the accounting
policy described in paragraph (x) ‘Leases’
depending on whether the commercial
properties are leased out under a finance
or an operating lease.
Revenue generated from the organisation
of event is recorded as deferred revenue until
the event occurs.
Revenue is measured after the deduction
of Value Added Tax (where applicable).
k. Segmental reporting
In accordance with the Code, the Legacy
Corporation’s operating segments have
been determined by identifying the segments
whose operating results are reviewed by the
Board, when making decisions regarding
the allocation of resources and for the
assessment of performance.

Regeneration
The Regeneration and Community Partnerships
directorate has a wide range of responsibilities
which tie directly to the Legacy Corporation’s
priority themes around regeneration, community
engagement and equality and inclusion.
The directorate runs community and business
engagement, outreach programmes, schools
programmes and a number of other socioeconomic projects to further these goals.
Planning Policy and Decisions
The Planning Policy and Decisions Team fulfils
a statutory function and contributes to the Place
objective: creating London’s most dynamic
urban district, becoming a location of choice for
current residents and new arrivals, and linking
the Olympic Park estate with surrounding
neighbourhoods.

Park Operations and Venues
Park Operations and Venues has the objective
of operating a successful and accessible Park and
world-class sporting venues, offering facilities for
high-performance and community participation,
enticing visitor attractions, ensuring the successful
financial legacy of the Park and securing a busy
programme of sporting, cultural and community
events that will create a sense of excitement and
continue to draw visitors to Stratford and the
surrounding area.

Finance and Corporate Services
The Finance and Corporate Services directorate
provides support across the Legacy Corporation
for finance, IT and information management,
governance, programme management and
assurance, commercial and procurement. As part
of the Mayor’s shared service agenda, legal and
insurance services are provided by Transport for
London, internal audit by MOPAC, the Mayor’s
Office of Policing and Crime, (both functional
bodies within the Greater London Authority
Group), and treasury management and secretariat
services are provided by the Greater London
Authority. In addition, the Legacy Corporation is
part of the Greater London Authority Collaborative
Procurement initiative. The directorate also
provides finance and accounting support services
to its joint venture E20 Stadium LLP.

Development
The Development directorate leads on the design,
development and sustainability of the Queen
Elizabeth Olympic Park. They are responsible for
delivering the Legacy Communities Scheme —

Communications, Marketing and Strategy
The Communications, Marketing and Strategy
directorate supports and delivers effective
communications between the Legacy Corporation
and its stakeholders, and manages online

The operating segments of the Legacy
Corporation and their principal activities
are as follows:

48

the Park masterplan which sets out new
residential neighbourhoods as well as commercial,
educational, recreational and other developments
across the Park. They are also tasked with
delivering the Legacy’s Corporation’s Cultural
and Educational District project.
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information to ensure it is accurate and up to
date. It is responsible for preparing the Legacy
Corporation’s strategy concerning the
organisation and its role.
Executive Office
The Executive Office includes the Legacy
Corporation’s Chair and Chief Executive and
is linked to its Executive Management Team,
who together lead the work that the Legacy
Corporation does as an organisation.
Staff in the Executive Office support the Legacy
Corporation’s senior leadership, as well as
providing the important functions of Human
Resources and Health and Safety to LLDC.
Stadium
The Stadium directorate is responsible for the
delivery of the Olympic Stadium transformation
works that will enable the Stadium to be ready to
host full operations from Summer 2016, including
the arrival of West Ham Football Club.
l. Government grants
Whether paid on account, by instalments or
in arrears, government grants are recognised
as due to the Legacy Corporation when
there is reasonable assurance that:

• the grants will be received.
Amounts recognised as due to the
Legacy Corporation are not credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attached to the grants
have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations
that specify how the grant should be used by the
Legacy Corporation and which if not met require
the grant to be returned to the transferor.
Monies advanced as grants for which conditions
have not been satisfied are carried in the balance
sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied,
the grant is credited to the relevant service line
or non-ringfenced revenue grants and all capital
grants credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Community Infrastructure Levy
The Legacy Corporation has elected to charge
a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). The levy
will be charged on new builds (chargeable
developments for the Legacy Corporation)
with appropriate planning consent. The Legacy
Corporation charges for and collects the levy,
which is a planning charge. The income from
the levy will be used to fund a number of
infrastructure projects to support the
development of the area.
CIL is received without outstanding conditions;
it is therefore recognised at the commencement
date of the chargeable development in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in accordance with the accounting
policy for government grants and contributions
set out above. CIL charges will be largely used
to fund capital expenditure. However a small
proportion of the charges may be used to fund
revenue expenditure.

ACCOUNTS

•	the Legacy Corporation will comply with the
conditions attached to the payments; and

Where capital grants are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General
Fund Balance in the movement in reserves
statement. Where the grant has yet to be used
to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where
it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital
Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital
Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been
applied to expenditure.

m. Financing and investment
income and expenditure
Financing and investment income comprises
interest income on funds invested, changes
in the fair values of investment properties and
the expected return on pension assets. Interest
income is recognised in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as it accrues
using the effective interest rate method.
Financing and investment costs comprise interest
expense on borrowings and finance lease liabilities
and the expected cost of pension scheme
defined benefit obligations.
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n. Corporation and chargeable gains taxation
The Legacy Corporation is subject to both
corporation and chargeable gains taxation and
complies with the Income and Corporation Taxes
Act 1988 and Taxation of Chargeable Gains
Act 1992.
Deferred tax is provided in full using the
balance sheet liability method for all taxable
temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
values for financial reporting purposes. Deferred
tax is measured using currently enacted or
substantially enacted tax rates.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that the temporary difference will reverse in the
foreseeable future and that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the asset can be utilised.
o. Value Added Taxation (VAT)
VAT payable is included as an expense only
to the extent it is not recoverable from HMRC.
VAT receivable is payable to HMRC and is
excluded from income.
p. Revenue expenditure funded
from capital under statute
Expenditure incurred during the year that may
be capitalised under statutory provisions but does
not result in the creation of a non-current asset has
been charged as expenditure in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.
Where the Legacy Corporation has determined
to meet the cost of this expenditure from
existing capital resources, a transfer in the
movement in reserves statement from the
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment
Account reverses out the amounts charged.
q. Intangible assets
Other intangible assets
Software costs are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from
the date that they are available for use, unless
such lives are indefinite. The estimated useful
lives are three to five years.

50

r. Property, plant and equipment
Recognition
Expenditure, of £10,000 and above, on the
acquisition, creation or enhancement of
property, plant and equipment is capitalised on
an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that
the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Legacy
Corporation and the cost of the item can be
reliably measured. Expenditure that maintains
but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver
future economic benefits or service potential
(repairs and maintenance) is charged as an
expense when it is incurred. Expenditure below
£10,000 may be grouped and capitalised where
practicable to do so.
Measurement
Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost
of materials and direct labour, and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to a working condition for their intended use.
Where there is a legal obligation to remove
the asset and/or restore the site on which it is
located at the end of its useful economic life,
the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located
are also included in the cost of the asset.
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet
using the following measurement bases:
•	Assets under construction — depreciated
historical cost
•	Non-property assets — depreciated historical
cost basis as a proxy for current value.
When parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable
amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
Depreciation is recognised in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of
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each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment, since this most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset.
Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the lease term and their useful lives. Land
is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives
for the current period are as follows:
Buildings

50 years

Furniture fixtures and fittings

5–10 years

Plant and equipment

3–40 years

Computer equipment

3 years

Motor vehicles

3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted if appropriate, the effect of such
adjustment being prospectively recognised
as a change of estimate.

The following policy is applied to the derecognition of fully depreciated assets:
•	asset life of five years — write off after eight
years if existing use cannot be determined
(or sooner if confirmed no longer in use), and
•	asset life of three years — write off after five
years if existing use cannot be determined
(or sooner if confirmed no longer in use).
s. Interests in companies and other entities
The Legacy Corporation has material interests in
a Limited Liability Partnership that has the nature
of a joint venture and requires it to prepare
Group accounts. In the Legacy Corporation’s
own single-entity accounts, the interest in this
joint venture is recorded as financial assets
at cost, less any provision for losses incurred
by the entity to the extent they are likely to be
borne by the Legacy Corporation.

Investment properties are measured initially
at cost and subsequently at fair value, being
the price that would be received to sell such an
asset in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. As a
non-financial asset, investment properties are
measured at highest and best use. Properties
are not depreciated but are revalued annually
according to market conditions at the year-end.
Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to
the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment
is applied to gains and losses on disposal.
Rentals received in relation to investment
properties are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the
General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and
disposal gains and losses are not permitted by
statutory arrangements to have an impact on
the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses
are therefore reversed out of the General Fund
Balance in the movement in reserves statement
and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account
and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000)
the Capital Receipts Reserve.
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Disposals
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of the item, and are
recognised net within other gains and losses in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

t. Investment property
Investment property is property held solely either
to earn rental income or for capital appreciation
or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the supply of services or for
administrative purposes.

u. Provisions, contingents
liabilities and contingents assets
Provisions
Provisions are recognised on the balance sheet
when a present legal or constructive obligation
exists for a future liability in respect of a past event
and where the amount of the obligation can be
estimated reliably. Provisions are measured at
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date, and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.
Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has
taken place that gives rise to a possible obligation
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
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occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the
Legacy Corporation. Contingent liabilities also
arise in circumstances where a provision would
otherwise be made but either it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required
or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised
in the balance sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts.
Contingent assets
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken
place that gives rise to a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Legacy Corporation.

Leases where the Legacy Corporation does not
assume the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as operating leases and the leased assets
are not recognised in the Legacy Corporation’s
balance sheet.
Lease payments
Minimum lease payments made under finance
leases are apportioned between the finance
expense and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance expense is allocated across
each period for the lease term so as to produce
a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the
balance sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an
inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integral part of the
total lease expense over the term of the lease.

v. Foreign currencies
Transactions in currencies other than sterling are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the date of the transaction. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Legacy
Corporation determines whether such an
arrangement is or contains a lease. A specific
asset is the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of that
specified asset. An arrangement conveys the
right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys
to the Legacy Corporation the right to control
the use of the underlying asset.

Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the period in which
they arise.
w. Leases (the Legacy Corporation as lessee)
Leased assets
Leases under which the Legacy Corporation
assumes substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases.
On initial recognition the leased asset is measured
at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease
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payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
asset is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.

At inception or upon reassessment of the
arrangement, the Legacy Corporation separates
payments and other consideration required by
such an arrangement into those for the lease and
those for other elements (such as services) on
the basis of their relative fair values. If the Legacy
Corporation determines for a finance lease that it
is impracticable to separate the payments reliably,
an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount
equal to the fair value of the underlying asset.
Subsequently the liability is reduced as payments
are made and an imputed finance charge
on the liability is recognised using the Legacy
Corporation’s incremental borrowing rate.
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x. Leases (the Legacy Corporation as lessor)
Leased assets
Leases under which the Legacy Corporation
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon
initial recognition the leased asset is derecognised
from the Legacy Corporation balance sheet and
a finance lease receivable for an amount equal
to the lower of its fair value and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the carrying amount of the lease asset
derecognised and the finance lease receivable
is recognised in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
Leases where the Legacy Corporation does
not assume the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as operating leases and the leased
assets are retained in the Legacy Corporation’s
balance sheet.
Lease payments
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
of return on the Legacy Corporation’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

y. Impairment of non-financial assets
At each balance sheet date, the Legacy
Corporation reviews the carrying amount of
those assets that are subject to amortisation to
determine whether there is an indication that
any of those assets has suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Impairment occurs when an asset’s carrying
value is above its recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In accordance with the Code, when an asset
is not held primarily for the purpose of generating
cash flows but for service provision, value in use
is the present value of the asset’s remaining service
potential, which can be assumed to be at least
equal to the cost of replacing that service potential.

z. Employee benefits
Defined benefit plans
The majority of the Legacy Corporation’s
employees are members of one of two defined
benefit plans, which provide benefits based on
final pensionable pay. The assets of the schemes
are held separately from those of the Legacy
Corporation.
On retirement, members of the schemes
are paid their pensions from a fund which is
independent of the Legacy Corporation. The
Legacy Corporation makes cash contributions to
the funds in advance of members’ retirement.
Pension scheme assets are measured using
current market bid values. Pension scheme
defined benefit obligations are measured using
a projected unit credit method and discounted
at the current rate of return on a high quality
corporate bond of equivalent term and currency
to the defined benefit obligation.
The difference between the value of pension
scheme assets and pension scheme defined
benefit obligations is a surplus or a deficit.
A pension scheme surplus is recognised to
the extent that it is recoverable and a pension
scheme deficit is recognised in full. The
movement in the schemes’ surplus/deficit is split
between operating charges, finance items and,
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, actuarial gains and losses. Generally,
amounts are charged to operating expenditure on
the basis of the current service cost of the present
employees that are members of the schemes.
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Rental income from operating leases and initial
direct costs are recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

An impairment review is completed for all assets
on an annual basis and additionally when there
is an indication that an asset may be impaired.

The change in the net pension liability is
analysed into the following components:
Current service cost: the increase in liabilities
as a result of years of service earned this year —
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the services for
which the employees worked.
Past service cost: the increase in liabilities as
a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment
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whose effect relates to years of service earned
in earlier years which is debited to the surplus
or deficit on the provision of services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability
(asset): the change during the period in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from
the passage of time charged to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line
of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement — this is calculated by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability (asset) at the
beginning of the period — taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset)
during the period as a result of contribution
and benefit payments.
The return on plan assets: excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) — charged to the pensions
reserve as other comprehensive income and
expenditure in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
Actuarial gains and losses: changes in the net
pensions liability that arise because events have
not coincided with assumptions made at the
last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries
have updated their assumptions — charged to
the pensions reserve as other comprehensive
income and expenditure in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
Contributions paid to the Local
Government Pension Scheme: cash paid as
employer’s contributions to the pension fund
in settlement of liabilities. This is not recognised
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory
provisions require the General Fund to be
charged with the amount payable by the Legacy
Corporation to the Pension Fund or directly to
pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounting standards.
In the movement in reserves statement, this
means that there are appropriations to and
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from the pensions reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for retirement benefits and
replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners, and any such
amounts payable, but unpaid at the year end.
The negative balance that arises on the pensions
reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact
to the General Fund of being required to account
for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows
rather than as benefits earned by employees.
Defined benefit plans — multi-employer exemption
For the Homes and Communities Agency Pension
Scheme, the Legacy Corporation is unable to
identify its share of the underlying assets and
defined benefit obligations of the scheme on a
consistent and reasonable basis. As permitted by
the multi-employer exemption in the Code, the
scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution
scheme. The Legacy Corporation’s contributions
are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as incurred.
Other employee benefits
Other short- and long-term employee benefits,
including holiday pay and long service leave,
are recognised as an expense over the period
in which they accrue.
aa. Reserves
Reserves consist of two elements, usable
and unusable.
Usable reserves are those that can be applied
to fund expenditure. They are made up of the
General Fund, earmarked reserves and the
Capital Grants Unapplied Account.
Unusable reserves cannot be applied to fund
expenditure as they are not cash backed. They
include the Capital Adjustment Account, pension
reserve and the accumulated absences reserve.
ab. Financial instruments
Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 —
Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are classified as:
•	financial assets at fair value through the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement;
• loans and receivables; or
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• available for sale financial assets.
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39
are classified as either financial liabilities at fair
value through the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement or financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost.
The Legacy Corporation determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial
recognition and re-evaluates this designation
at each financial year end.
When financial instruments are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, being
the transaction price plus any directly attributable
transactional costs. The exception to this is for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value, where
transaction costs are immediately expensed.
The subsequent measurement of financial
instruments depends on their classification
as follows:

The fair value of loans advanced to third parties
at nil interest rate or below the prevailing market
rate of interest (soft loans) is estimated as the
present value of all future cash receipts
discounted using the prevailing market rate
of interest for a similar instrument. When
soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (debited to the appropriate service)
for the present value of the interest that will be
foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting
in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding

All loans and borrowings are classified as
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
ad. Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are classified as
‘loans and receivables financial assets’ and are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost. For trade receivables this
is after an allowance for estimated impairment.
The allowance is based on objective evidence
that the Legacy Corporation will not be able
to recover all amounts due, through a review
of all accounts and prior experience of collecting
outstanding balances. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance for impairment are
recognised in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

ACCOUNTS

ac. Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted on an active market, do not
qualify as trading assets and have not been
designated as either ‘fair value through the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement’ or ‘available for sale’. Such assets
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method if the time value of money
is significant. Gains and losses are recognised
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through
the amortisation process.

principal. Interest is credited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement at a marginally higher effective rate
of interest than the rate receivable from the
voluntary organisations, with the difference
serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan
in the balance sheet. Statutory provisions require
that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund
Balance is the interest receivable for the financial
year — the reconciliation of amounts debited
and credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net gain required
against the General Fund Balance is managed by
a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the movement in
reserves statement.

The fair value of trade and other receivables
is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at the reporting date. This fair value
is determined for disclosure purposes.
ae. Trade and other creditors
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
af. Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that they are impaired. Individually
significant financial assets are tested for
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impairment on an individual basis. All impairment
losses are recognised in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
ag. Embedded derivatives
Derivatives that are embedded in other financial
instruments or other host contracts are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts, and the host contracts
are not carried at fair value.
Embedded derivatives are carried on the
balance sheet at fair value from inception of
the host contract. Unrealised changes in fair
value are recognised as gains/losses within
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement during the period in which they arise.
ah. Prior period adjustments, changes in
accounting policies and errors and estimates
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result
of a change in accounting policies or to correct
a material error. Changes in accounting estimates
are accounted for prospectively, in the current
and future years affected by the change and do
not give rise to a prior period adjustment.
Changes in accounting policies are only made
when required by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant
information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions on the Legacy
Corporation’s financial position or financial
performance. Where a change is made, it is
applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise)
by adjusting opening balances and comparative
amounts for the prior period as if the new
policy had always been applied.
The following standards have been applied
for the first time in 2015/16:
IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement International
Financial Reporting Standards now have a
consistent definition of fair value introduced
by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. This policy
is being applied prospectively. See accounting
policy (ai) below.

ai. Fair Value Measurement
The Legacy Corporation measures some of its
non-financial assets such as investment properties
and some of its financial instruments at fair value
at each reporting date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement assumes that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
a.	in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or
b.	in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.
The Legacy Corporation measures the fair value
of an asset or liability using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial
asset, the Legacy Corporation takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
The Legacy Corporation uses valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data is available, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect
of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the authority’s financial
statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, as follows:
•	Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
authority can access at the measurement date
•	Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
•	Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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Notes to the Statement of Accounts
1. Correction of prior period accounting errors
There have been no corrections required to the prior period financial statements.
2. Gross income
Gross income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is analysed as follows:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(37,623)

(43,577)

Planning fees

(1,163)

(977)

Recharges

Grants received

(1,439)

(1,242)

Events income

(376)

–

Interest income on deposits

(101)

–

Other

(824)

(121)

(41,525)

(45,917)

The recharges are mainly related to construction services and staff support provided by the Legacy Corporation to E20
Stadium LLP.
3. Segmental analysis
The information presented in this note represents accurate information of the segments used by management to drive
the business.
31 March 2016

Communications,
Marketing and
Strategy

Development

Executive
Office

Finance
and
Corporate
Services

Park
Operations
and Venues
(including
Trading)

Planning
Policy and
Decisions

Regeneration
and
Community
Partnerships

Stadium

Total

31 March 2016
£’000
Income

(111)

–

–

(575)

(7,700)

(1,480)

(372)

(157)

(10,395)

Expenditure

2,587

117

1,968

6,124

19,986

2,301

3,868

224

37,175

Net operating
expenditure

2,476

117

1,968

5,549

12,286

821

3,496

67

26,780

31 March 2015

Infrastructure

Park Operations
and Venues

Real Estate and
Regeneration

Planning Policy
and Decisions

Corporate

Total
31 March 2015
£’000

Income

(1,242)

(7,442)

(304)

(977)

(940)

(10,905)

Expenditure

2,541

19,106

2,972

753

19,291

44,663

Net operating expenditure

1,299

11,664

2,668

(224)

18,351

33,758
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The reconciliation of net operating expenditure per the segmental analysis to the net cost of services
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the years ended 31 March 2016 and
2015 is as follows:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

26,780

33,758

Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement not reported to management in the segmental analysis

(25,033)

(33,385)

Amounts included in the segmental analysis not included
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(12,128)

(11,249)

(10,382)

(10,876)

Net operating expenditure per segmental analysis

Net costs of services (as in Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement)

Amounts included in the costs of services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement but not reported to management in the in-year budget monitoring reports include charges
for depreciation and amortisation, pension service costs, revenue grants receivable from the Greater
London Authority and Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital under Statute.

58

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

The reconciliation of segmental analysis to subjective analysis in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
for the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015 are set out below:
31 March 2016

Net operating
expenditure per
the segmental
analysis

Amounts
included in the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement not
reported to
management in
the segmental
analysis

Amounts
included in the
segmental
analysis not
included in the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

Cost of
services as per
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

Corporate
amounts

Deficit on the
provision of
services

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Fees, charges
and other
service income

(2,988)

(915)

–

(3,902)

–

(3,902)

Interest and
investment
income

(6,739)

–

6,739

–

(10,158)

(10,158)

(668)

(36,955)

–

(37,623)

(8,596)

(46,219)

–

–

–

–

–

–

(10,394)

(37,870)

6,739

(41,525)

(18,754)

(60,279)

7,923

905

–

8,828

–

8,828

Other expenditure

17,821

11,504

(7,438)

21,887

–

21,887

Interest and
investment
expenditure

11,090

–

(11,090)

–

28,437

28,437

Depreciation,
amortisation and
impairment

–

428

–

428

64,986

65,414

Pensions interest
cost and expected
return on assets

–

–

–

–

410

410

Impairment
in investment
in joint venture

–

–

–

–

90,103

90,103

340

–

(340)

–

5,670

5,670

37,174

12,837

(18,867)

31,143

189,606

220,749

26,780

(25,033)

(12,128)

(10,382)

170,852

160,470

Subjective
analysis

Government
grants and
contributions
Fair value
revaluation
Total income
Employee
expenses

Taxation
Total expenditure
Deficit on
the provision
of services
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31 March 2015

Net operating
expenditure per
the segmental
analysis

Amounts
included in the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement not
reported to
management in
the segmental
analysis

Amounts
included in the
segmental
analysis not
included in the
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

Cost of
services as per
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure
Statement

Corporate
amounts

Deficit on the
provision of
services

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Fees, charges
and other
service income

(2,340)

–

–

(2,340)

–

(2,340)

Interest and
investment
income

(7,442)

–

7,442

–

(7,448)

(7,448)

Government
grants and
contributions

(1,123)

(42,454)

–

(43,577)

(7,191)

(50,768)

–

–

–

–

(215,711)

(215,711)

(10,905)

(42,454)

7,442

(45,917)

(230,350)

(276,267)

8,527

397

–

8,924

–

8,924

36,136

8,237

(18,691)

25,682

–

25,682

Interest and
investment
expenditure

–

–

–

–

18,948

18,948

Depreciation,
amortisation and
impairment

–

434

–

434

–

434

Pensions interest
cost and expected
return on assets

–

–

–

–

320

320

Impairment
in investment
in joint venture

–

–

–

–

110,209

110,209

Taxation

–

–

–

–

53,134

53,134

Subjective
analysis

Fair value
revaluation
Total income
Employee
expenses
Other expenditure

Total expenditure

44,663

9,068

(18,691)

35,040

182,611

217,650

Deficit on
the provision
of services

33,758

(33,386)

(11,249)

(10,877)

(47,739)

(58,616)

60

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

4. Gross expenditure
Gross expenditure recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement comprises:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Staff costs
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Other staff costs

6,225
634
1,594
376

6,819
583
1,368
154

Grants and contributions

1,545

1,325

Consultancy and strategy development costs

1,900

4,189

Accommodation costs

970

955

Legal fees

905

995

Communications, events and marketing

1,923

1,794

Agency and seconded staff costs

1,510

1,270

Irrecoverable VAT

–

3,188

Support services to be recharged

–

1,200

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

6,552

4,050

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute — recharges

4,952

4,020

Insurance

89

990

Stationery

1,079

1,150

3

26

Travel

25

36

Amortisation

40

29

Depreciation

388

405

Security

434

495

Total

31,143

35,041

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

36
–
–

40
–
–

36

40

5. External audit fees
External audit fees are made up as follows:

Auditors’ remuneration
for statutory audit services
for non-statutory audit services
for non-audit services

ACCOUNTS

Other
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6. Remuneration
The Code requires disclosure of remuneration for the Legacy Corporation’s employees whose total
remuneration in the year was £50,000 or more, grouped in rising bands of £5,000. Senior employees
are included in the following table; in line with the Code entries are banded according to actual
payments in the year, rather than annual equivalent salaries.
a. Employees’ remuneration
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Number

Number

50,000–54,999

6

16

55,000–59,999

18

6

60,000–64,999

8

6

65,000–69,999

3

3

70,000–74,999

3

3

75,000–79,999

5

6

80,000–84,999

3

1

85,000–89,999

4

7

90,000–94,999

–

3

95,000–99,999

2

–

100,000–104,999

2

–

105,000–109,999

–

2

110,000–114,999

1

1

115,000–119,999

2

2

120,000–124,999

–

2

125,000–129,999

–

–

130,000–134,999

1

–

135,000–139,999

–

–

140,000–144,999

1

1

145,000–149,999

1

1

150,000–154,999

2

–

155,000–159,999

–

–

160,000–164,999

–

–

165,000–169,999

–

–

170,000–174,999

–

–

175,000–179,999

1

1

180,000–184,999

–

–

185,000–189,999

–

–

190,000–194,999

–

–

195,000–199,999

–

–

200,000–204,999

–

–

205,000–209,999

–

–

210,000–214,999

–

–

215,000–219,9991

1

–

£

1
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b. Senior employees’ remuneration
31 March 2016

Pension
contribution

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

197

39

1

–

26

263

Colin Naish
Executive Director
of Stadium

178

–

–

–

21

199

Geraldine Murphy1
Executive Director
of Finance and
Corporate Services

152

–

–

–

18

170

Paul Brickell
Executive Director
of Regeneration
and Community
Partnerships

152

–

–

–

18

170

Mark Camley
Executive Director
of Park Operations
and Venues

147

–

–

–

18

165

Rosanna Lawes
Executive Director
of Development

140

–

1

–

17

158

Anthony
Hollingsworth
Director of
Planning Policy and
Decisions Team

117

–

–

–

14

131

Ben Fletcher
Director of
Communication,
Marketing and Strategy

132

–

–

–

–

132

88

–

–

–

11

99

Bonuses

£’000
David Goldstone
Chief Executive Officer

Name and title

Sally Hopper2
Head of Human
Resources

ACCOUNTS

Expenses

Compensation
for loss
of office

Total
remuneration
including
pension
contributions

Salary
(including
fees and
allowances)

¹ Ms Murphy is 0.9 FTE, her equivalent salary is therefore £169,404.
2
Due to a job evaluation Ms Hopper’s salary increased to £96,323 as at 1 November 2015.
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Senior employees’ remuneration
31 March 2015

Expenses

Compensation
for loss
of office

Pension
contribution

Total
remuneration
including
pension
contributions

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

176

–

1

–

21

198

Paul Brickell
Executive Director
of Regeneration
and Community
Partnerships

146

–

–

–

12

158

Mark Camley
Executive Director
of Park Operations
and Venues

138

7

–

–

17

162

Rosanna Lawes
Executive Director
of Development

122

–

2

–

15

139

Anthony Hollingsworth
Director of
Planning Policy and
Decisions Team

111

–

–

–

13

124

Dennis Hone1
Chief Executive

107

–

–

–

–

107

David Goldstone2
Chief Executive Officer

98

20

–

–

11

129

Ben Fletcher3
Director of
Communication,
Marketing and Strategy

90

–

–

–

5

95

Jonathan Dutton4
Executive Director
of Finance and
Corporate Services

87

–

–

–

11

98

Sally Hopper5
Head of Human Resources

78

–

–

–

10

88

Geraldine Murphy6
Executive Director
of Finance and
Corporate Services

51

–

–

–

6

57

Jan Boud7
General Counsel

46

–

–

122

6

174

Salary
(including
fees and
allowances)

Bonuses

£’000
Colin Naish
Executive Director
of Stadium

Name and title

Mr Hone left in October 2014. Annual equivalent salary is £195,000.
Mr Goldstone was appointed to his post in October 2014. Annual equivalent salary is £195,000.
Mr Fletcher was appointed to his post in June 2014. Annual equivalent salary is £110,769.
4
Mr Dutton left in October 2014. Annual equivalent salary is £151,251.
5
Ms Hopper was appointed to her post as Head of HR in March 2013; and became a member of EMT after 1 April 2013.
6
Ms Murphy was appointed to her post in December 2014. Annual equivalent salary is £151,251.
7
Ms Boud left in July 2014 following the transfer of the legal service to a shared service provided by Transport for London. Annual equivalent salary is £139,058.
In addition to the compensation for loss of office paid to Ms Boud, the Legacy Corporation paid £50,000 for early retirement to the pension scheme.
1
2
3
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c. Members’ remuneration
31 March 2016

Pension
contribution

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

David Edmonds3
Chairman, Deputy
Chairman and Chair
of the Investment
Committee

39

–

–

–

–

39

Lord Mawson
Chair of the Regeneration
and Communities
Committee

28

–

–

–

–

28

Keith Edelman
Chair of the Audit
Committee and
Operations Committee

28

–

–

–

–

28

Nicky Dunn
Chair of the Park Opening

14

–

–

–

–

14

Philip Lewis4
Chair of the Planning
Decisions Committee
and Deputy Chairman

28

–

–

–

–

28

David Gregson
Chair of the
Investment Committee

21

–

–

–

–

21

Sonita Alleyne Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

Nicholas Bitel Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

Jayne McGivern5 Member

12

–

–

–

–

12

Baroness GreyThompson Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

David Ross6 Member

9

–

–

–

–

9

Bonuses

£’000
Boris Johnson
Chairman

Neale Coleman2
Chairman and
Deputy Chairman

Name and title

1

Sir Robin Wales Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

Lutfur Rahman7 Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

Jules Pipe Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

Chris Robbins Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

John Biggs Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

8

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

ACCOUNTS

Expenses

Compensation
for loss
of office

Total
remuneration
including
pension
contributions

Salary
(including
fees and
allowances)

Boris Johnson resigned as Chairman and a member of the Legacy Corporation Board on the 5 May 2015.
Neale Coleman was Deputy Chairman until June 2015 and then Chairman until September 2015.
David Edmonds was Chair of the Investment Committee until June 2015 when he was appointed Deputy Chairman. Then in September 2015 he became Chairman.
Philip Lewis was appointed Deputy Chairman in October 2015.
Jayne McGivern service came to an end at the end of January 2016.
David Ross appointment on the board came to an end at the end of November 2015.
Lutfur Rahman ceased to be the Mayor of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets on the 23 April 2015 and so left the board.
John Biggs, the newly elected Mayor of Tower Hamlets, was appointed by the Mayor of London to the Legacy Corporation Board on 9 July 2015.
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Members’ remuneration
31 March 2015

Expenses

Compensation
for loss
of office

Pension
contribution

Total
remuneration
including
pension
contributions

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

David Edmonds
Chair of the
Investment Committee

42

–

–

–

–

42

Lord Mawson
Chair of the Regeneration
and Communities
Committee

28

–

–

–

–

28

Keith Edelman
Chair of the Audit
Committee and
Operations Committee

28

–

–

–

–

28

Nicky Dunn
Chair of the Park Opening

28

–

–

–

–

28

Philip Lewis
Chair of the Planning
Decisions Committee

28

–

–

–

–

28

David Gregson
Member

21

–

–

–

–

21

Sonita Alleyne
Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

Nicholas Bitel
Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

Jayne McGivern
Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

Baroness
Grey-Thompson
Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

David Ross
Member

14

–

–

–

–

14

Sir Robin Wales
Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

Lutfur Rahman
Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

Jules Pipe
Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

Chris Robbins
Member

–

–

–

–

–

–

Salary
(including
fees and
allowances)

Bonuses

£’000
Boris Johnson
Chairman
Neale Coleman
Deputy Chairman

Name and title
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Termination payments
The Code requires the separate disclosure of the number and cost of compulsory and voluntary
severance termination packages agreed during the year. No staff have left under compulsory severance
terms during the year. Those who left the Legacy Corporation did so under the Legacy Corporation’s
voluntary severance terms, by choosing to accept the voluntary severance terms which were set out
in a compromise agreement signed by the employee on termination of their appointment.
These employees are classified as leaving due to voluntary severance.
Non-compulsory
exit packages

Number of staff
31 March 2016

Number of staff
31 March 2015

Total cost
31 March 2016

Total cost
31 March 2015

£0–£20,000

3

4

£’000

£’000

17

35

£20,001–£40,000

–

1

–

40

£40,001–£60,000

–

3

–

140

£60,001–£80,000

–

–

–

–

£80,001–£100,000

–

–

–

–

£100,001–£150,000

–

–

–

–

£150,001–£200,000

–

1

–

172

£200,001–£250,000

–

–

–

–

£250,001–£300,000

–

–

–

–

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(21)

(6)

Income in relation to investment property

(6,993)

(7,442)

Net gain on disposal of investment property

(3,145)

–

(10,158)

(7,448)

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

410

320

20,414

18,948

8,023

–

28,847

19,268

7. Financing and investment income

Interest income on deposits

8. Financing and investment expenditure

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)
Expenditure in relation to investment property
Interest costs on borrowing
Financing and investment expenditure

ACCOUNTS

Financing and investment income

Interest costs of £8.0m were incurred in 2015/16 relating to the GLA loan facility used to fund the
Legacy Corporation’s capital programmes.
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9. Taxation and non-specific grant income
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Other capital grants and contributions

(8,596)

(7,191)

Taxation and non-specific grant income

(8,596)

(7,191)

Other capital grants and contributions in 2015/16 include recharges related to construction services
and staff support provided by the Legacy Corporation to E20 Stadium LLP (£4.8m), contributions made
by University College London (£2.0m) to the Cultural and Education District capital costs and OPTEMS
funding received by the Legacy Corporation towards the Hackney Wick Station project (£1.7m).
10. Corporation tax
a. Corporation tax

Income chargeable to corporation tax
Expenditure that can be offset against chargeable income

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

7,727

14,242

(4,634)

(5,991)

–

(4,233)

3,093

4,018

619

844

Losses brought forward
Profits chargeable to corporation tax
Corporation tax

Provision to meet the Legacy Corporation’s corporation tax liability has been made at 20% (2014/15: 21%).
b. Movement in recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
Balance at 1 April 2015

Movement in period

Balance at 31 March 2016

£’000

£’000

£’000

18,611

(17,137)

1,474

2,000

(200)

1,800

20,611

(17,337)

3,274

(73,501)

14,185

(59,316)

(520)

(1,896)

(2,416)

(14)

(3)

(17)

Total

(74,035)

12,286

(61,749)

Net deferred tax liability
recognised in the surplus on the
provision of services after tax

(53,424)

(5,051)

(58,475)

Pension

2,436

(503)

1,933

Net deferred tax asset
recognised in other
comprehensive income
and expenditure

2,436

(503)

1,933

Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Capital losses carried forward
Total
Deferred tax liabilities
Investment property
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets
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Due to a significant increase in the fair value of the Legacy Corporation’s investment properties, the
Legacy Corporation recognised a net deferred tax charge of £50.4m in 2014/15 — this liability increased
by net £5.6m in 2015/16. The liability will crystallise in future years as and when the Legacy Corporation
recovers the carrying amount of the assets to which it relates through the disposal of its investment
property portfolio.
As at 31 March 2016, the Legacy Corporation had a potential deferred tax asset of £1.9m (31 March 2015:
£2.4m) arising on the pension liability. The deferred tax asset is recognised as there is evidence of future
taxable profits forecast to arise from the Legacy Corporation’s share of land receipts against which
pension contributions can be applied.
The Legacy Corporation continued to review its tax planning during 2015/16 and, as a result, is no
longer recognising £18.1m of deferred tax assets (as at 31 March 2016) as the timing of their future
disposal/transfer is not deemed to be certain enough.
The deferred tax rate used (18%) is deemed appropriate on the basis that the temporary differences
are not expected to be realised before 1 April 2020.
Prior year comparators are shown below.
Balance at 1 April 2014

Movement in period

Balance at 31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

£’000

22,876

(4,265)

18,611

–

2,000

2,000

22,876

(2,265)

20,611

(22,876)

(50,625)

(73,501)

(593)

73

(520)

(10)

(4)

(14)

(23,479)

(50,556)

(74,035)

(603)

(52,821)

(53,424)

Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Capital losses carried forward
Total
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total
Net deferred tax liability
recognised in the surplus on the
provision of services after tax

ACCOUNTS

Investment property

Deferred tax assets
Pension

–

2,436

2,436

Net deferred tax asset
recognised in other
comprehensive income
and expenditure

–

2,436

2,436
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11. Intangible assets
Computer software

Licences

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

208

282

490

50

–

50

At 31 March 2015

258

282

540

At 1 April 2015

258

282

540

62

–

62

320

282

602

159

282

441

29

–

29

At 31 March 2015

188

282

470

At 1 April 2015

188

282

470

40

–

40

228

282

510

Net book value at 31 March 2015

70

–

70

Net book value at 31 March 2016

92

–

92

Cost
At 1 April 2014
Additions

Additions
At 31 March 2016
Amortisation
At 1 April 2014
Charged during the period

Charged during the period
At 31 March 2016
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12. Property, plant and equipment
Furniture,
fixtures and
fittings

Computer hardware,
infrastructure and
telecoms/office equipment

Motor
vehicles

Assets under
construction

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

1,955

1,952

4

–

3,911

558

12

–

–

570

–

(1,174)

–

–

(1,174)

At 31 March 2015

2,513

790

4

–

3,307

At 1 April 2015

Cost
At 1 April 2014
Additions
Reclassification

2,513

790

4

–

3,307

Additions

–

77

–

11,528

11,605

Disposals

–

–

–

–

–

2,513

867

4

11,528

14,913

At 1 April 2014

239

845

3

–

1,087

Charged during the period

210

193

1

–

404

At 31 March 2016
Depreciation

Reclassification

–

(391)

–

–

(391)

At 31 March 2015

449

647

4

–

1,100

At 1 April 2015

449

647

4

–

1,100

Charged during the period

253

135

–

–

388

–

–

–

–

–

702

782

4

–

1,488

Net book value at 31 March 2015

2,064

143

–

–

2,207

Net book value at 31 March 2016

1,811

85

–

11,528

13,425

Reclassification
At 31 March 2016

ACCOUNTS

The £11.5m additions during 2015/16 in Assets under Construction relates to expenditure incurred
in relation to the Cultural and Education District project.
13. Investment property

Valuation
Opening balance at 1 April
Additions:
Subsequent expenditure

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

425,925

169,630

11,871

39,800

Disposals

–

–

Reclassification

–

783

Changes in fair value

(64,986)

(215,711)

Total investment property

372,811

425,925

The Legacy Corporation’s portfolio was valued as at 31 March 2016 by GL Hearn Limited. The assets
are being developed by the Legacy Corporation for their income-generating potential or for capital
appreciation and have therefore been classified as Investment Property in accordance with IAS 40.
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Investment property can be analysed as follows:
31 March
2016

31 March
2015

Change

£’000

£’000

£’000

London Aquatics Centre
and Copper Box Arena

8,600

8,000

600

Greenwich Leisure Limited was appointed as the
operator of the London Aquatics Centre and Copper Box
Arena under a ten-year arrangement. These venues have
been valued at £8.6m on the basis of the estimated
future income the venues will produce, taking account
of the £2.3m contribution to fit-out costs that the
operator has made.

Here East (former Press
and Broadcast Centre)

17,970

18,295

(325)

The valuation of the former Press and Broadcast Centre
(now known as Here East) is based on the potential net
income that the Legacy Corporation will receive over the
200 years of the lease with iCITY (London) Limited.

Multi-storey Car park

4,635

2,815

1,820

The valuation of the Multi-storey Car Park is based on
the potential net income that the Legacy Corporation
will receive over the 200 years licence with iCITY
(London) Limited.

Stadium

1,500

1,500

–

ArcelorMittal Orbit

4,865

1,585

3,280

The ArcelorMittal Orbit has been valued at £4.9m
on the basis of the earnings that could be generated
from operating the attraction. The increase in market
value is related to the forecast improved trading,
driven particularly by the construction of a new slide,
which is expected to generate additional income
for the attraction.

310,055

372,925

(62,870)

The valuation of the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park
is based on residual appraisal. The decrease in market
value is due to the recognition of expected costs in
relation to the Cultural and Education District project
and the changing in designated use of the associated
development platforms (i.e. less residential property
than previously assumed).

3 Mills Studios

3,350

3,000

350

LTGDC transferred assets

8,525

6,415

2,110

These sites have been valued as industrial land,
which has increased in value, using comparable evidence
to establish market value, for all bar one property,
where an estimated rental value was used.

13,310

11,390

1,920

Other sites have been valued using a mixture of
estimated rental values applying an appropriate yield
and comparable market value information from similar
sites. Both industrial and residential development land
has increased in value over the last 12 months.

372,811

425,926

(53,115)

Asset

Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park

Other assets

Total
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Basis

The Stadium is subject to a lease to let the Stadium
to E20 Stadium LLP until 2115. The Legacy Corporation
reversionary interest discounted back to the present
day is valued at £1.5m.

The 3 Mills Studio site is held on a lease with 89 years
outstanding. It has been valued on the investment
method, assuming the buildings are let as offices and
warehouses, and have adopted a market rent. The increase
in value is mainly attributable to a rise in industrial
and residential development land values over the last
12 months.
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Fair value hierarchy
Details of the Legacy Corporation’s investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy
as at 31 March 2016 are as follows (note that prior year comparators are not provided as application
of IFRS 13 for local authorities is prospective from 1 April 2015):

Fair Value as at
31 March 2016

Quoted prices in
active markets for
identical assets
(Level 1)

Other significant
observable inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
unobservable inputs
(Level 3)

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

London Aquatics Centre
and Copper Box Arena

8,600

–

8,600

–

Here East (former Press
and Broadcast Centre)

17,970

–

17,970

–

4,635

–

4,635

–

Stadium

1,500

–

–

1,500

ArcelorMittal Orbit

4,865

–

–

4,865

310,055

310,055

–

–

3 Mills Studios

3,350

3,350

–

–

LTGDC transferred assets

8,525

8,525

–

–

Asset

Multi Storey Car park

Queen Elizabeth
Olympic Park

Other assets
Total

13,310

12,450

280

580

372,811

334,380

31,485

6,945

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during the year.

ACCOUNTS

Valuation techniques used to determine Level 2 and 3 fair values for investment properties
Significant observable inputs — Level 2
The fair value for the residential properties (at market rents) has been based on the market approach
using current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets in
the local authority area. Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold
and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2
in the fair value hierarchy.
Significant unobservable inputs — Level 3
The office and commercial units located in the local authority area are measured using the income
approach, by means of the discounted cash flow method, where the expected cash flows from the
properties are discounted (using a market-derived discount rate) to establish the present value of the
net income stream. The approach has been developed using the authority’s own data requiring it to
factor in assumptions such as the duration and timing of cash inflows and outflows, rent growth,
occupancy levels, bad debt levels, maintenance costs, etc.
The authority’s office and commercial units are therefore categorised as Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy as the measurement technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair
value measurements (and there is no reasonably available information that indicates that market
participants would use different assumptions).
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Highest and Best Use of Investment Properties
In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.
Valuation Techniques
There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties.
Valuation Process for Investment Properties
The fair value of the Legacy Corporation’s investment property is measured annually at each reporting
date. All valuations are carried out externally, in accordance with the methodologies and bases for
estimation set out in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuation
experts (GL Hearn) work closely with the Legacy Corporation officers reporting directly to the Executive
Director of Finance and Corporate Services on a regular basis regarding all valuation matters.
14. Investments in joint venture
E20 Stadium LLP
The Legacy Corporation has interest in a joint venture, E20 Stadium LLP, with the London Borough of
Newham through its subsidiary Newham Legacy Investments Limited (NLI). E20 Stadium LLP is the only
joint arrangement in which the Legacy Corporation currently participates. This partnership is designed
to give the local area ownership of the Stadium and is the legal entity that now holds a 102-year
leasehold interest in the Stadium Island site and is responsible for the transformation works required
to deliver a multi-use sporting venue, which will be the permanent home of West Ham United Football
Club from 2016, and the new national competition stadium for athletics in the UK.
The following table summarises the financial information of E20 Stadium LLP as included in its own
financial statements.
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

19,810

24,386

5,830

11,526

–

–

(19,164)

(34,299)

Net assets

6,476

1,613

Revenue

3,870

–

(9,886)

(2,628)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Operating expense
Impairment
Total comprehensive loss

(99,106)

(122,114)

(105,122)

(124,742)

The total comprehensive loss of the partnership is £105.1m of which £100.7m is related to the fair
value adjustment for property, plant and equipment under construction and the remainder relates
to net costs associated with the operation of the venue in 2015/16.
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The fair value of the Stadium in these accounts was determined by external, independent property
valuers, GL Hearn Limited, who have appropriate recognised professional qualifications, by considering
what market value a hypothetical purchaser would be willing to pay. This assessment considered the
level of income that the Stadium can generate in excess of operating expenditure. As at 31 March
2016, the Stadium fair value is expected to be £22.5m (2014/15: £40.0m) once the transformation
and further enhancements to the venue work have been completed in the summer of 2016. It should
be noted that the transformation works will not be complete and the Stadium not operational until
the summer of 2016, and the first year of full operation will be 2017/18.
The movements for the year can be detailed as follows:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

–

–

Investment

90,103

110,209

Impairment

(90,103)

(110,209)

–

–

Opening balance at 1 April

Total investment in joint ventures

The Legacy Corporation invested £90.1m in E20 Stadium LLP in the year under review.

Capital commitments
The joint venture has entered into three major contracts to undertake the transformation of the
Stadium. As 31 March 2016, the remaining commitments on these contracts amount for £24.2m
(2014/15: £76.6m). The Legacy Corporation is legally committed to finance these contracts up to
a value of £3.3m (2014/15: £54.9m). The Legacy Corporation is committed to spend an additional
£1.4m on the transformation of the Stadium on engagements contracted in its own name and
recharged to the joint venture.

ACCOUNTS

The Legacy Corporation has decided to hold the investment in E20 Stadium LLP as at 31 March 2016 at
nil value. The assessment of fair value in the books of E20 Stadium LLP considers the level of income that
the former Olympic Stadium can generate in excess of operating expenditure based on an approved
business plan. Given that the transformation work is incomplete and the Stadium will not be operational
for a full year until 2017/18, the business plan is based on the forecast of future revenues, without the
benefit of operational experience. It is not unforeseeable that there is likely to be some volatility in the
business plan in the early years of operation. The Legacy Corporation has therefore made the decision
to maintain a nil valuation for its investment in the joint venture until the transformation work is
complete and the Stadium is fully operational.

Working capital commitment
The joint venture is currently dependent for its working capital on funds provided by the members.
The members have provided the partnership with undertakings that for at least twelve months from
the date of approval of these financial statements. They will also continue to make available such
funds needed until the point that it generates a surplus and no longer requires this support. After the
initial mobilisation phase, the joint venture is forecast to generate an annual surplus, which will be
returned to the taxpayer via distribution to its members.
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15. Short- and long-term debtors
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Central government bodies

937

–

Other local authorities

222

455

Short term

Other entities and individuals

17,187

21,557

18,346

22,012

Other entities and individuals

852

–

Total long-term debtors

852

–

Total short-term debtors
Long term

The non-current debtor at 31 March 2016 (£0.9m) relates to a repayable loan issued to the Foundation
for FutureLondon (FFL) charity in 2015/16.
16. Cash and cash equivalents
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

6,392

5,424

Investments

15,702

15,601

Total cash and cash equivalents

22,094

21,025

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(4,837)

(90)

Cash in hand and at bank

17. Current and non-current liabilities

Current
Central government bodies

(8,999)

(717)

Other entities and individuals

Other local authorities

(15,940)

(20,706)

Total current liabilities

(29,776)

(21,513)

(271,568)

(170,626)

(6,915)

(5,593)

(480)

(485)

Non-current
Long-term borrowing
Section 106 contributions
Stadium rent premium
Long-term creditors

(7,395)

(6,078)

Deferred tax liability

(58,475)

(53,424)

(8,805)

(9,746)

(346,243)

(239,874)

Retirement benefit obligation (pension liability)
Total non-current liabilities

The Legacy Corporation has a rolling loan facility with the Greater London Authority to finance the
Legacy Corporation’s capital expenditure serving interest at Public Works Loan Board 50-year rate.
As at 31 March 2016, the Legacy Corporation had drawn down funding to the value of £271.6m.
Interest payable as at 31 March 2016 is £8.0m.
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18. Pensions
The Legacy Corporation offers retirement benefits as part of the terms and conditions of
employment to its employees. Employees of the Legacy Corporation are members of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and the Homes and Communities Agency Pension Scheme.
Local Government Pension Scheme
The Legacy Corporation provided the opportunity for its employees to participate in the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is administered by the London Pension Fund Authority
and is a defined benefit statutory scheme where the scheme rules define the benefits independently
of the contributions payable and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of the
scheme. The LGPS is triennially valued in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations (1997). The fund’s actuaries, Barnett Waddingham, carried out a full
triennial valuation as at 31 March 2013, and the value of the liabilities as at this date has been rolled
forward. Employers’ and employees’ contributions to the scheme were determined by the actuary
following this valuation. Under pension regulations, contribution rates are set to meet 100% of the
overall liabilities of the Fund. The employers’ contribution rate for 2015/16 was 12% (2014/15: 12%).
Members pay contributions at rates correlating to pensionable salary bands. A surplus or deficit on the
account would lead to an adjustment to the contribution rates, which are reviewed every three years.
The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried out as at 31 March 2016 and will set
contributions for the period from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020.
Employer contributions of £1.0m were paid in 2015/16 (2014/15: £1.0m).The number of participating
employees was 104 active members as at 31 March 2016 (2014/15: 111 active members). There were
16 deferred pensioners and four actual pensioners at 31 March 2016.
Principal assumptions used by the actuary
31 March 2015

%

%

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:
Men
Women

23.0
25.6

22.9
25.5

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men
Women

25.3
27.9

25.2
27.7

Rate of inflation

3.4%

3.4%

Rate of increase in salaries

4.3%

4.4%

Rate of increase in pensions

2.5%

2.6%

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities

3.9%

3.5%

Mortality assumptions

ACCOUNTS

31 March 2016
Expected return on assets

The term of the employer’s liabilities is estimated at 27 years.
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Amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Service cost

1,837

1,395

Total included in net cost of services

1,837

1,395

410

320

16

13

Net interest on the defined liability
Administration expenses
Total included in deficit on provision of services before tax
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset
Deferred tax asset on the net defined benefit liability
Total

426

333

(2,723)

4,079

503

(2,436)

43

3,371

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

22,588

15,921

1,837

1,270

645

604

Reconciliation of present value of the defined benefit obligation

Opening balance
Current service cost
Contributions by scheme participants
Change in financial assumptions

(3,192)

4,274

Past service costs, including curtailments

–

125

Estimated benefits paid net of transfers in

(409)

(348)

795

742

22,264

22,588

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

10,406

8,545

Interest cost
Closing defined benefit obligation

Reconciliation of fair value of scheme assets

Opening balance
Interests on assets

385

422

(469)

195

Administration expenses

(16)

(13)

Contributions by scheme participants

645

604

Contributions by the Legacy Corporation including unfunded benefits

984

1,001

(409)

(348)

11,526

10,406

Return on assets less interest

Estimated benefit paid (net of transfers in and including unfunded)
Fair value of scheme assets as at 31 March
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The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Legacy Corporation’s obligation in respect
of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Deferred tax asset on the defined benefit obligation
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(22,264)

(22,588)

11,526

10,406

1,933

2,436

(8,805)

(9,746)

Local Government Pension Scheme assets comprised
31 March 2016

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

31 March 2015

£’000

%

£’000

%

Equities

5,355

43%

4,514

43%

LDI / cash flow matching

1,168

8%

781

8%

Target return portfolio

2,452

29%

3,008

29%

Infrastructure

631

5%

516

5%

Commodities

52

1%

97

1%

411

3%

295

3%

Cash

1,457

11%

1,195

11%

Total

11,526

100%

10,406

100%

Employer asset share — bid value

Property

Sensitivity analysis

£’000

£’000

£’000

Adjustment to discount rates

+ 0.1%

0.0%

− 0.1%

21,685

22,264

22,859

Projected service cost

1,480

1,521

1,563

Adjustment to long-term salary increase

+ 0.1%

0.0%

− 0.1%

22,375

22,264

22,154

Projected service cost

1,522

1,521

1,520

Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation

+ 0.1%

0.0%

− 0.1%

22,756

22,264

21,786

1,563

1,521

1,480

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption

+ 1 Year

None

− 1 Year

Present value of total obligation

22,868

22,264

21,676

1,560

1,521

1,483

Present value of total obligation

Present value of total obligation

Present value of total obligation
Projected service cost

Projected service cost
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Sensitivity analysis
The following table sets out the impact of a small change in the discount rates on the defined
benefit obligation and projected service cost along with a +/− year age rating adjustment to the
mortality assumption.
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Impact on the Legacy Corporation’s cash flows
The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the
Legacy Corporation in the year to 31 March 2017 is £1.0m.
Homes and Communities Agency Pension Scheme
The Homes and Communities Agency Pension Scheme is a defined benefits scheme but has been
accounted for as if it were a defined contribution plan. The Homes and Communities Agency Pension
Scheme is exempt from defined benefit accounting as the pension scheme exposes participating entities
to actuarial risks associated with the current and former employees of other entities, with the result
that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, plan assets and cost to
individual entities participating in the pension scheme.
As at 31 March 2016, the overall deficit of the pension scheme was £209m, of which the Legacy
Corporation’s share represents 0.151% (£0.3m).
Contributions on behalf of the two employees who are members of the above scheme are accounted
for in operating costs and amount to £35,110 in the year to 31 March 2016 (2015: £31,145).
19. Cash flow notes
a. Adjustments to net deficit for non-cash movement
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

388

404

40

29

2,263

1,728

–

–

90,103

110,209

Cash payments for employer’s contributions to pension funds

(984)

(1,001)

(Increase) in trade and other debtors

1,691

(1,889)

12,222

(23,230)

5,051

52,821

64

(46)

Other non-cash movement

–

–

Net book value of non-current assets disposal

–

–

64,986

(215,711)

–

(16)

(5)

–

175,819

(76,703)

Capital grants on contributions credited
to the deficit on the provision of services

8,596

(7,191)

Gain/loss on sale of investment property

3,145

–

Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangibles
Reversal of defined benefit pensions services costs
Increase in interest debtors
Reversal of impairment on investment in joint venture

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liability
Increase in bad debt provision

Changes in fair value of investment property
Tax paid
Stadium lease premium
Adjustment to net deficit for non-cash movements
Adjust for items included in the net deficit on the provisions
of services that are investing or financing activities

80

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

b. Investing activities
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Purchase of property, plant and equipment,
investment property and intangible assets

(23,423)

(37,687)

Investment in joint venture

(90,103)

(110,209)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets proceeds from sale of land and buildings

3,145

–

Capital grant received and other capital receipts

8,596

2,798

(101,786)

(145,098)

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

100,942

170,626

(3,016)

(2,267)

1,322

1,694

99,248

170,053

Net cash outflow from investing activities

c. Financing activities

Borrowings
Movement on OPTEMS fund
Movement on S106 fund
Net cash flow from financing activities

20. Reserves
Usable reserves
At the end of the financial year, the Legacy Corporation had negative usable reserves of £41.9m
in the General Fund.

ACCOUNTS

Due to a significant increase in the fair value of the Legacy Corporation’s investment properties, the
Legacy Corporation recognised a net deferred tax charge of £50.4m in 2014/15 — this liability increased
by net £5.1m in 2015/16. The liability will crystallise in future years as and when the Legacy Corporation
recovers the carrying amount of the assets to which it relates through the disposal of its investment
property portfolio.
The Code does not provide guidance on how to treat such a liability within the Statement of Accounts,
therefore the Legacy Corporation is required to revert to International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
account for the liability according to IAS 12 (Income Taxes). Doing so results in the full liability being
charged to the General Fund in the year that it arises, rather than at the time when the asset’s carrying
amount is realised and the related liability crystallises.
The resulting negative General Fund balance as at 31 March 2016 does not therefore reflect the true
underlying performance of the Legacy Corporation. The following table shows the General Fund balance
with the impact of the deferred tax disclosed separately. The balance before recognition of deferred tax
is £13.5m, which is considered appropriate for the Legacy Corporation’s current and future financial
challenges, excluding deferred tax.
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General fund

Balance as at 1 April (excluding deferred tax)
Movements (excluding deferred tax)
Balance at 31 March before recognition of deferred tax
Deferred tax — balance brought forward
Deferred tax — movement in year
Balance at 31 March

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(12,869)

(4,945)

(630)

(7,924)

(13,499)

(12,869)

50,385

–

5,051

50,385

41,937

37,516

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(104,341)

(259,621)

10,738

12,182

66

72

(93,537)

(247,368)

Unusable reserves

Capital Adjustment Account
Pensions reserve
Accumulated Absences Account
Balance unusable reserves at 31 March

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements
for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement
elements of those assets under statutory provisions. The account is debited with the cost of acquisition,
construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The account is credited with the amounts set aside
by the Legacy Corporation for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement. The account
contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated
or transferred assets that have yet to be consumed by the Legacy Corporation.
The pensions reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions. The Legacy Corporation accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service,
updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns
on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However statutory arrangements require benefits
earned to be financed as the Legacy Corporation makes employee contributions to pension funds
or eventually pays any pension for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the pensions
reserve therefore shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the
resources that the Legacy Corporation has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements
will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General
Fund balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave
entitlement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General
Fund balance is neutralised by transfers to or from the account.
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Further breakdown within unusable reserves is shown below.
Capital Adjustment Account
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(259,621)

(155,431)

428

433

(11,741)

(7,191)

11,504

8,070

155,089

(105,503)

–

–

(104,341)

(259,621)

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Balance as at 1 April

12,182

7,376

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset)

(2,723)

4,079

Reversal of charges relating to retirement benefits

2,263

1,728

Employer’s pension contribution and direct payments
to pensioners payable in the year

(984)

(1,001)

10,738

12,182

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

72

121

(72)

(121)

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year

66

72

Balance at 31 March

66

72

6

49

Balance as at 1 April
Charges for depreciation and amortisation
Capital grants and contributions applied
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Revaluation/(impairment) charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement
Deferred tax liability on revaluation charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement in the fair value of loan charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Balance at 31 March

Pensions reserve

Accumulated absences reserve

Balance as at 1 April
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement on a accrual basis is different
from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with the
statutory requirements

ACCOUNTS

Balance at 31 March

21. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding under regulations
This note details the adjustments that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement recognised by the Legacy Corporation in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Legacy
Corporation to meet capital and revenue expenditure.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

General
Fund

Capital
Receipts
Reserves

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

Total
usable
reserves

Movement
in unusable
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(427)

–

–

(427)

427

(64,986)

–

–

(64,986)

64,986

–

–

–

–

–

Impairment of joint venture investment

(90,103)

–

–

(90,103)

90,103

Capital grants and contributions applied

8,596

–

–

8,596

(8,596)

(11,504)

–

–

(11,504)

11,504

3,145

(3,145)

–

–

–

3,145

(3,145)

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation amortisation and impairment of non-current assets
Movements in the market value of investment property
Deferred tax liability on the movements
in the market value of investment properties

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

3,145

Adjustments involving the pensions reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in year

(2,263)

–

–

(2,263)

2,263

984

–

–

984

(984)

6

–

–

6

(6)

(156,552)

–

–

(156,552)

156,552

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total adjustments

84

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

For the year ended 31 March 2015

General
Fund

Capital
Receipts
Reserves

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

Total
usable
reserves

Movement
in unusable
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(433)

–

–

(433)

433

215,711

–

–

215,711

(215,711)

–

–

–

–

–

Impairment of joint venture investment

(110,209)

–

–

(110,209)

110,209

Capital grants and contributions applied

7,191

–

–

7,191

(7,191)

(8,070)

–

–

(8,070)

8,070

–

–

–

–

–

(1,728)

–

–

(1,728)

1,728

1,001

–

–

1,001

(1,001)

49

–

–

49

(49)

103,512

–

–

103,512

(103,512)

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation amortisation and impairment of non-current assets
Movements in the market value of investment property
Deferred tax liability on the movements
in the market value of investment properties

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Net gain/loss on disposal on non-current assets charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Adjustments involving the pensions reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in year
Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total adjustments

22. Trading operations
The Legacy Corporation reflects seven trading operations in its management accounts:
3 Mills Studios: The Legacy Corporation holds a 99-year lease over 3 Mills Studios from Lee Valley
Regional Park Authority, of which the unexpired term is 88 years. The Studios were managed in the
year to 31 March 2016 by Deloitte Real Estate (who have since been acquired by Knight Frank and
the contract novated) on behalf of the Legacy Corporation.
ArcelorMittal Orbit: The ArcelorMittal Orbit is managed by Engie (formerly known as Cofely) on behalf
of the Legacy Corporation and was opened to the public in April 2014. The revenues from the ArcelorMittal
Orbit mainly comprise ticketing sales, catering sales and fees, charges relating to private functions and
special events. A new Slide launched in June 2016; it is the tallest and longest tunnel slide in the world.
The Podium: The Podium Bar and Kitchen located close to the base of the ArcelorMittal Orbit contains
the East Twenty Bar and Kitchen and hospitality suite. Engie pay the Legacy Corporation a rent and
service charges for the premises, with a potential turnover share.
London Aquatics Centre and Copper Box Arena: The Copper Box Arena, a multi-use arena that
played host to a number of events during the London 2012 Games, and the London Aquatics Centre,
a world-class swimming facility, are both operated by Greenwich Leisure Limited. The venue has had
over 1.8m visitors since it opened in April 2014, with 3,000 school children attending weekly
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lessons and 3,500 young people signed up to the Better Swim School programme. With its iconic
design, it attracts visitors to the Park, providing economic benefits to the wider area.
Timber Lodge: The Timber Lodge Café started to operate in July 2013. The Legacy Corporation
has a head lease from Lee Valley Regional Park Authority for the Timber Lodge, which is operated
by The Camden Society. The venue provides space to be rented out to community groups and
local businesses.
Off-Park properties: Off-Park properties were transferred over from the former London Development
Agency and former London Thames Gateway Development Corporation and are predominantly
located in the areas neighbouring the Park. The majority are in Hackney Wick and to the south of
Stratford High Street in Bromley-by-Bow and are currently managed by Hartnell Taylor Cook LLP.
The Legacy Corporation receives rental and service charge income from these properties.
Operation

3 Mills

Turnover

31 March 2016

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(3,903)

(3,565)

3,385

2,992

–

–

Expenditure
EFM
Deficit/(surplus)
ArcelorMittal
Orbit

(518)

Turnover

(965)

(1,218)

Expenditure

1,362

1,891

265

–

EFM
Deficit/(surplus)
The Podium

Turnover
Expenditure
EFM

662

Turnover
Expenditure
EFM

(153)

11

–

167

–
(141)

Turnover
Expenditure
EFM

(37)

1,537

319

800

–
2,278

Turnover
Expenditure
EFM

(113)

(132)

473

458

–
261

Turnover
Expenditure

360

(82)

(88)

16

20

102

–

Deficit/(surplus)
Off-Park assets

282

(65)

Deficit/(surplus)
Timber Lodge

(153)

(59)

Deficit/(surplus)
Copper Box Arena

673

(319)

Deficit/(surplus)
London
Aquatics Centre

(573)

36

(68)

(882)

–

264

–

EFM
Deficit/(surplus)
Net deficit on trading operations

86

(618)

–

1,960
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Trading operations are incorporated into the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
now include a recharge of Estates and Facilities Management costs. As all the venues used for trading are
classified as investment properties all income and expenditure is recognised as income and expenditure
in relation to investment property (see note 13).
Estates and facilities management (EFM) costs are now apportioned as a percentage to each venue
according to square footage to better present their full cost. The above table distinguishes these from
other costs to enable a year-on-year comparison of performance to be made.
The increase in the London Aquatics Centre deficit in 2015/16 is mainly driven by increased rates and
utilities costs, incurred by the venue in 2014/15 but which are charged to the Legacy Corporation in
the current year via the surplus/deficit share arrangement with the venue operator, Greenwich Leisure
Limited. It is anticipated that the venue will always require some level of subsidy, however this will be
offset in part through opportunities to reduce cost and increase income — for example through a
naming rights sponsor and rental income for areas such as the Upper Welcome Zone. Moreover, as a
tenant on the Park, the venue operator pays the Fixed Estate Charge. Additional work is also underway
to improve the management of the building to reduce utility costs, for example the introduction of
ceiling fans in the main competition area to drive heat back down to pool-side level.
Summary

Income in relation to investment property

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(6,275)

(5,175)

Expenditure in relation to investment property

8,235

5,695

Net deficit on trading operations charged to financing and investment

1,960

521

ACCOUNTS

23. Related party transactions
The Legacy Corporation is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Legacy Corporation or to be controlled
or influenced by the Legacy Corporation. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess
the extent to which the Legacy Corporation might have been constrained in its ability to operate
independently, or might have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely
with the Legacy Corporation.
The related parties to the Legacy Corporation are central government, other public bodies (including
the Greater London Authority), entities controlled or significantly influenced by the Legacy Corporation,
and its Members and Executive Management Team. This note has been prepared on a payments and
receipts basis.
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Central government and other public bodies — income and expenditure
All relationships were as delivery partners to the Legacy Corporation and significant transactions
for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016 were as follows:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(37,125)

(42,633)

(5,630)

(11,846)

(213)

(225)

(44)

(41)

–

(160)

(25)

(210)

(1)

–

Income
Greater London Authority¹
E20 Stadium LLP²
Transport for London³
London Borough of Newham

4

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority
London Borough of Hackney

5

London Borough of Waltham Forest

6

London Borough of Barking and Dagenham

(3)

(4)

Foundation for Future London (FFL)7

(184)

–

London Borough of Tower Hamlets8

(186)

–

8,190

215

1,647

617

1,016

1,606

Expenditure
Greater London Authority1
Transport for London

3

London Borough of Newham

4

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority
London Borough of Hackney5
London Borough of Waltham Forest6
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham

79

81

2,872

1,103

161

60

–

24

7

486

384

8

734

138

10

–

Olympic Delivery Authority

–

580

Crossrail Limited

–

85

Foundation for Future London (FFL)
London Borough of Tower Hamlets
London Borough of Haringey
9

¹	Until 5 May 2015 Boris Johnson was the Chairman and a member of the Legacy Corporation Board he was also the Mayor of London. Neale Coleman was LLDC Deputy
Chairman until June 2015 and then LLDC Chairman until September 2015, he was also the GLA’s Mayoral Advisor on Tottenham and the Olympic and Paralympic Legacy.
Until May 2016 LLDC Board member John Biggs was a London Assembly Member.
2
	LLDC Board members Sir Robin Wales, David Gregson and Nicky Dunn are E20 Stadium LLP board members. LLDC Chairman David Edmonds is Chairman of E20 Stadium
LLP. LLDC Chief Executive Officer David Goldstone is a E20 Stadium LLP board member.
3
	Until June 2016 LLDC Board member Baroness Grey-Thompson was a Transport for London (TfL) board member. Previous Chair of LLDC Boris Johnson was also previously
Chairman of the TfL board.
4
LLDC Board member Sir Robin Wales is Mayor of Newham.
5
LLDC Board member Jules Pipe is Mayor of Hackney.
6
LLDC Board member Cllr Chris Robbins is Leader of Waltham Forest council.
7
	In April 2015, The Legacy List merged with a newly formed independent charity The Foundation for Future London (FFL). LLDC Chairman David Edmonds is a FFL Board
Member. LLDC Chief Executive Officer David Goldstone is a FFL Board Observer. Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services Gerry Murphy is a FFL Trustee.
8
	John Biggs, the Mayor of Tower Hamlets, was appointed as a LLDC board member on 9 July 2015. Previously Lutfur Rahman was the Mayor of Tower Hamlets and
so a LLDC board member.
9
	Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services Gerry Murphy was a Chief Operating Officer of the Olympic Delivery Authority, which is now dissolved.
Neale Coleman was LLDC Deputy Chairman until June 2015 and then LLDC Chairman until September 2015 was also an Olympic Delivery Authority board member.
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Members and Executive Management Team — income and expenditure
Members of the Legacy Corporation have direct control over the Legacy Corporation’s financial
and operating policies. The total of Members’ allowances paid in 2015/16 is shown in note 6.
Members and the Executive Management Team were required to complete a declaration regarding
any related party transactions with the Legacy Corporation, which are subject to external audit.
Other related parties transactions for Members are disclosed as follows:
Organisation

Income 31
March 2016

Income 31
March 2015

Expenditure
31 March 2016

Expenditure
31 March 2015

Nature of relationship

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Bromley By
Bow Centre

–

(1)

39

74

Deloitte

–

–

348

942

KPMG LLP

–

–

181

1,692

(66)

(43)

–

–

LLDC Member Nick Bitel is a Board
member of the London and Surrey
Cycling Partnership

Nightingale
Consultants

–

–

2

1

Partner to Director of
Communication, Marketing and
Strategy Ben Fletcher is a Director
of Nightingale Consultants

Precise Media
Group

–

–

35

57

LLDC Board Member David
Gregson was Chairman of Precise
Media Group.

PwC

–

–

7

433

(95)

–

–

–

London and
Surrey Cycling
Partnership

Partner to Executive Director
of Development Rosanna Lawes
is a Director of Deloitte
LLDC Member Baroness GreyThompson is a member of the
Diversity and Inclusion Board
of KPMG LLP

LLDC Member Nicky Dunn
was engaged by PwC Ireland
as a consultant

ACCOUNTS

Sport England

LLDC Chair of the Regeneration
and Communities Committee Lord
Mawson also Founder and President
of Bromley By Bow Centre.

LLDC Chief Executive Officer David
Goldstone is a Sport England Board
Member. LLDC Member Nick Bitel
is the Sport England Chairman.
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Related parties — outstanding balances
Outstanding balances with related parties as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
Organisation

E20 Stadium LLP
London Borough of Barking and Dagenham
Greater London Authority

Income
31 March 2016

Income
31 March 2015

Expenditure
31 March 2016

Expenditure
31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(5,439)

(11,846)

–

–

–

(4)

–

–

(175)

–

279,591

–

London Borough of Newham

–

(5)

–

–

London Borough of Hackney

(30)

(210)

–

–

Lee Valley Regional Park Authority

–

(43)

2

–

Transport for London

–

(195)

–

–

London and Surrey Cycling Partnership

–

1

–

–

(42)

–

–

–

Foundation for Future London (FFL)

24. Operating leases
a. Leases as lessee
At 31 March, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases are:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Within one year

1,765

4,961

Between 2–5 years

4,504

5,143

36,457

37,583

42,726

47,687

Over five years

On 31 March 2015, the Legacy Corporation signed the Olympic Waterways Legacy (OWL) Agreement
with the Canal River Trust.
The rent payable for the Waterways lease with the Canal River Trust is contingent and therefore has not
been included in the future minimum lease payments. It shall be revised on 1 January 2022 and annually
thereafter for the remainder of the lease period. The amount due will be based on the number of existing
outfalls, taking into account the number of new, abandoned or surrendered outfalls in the year.
Amounts recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Rent payable in year
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31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

1,623

1,101

1,623

1,101
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b. Leases as lessor
Details of properties leased include:
•	London Aquatics Centre and Copper Box Arena: Greenwich Leisure Limited has been appointed
as the operator of the London Aquatics Centre and Copper Box Arena under a ten-year arrangement;
•	Stadium: leased to E20 Stadium LLP under a 102-year lease arrangement;
•	Here East: leased to iCITY (London) Limited over a 200-year lease;
•	Off-Park rental properties: currently leased by a mixture of industrial and residential tenants;
•	Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park: various cafe and kiosks leased across the Park, including the Podium
and Timber Lodge.
•	Chobham Manor: leased to Chobham Manor LLP for residential and business development over
a 250-year lease.
At 31 March, the future minimum lease (at nominal value) receivables under non-cancellable leases are:

Within one year
Between 2–5 years
Over five years

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

3,038

2,907

10,538

11,022

439,491

441,820

453,067

455,749

Amounts recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Rent receivable in year

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

2,047

1,576

2,047

1,576

ACCOUNTS
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25. Capital expenditure and capital financing
The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together
with the resources that have been used to finance it.
Financial assets

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

168,580

17,072

Property plant and equipment

11,605

570

Investment property

11,871

39,800

Investment in joint venture

90,103

110,209

50

50

11,504

8,070

852

–

Opening capital financing requirement
Capital investment

Intangible assets
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Loans to third parties
Sources of finance
Government grants and other contributions

(11,741)

(7,191)

282,824

168,580

Opening capital financing requirement

168,580

17,072

Increase/(decrease) in underlying need to borrow

114,244

151,508

Closing capital financing requirement

282,824

168,580

Closing capital financing requirement
Explanation of movement in year
Sources of finance

The Capital Financing Requirement represents the underlying need for the Legacy Corporation to borrow
for capital purposes. It increases when capital expenditure in any year is not financed immediately by use
of capital receipts, application of capital grants, third party loans or a direct charge to revenue.
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26. Financial instruments
Categories of financial instruments
The following categories of financial instruments are carried in the balance sheet:
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Loans and receivable at amortised costs

12,750

21,155

Net cash and cash equivalents

22,094

21,025

852

–

35,696

42,180

(6,969)

(11,583)

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

(278,963)

(176,704)

Total financial liabilities

(285,932)

(188,287)

Financial assets
Current

Non-current
Loans and receivable at amortised costs
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Current
Financial liabilities at amortised costs
Non-current

Financial instruments are defined as contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity of another. The figures included in the balance sheet are adjusted
to exclude items that are deemed exempt. This includes but is not limited to accruals, prepayments,
receipts in advance and statutory debts.
Income, expense, gains and losses

Interest income

2015/16
Financial assets:
loans and
receivables

2014/15
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised costs

2014/15
Financial assets:
loans and
receivables

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

8,023

–

–

–

–

(21)

–

(6)

–

(6)

Net fair value adjustment
on initial recognition
Total in surplus or deficit
in provision of services

ACCOUNTS

Interest expense

2015/16
Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised costs

148
8,023

127

Fair values of assets and liabilities
Financial liabilities, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term creditors
are carried in the balance sheet at amortised cost. Under the Code, the Legacy Corporation is required
to disclose information comparing the fair values and carrying values for those financial instruments
whose carrying value is not a reasonable approximation for fair value.
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The following table gives this information:
2015/16
Carrying amount

2015/16
Fair value

2014/15
Carrying amount

2014/15
Fair value

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

Financial assets
Loans and receivable

13,602

13,602

21,155

21,185

Cash and cash equivalents

22,094

22,130

21,025

21,025

Total financial assets

35,696

35,732

42,180

42,210

(271,568)

(319,504)

(170,626)

(170,641)

Short-term creditors

(6,969)

(6,969)

(11,583)

(11,583)

Long-term creditors

(7,395)

(7,395)

(6,078)

(6,078)

(285,932)

(333,868)

(188,287)

(188,302)

Financial liabilities at amortised costs
Borrowings

Total financial liabilities

Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, the carrying amount is assumed to
approximate to fair value. Hence, short-term debtors and creditors are carried at cost as this is a fair
approximation of their value (Fair Value Level 2).
Borrowings consist entirely of capital loan funding from the Greater London Authority. The fair value
of the loan has been valued by Capita Asset Services using Level 2 inputs.
The long-term creditors consisted mostly of Section 106 obligations and Community Infrastructure
Levy collected on behalf of the Mayor of London — these are measured using Level 2 inputs.
Material soft loans made by the Legacy Corporation
Loan to Foundation for FutureLondon
The loan to Foundation for FutureLondon (FFL) is deemed to be a material soft loan — the loan is an
interest-free loan of £1.0m to FFL as at 31 March 2016.

Nominal value of new loans granted in the year
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition
Increase in the discounted amount
Closing balance at the end of the year
Nominal value at 31 March

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

1,000

–

(181)

–

33

–

852

–

1,000

–

The interest rate at which the fair value of this soft loan has been made is arrived at by taking the Legacy
Corporation’s prevailing cost of borrowing (3.41% average during 2015/16) and adding an allowance for
risk that the loan might not be repaid by FFL (20% based on its time in existence).
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Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments
The Legacy Corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, primarily:
•	Treasury management risk — the risk of cash deposits not actually being secure or earning
appropriate interest;
• Credit risk — the possibility other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Legacy Corporation;
•	Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Legacy Corporation may not have the funds available to meet
its commitments to make payments as they arise; and
• Market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise as a result of changes in interest rates.
Treasury management risk
Maintaining affordability of borrowings, preserving invested principal and maintaining prudent levels
of liquidity are the key treasury management objectives of the Legacy Corporation. The execution and
operational aspects of investment and borrowing, together with the management of external advisors,
are delegated to the Greater London Authority (GLA) under a shared service agreement managed by
the Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Services. The nature of the Legacy Corporation’s
current funding model means treasury operations are focussed on the management of short-term
cash balances. The objectives are security of capital, meeting the organisation’s operational cash flow
requirements and obtaining the best available yield from balances available for investment. The priorities
are ranked in that order, security, liquidity then yield. A risk sharing agreement ensures risk and return
relating to each instrument within the jointly controlled portfolio are shared in direct proportion to each
participant’s investment. The Legacy Corporation has currently invested £15.7m in the GLA Group
Investment Syndicate (GIS) and does not expect any losses in relation to the investments placed.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the possibility that other parties may not pay amounts due to the Legacy Corporation.
The Legacy Corporation carries out certain functions for which charges are levied and for which invoices
have to be raised. Prior to most contracts being agreed, creditworthiness checks on potential suppliers
or business partners are performed.
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The table below shows the gross amounts due to the Legacy Corporation from its financial assets,
and the amounts which have been impaired due to likely uncollectability. The net carrying value which
is shown on the balance sheet represents the maximum credit risk to which the Legacy Corporation
is exposed.
As at 31 March 2016
£’000
Deposits with financial institutions

Gross value

Impairment value

Net value

22,073

22,073

21

21

Debtors with joint venture entity

6,433

6,433

Trade debtors

6,376

(59)

6,317

852

–

852

35,755

(59)

35,696

Accrued interest on deposits

Loans to third parties
Total exposure

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Legacy Corporation will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The Legacy Corporation’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to its reputation.

95

London Legacy Development Corporation

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and given to the GLA to inform cash drawdown and an agreement
is in place for emergency cash drawdown available within 24 hours should the need arise. The Legacy
Corporation also maintains a prudent balance of cash with its bankers to ensure that its liquidity
objective is met. Borrowing within the prescribed limits is permissible where so doing represents
prudent management of the Legacy Corporation’s affairs although direct borrowing for capital
expenditure from third parties is not currently authorised.
The table below shows the long-term borrowing of the Legacy Corporation by date of maturity.
2015/16

2014/15

£’000

£’000

Maturing in 1–2 years

(60,902)

37,235

Maturing in 2–5 years

(12,164)

34,878

(205,897)

104,591

–

–

(278,962)

176,704

–

906

(278,962)

177,610

Maturing in 5–10 years
Maturing in more than 10 years
Long-term financial liabilities with more than one year to mature
Long-term financial liabilities maturing within one year
Total financial liabilities

27. Contingent liabilities
The Legacy Corporation recognises the following contingent liabilities and asset:
ArcelorMittal Orbit loan
A loan of £11.3m (principal £9.2m plus unpaid interest), taken out to part fund the construction of
the ArcelorMittal Orbit is repayable to ArcelorMittal Orbit Limited from future profits from the operation
of the ArcelorMital Orbit as and when they are generated (firstly against interest on the loan then
50% against the principal thereafter). A discounted projected cash flow was used for calculation of
the carrying amount. The projected cash flows result in the carrying value of the loan being set at nil.
This position remains despite the improvement in forecasted income expected from the enhancement
of the venue with the addition of a slide, expected to be complete in June 2016. The Legacy Corporation
accordingly recognises a contingent liability in respect of the loan.
Parkes Street relocation warranty
The Legacy Corporation considers that a contingent liability should be disclosed in regard to
the relocation of a road near the Here East building on the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park. Whilst the
construction work will be done by Here East’s contractor Laings, under direction of Here East, and
at the cost of the East Wick and Sweetwater (EWS) Developers, the Legacy Corporation has provided
a warranty such that until the EWS Development Agreement (DA) goes unconditional (expected to
be in June 2016), it will provide an indemnity to the EWS Developer for the cost of the road and
fees up to a maximum sum of £1.0m (capped).
VAT partial recovery rate
In 2014/15, the Legacy Corporation disclosed a contingent liability regarding the historic VAT
recovery rate from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2015. LLDC has now agreed the Partial Exemption Special
Method with HMRC for VAT recovery on residual costs from the relevant period. This is predicted to
result in a repayment of overpaid VAT by HMRC to the Legacy Corporation, however the exact amount
is dependent upon the submission of revised VAT returns for that period, which will need to be
examined and approved by HMRC.

96

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

GROUP ACCOUNTS
Introduction
The Legacy Corporation has an interest in a joint venture, E20 Stadium LLP, with the London
Borough of Newham through its subsidiary Newham Legacy Investments Limited. This means that
the Legacy Corporation’s own financial statements may not fully reflect its activities.
The aim of the Group accounts is to give an overall picture of the activities of the Legacy Corporation
and the resources used to carry out those activities.
Basis of preparation of Group accounts
The Code requires local authorities with material interests in joint ventures to prepare Group financial
statements. Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Group has joint control,
established by contractual agreement and requiring the venture’s unanimous consent for strategic
financial and operating decisions. The Group’s financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Legacy Corporation and its joint venture E20 Stadium LLP as at the year end.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted investment) and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group financial statements include the Group’s share of the total comprehensive
income and equity movements of equity-accounted investment, from the date that significant influence
or joint control commences until the date that significant influence or joint control ceases.
The figures included in these accounts for E20 Stadium LLP are draft figures subject to audit.
There are no material differences between the accounting policies adopted by E20 Stadium LLP
and those of the Legacy Corporation.

ACCOUNTS
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
All note numbers below make reference to notes from the entity accounts, except the notes number
starting with G, which are specific to the Group accounts and can be found in the notes to the
Group financial statements section.
For the year ended 31 March 2016
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Notes

£’000

£’000

Gross income1

2

(41,525)

(45,917)

Gross expenditure1

4

31,143

35,041

(10,382)

(10,876)

7

(10,158)

(7,448)

13

64,986

(215,711)

Financing and investment expenditure

8

28,847

19,268

Capital grants and contributions

9

Net cost of services
Financing and investment income
Change in fair value of investment properties

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services before tax

(8,596)

(7,191)

64,697

(221,958)

Share of the (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services of joint venture

G1

103,591

123,864

Corporation tax

10

619

313

Deferred tax

10

5,051

52,821

173,958

(44,960)

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of services after tax
Other comprehensive income and expenditure
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset
Total comprehensive income and expenditure

18

(2,220)

1,643

171,738

(43,317)

¹	All the Legacy Corporation’s services are classified under CIPFA Services Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) for Local Authority Accounting in the UK as Olympic legacy.
This classification is consistent with the disclosure in the group accounts of the Greater London Authority.
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Group balance sheet
As at 31 March 2016
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Notes

£’000

£’000

Intangible assets

11

92

70

Property, plant and equipment

12

13,424

2,207

Investment property

13

372,810

425,925

Long-term debtors

15

852

–

387,178

428,202

Long-term assets

Current assets
Short-term debtors

15

18,346

22,012

Cash and cash equivalents

16

22,094

21,025

40,440

43,037

427,618

471,239

(29,776)

(21,513)

(29,776)

(21,513)

Total assets
Current liabilities
Short-term creditors

17

Long-term liabilities
17

(271,568)

(170,626)

Long-term creditors

17

(7,395)

(6,078)

Deferred tax liability

10

(58,475)

(53,424)

Retirement benefit obligation

18

(8,805)

(9,746)

Investment in joint venture

G1

(28,198)

(14,711)

(374,441)

(254,585)

(404,217)

(276,098)

23,401

195,141

Total liabilities
Net assets
Reserves
Usable reserves

G2

41,937

37,516

Unusable reserves

G2

(65,338)

(232,657)

(23,401)

(195,141)

Total reserves

ACCOUNTS

Long-term borrowing
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Group movement in reserves statement
As at 31 March 2016

Notes

At 1 April 2015

Unusable
reserves

Total
unusable
and other
reserves

Total
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

37,516

(232,657)

(232,657)

(195,140)

General
Fund

Total
usable
reserve

£’000
37,516

Movement in reserves
during 2015/16
Deficit on the provision of services

From CIES

70,367

70,367

–

–

70,367

Authority’s share of the reserves of
subsidiaries associated and joint ventures

From CIES

103,591

103,591

–

–

103,591

Other comprehensive
income and expenditure

From CIES

503

503

(2,723)

(2,723)

(2,220)

174,461

174,461

(2,723)

(2,723)

171,738

(170,041)

(170,041)

170,041

170,041

–

–

–

–

–

4,420

4,420

167,318

167,318

171,738

41,936

41,936

(65,339)

(65,339)

(23,402)

General
Fund

Total
usable
reserve

Unusable
reserves

Total
unusable
and other
reserves

Total
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(4,945)

(4,945)

(146,878)

(146,878)

(151,823)

Total comprehensive
income and expenditure
Adjustments between accounting
and funding basis under regulations

G3

Transfer to reserve
Decrease/(increase) in 2015/16
Balance at 31 March 2016

As at 31 March 2015

Notes

At 1 April 2014
Movement in reserves
during 2014/15
Deficit on the provision of services

From CIES

(168,824)

(168,824)

–

–

(168,824)

Authority’s share of the reserves of
subsidiaries associated and joint ventures

From CIES

123,864

123,864

–

–

123,864

Other comprehensive
income and expenditure

From CIES

(2,436)

(2,436)

4,079

4,079

1,643

(47,396)

(47,396)

4,079

4,079

(43,317)

89,858

89,858

(89,858)

(89,858)

–

–

–

–

–

Total comprehensive
income and expenditure
Adjustments between accounting
and funding basis under regulations

G3

Transfer to reserve

100

Decrease/(increase) in 2014/15

42,462

42,462

(85,779)

(85,779)

(43,317)

Balance at 31 March 2015

37,517

37,517

(232,657)

(232,657)

(195,140)
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Group statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes
Surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(173,958)

44,960

Adjustments to net (deficit) for non-cash movements

G4

189,305

(63,047)

Adjustments for items included in the net (deficit) on the
provision or services that are investing and financing activities

G4

(11,741)

(7,191)

3,606

(25,278)

Investing activities

G4

(101,786)

(145,098)

Financing activities

G4

99,248

170,053

1,069

(323)

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year

21,025

21,348

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

22,094

21,025

Net cash flows from operating activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

ACCOUNTS
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Notes to the Group financial statements
The notes below give information on the areas that have materially changed on consolidation
of the Group entities into the Legacy Corporation’s individual accounts.
G1. Joint venture
The table below reconciles the summarised financial information of E20 Stadium LLP as included
in its own draft financial statements to the carrying amount of the Legacy Corporation’s interest
in E20 Stadium LLP.
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

19,810

24,386

5,830

11,526

–

–

(19,164)

(34,299)

6,476

1,613

Group’s share of net assets

(28,198)

(14,711)

Carrying amount of interest in joint venture

(28,198)

(14,711)

3,870

–

(9,886)

(2,628)

(99,106)

(122,114)

Total comprehensive loss

(105,122)

(124,742)

Group’s share of total comprehensive loss

(103,591)

(123,864)

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets

Revenue
Operating expense
Impairment

In accordance with the Members’ Agreement between the Legacy Corporation and Newham
Legacy Investments Limited (NLI), any impairment loss will be firstly offset in full against the Legacy
Corporation’s capital contribution before any call is made on the contribution made by the London
Borough of Newham through NLI. As a result, the share of loss taken by the Legacy Corporation
amounts for 98.5% (2014/15: 99.3%) of the total loss of the partnership and the Legacy Corporation
has a liability of £28.2m (2014/15: £14.7m) at the year-end in respect of its participation in E20
Stadium LLP.
G2. Reserves
Usable reserves
At the end of the financial year, the Legacy Corporation had negative usable reserves of £41.9m in the
General Fund.
Due to a significant increase in the fair value of the Legacy Corporation’s investment properties, the
Legacy Corporation recognised a net deferred tax charge of £50.4m in 2014/15 — this liability increased
by net £5.1m in 2015/16. The liability will crystallise in future years as and when the Legacy Corporation
recovers the carrying amount of the assets to which it relates through the disposal of its investment
property portfolio.
The Code does not provide guidance on how to treat such a liability within the Statement of Accounts,
therefore the Legacy Corporation is required to revert to International Accounting Standards (IAS)
and account for the liability according to IAS 12 (Income Taxes). Doing so results in the full liability
being charged to the General Fund in the year that it arises, rather than at the time when the asset’s
carrying amount is realised and the related liability crystallises.
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The resulting negative General Fund balance as at 31 March 2016 does not therefore reflect the true
underlying performance of the Legacy Corporation. The following table shows the General Fund balance
with the impact of the deferred tax disclosed separately. The balance before recognition of deferred tax
is £13.5m, which is considered appropriate for the Legacy Corporation’s current and future financial
challenges, excluding deferred tax.
General Fund

Balance as at 1 April (excluding deferred tax)
Movements (excluding deferred tax)
Balance at 31 March before recognition of deferred tax
Deferred tax — balance broughtforward
Deferred tax — movement in year
Balance at 31 March

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(12,869)

(4,945)

(630)

(7,924)

(13,499)

(12,869)

50,385

–

5,051

50,385

41,937

37,516

Unusable reserves
31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(76,142)

(244,911)

10,738

12,182

66

72

(65,338)

(232,657)

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

(244,911)

(154,374)

428

433

(11,741)

(7,191)

11,504

8,070

Revaluation/(impairment) charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

168,578

(91,848)

Balance at 31 March

(76,142)

(244,911)

Capital Adjustment Account
Pensions reserve
Accumulated Absences Account
Balance unusable reserves at 31 March

Capital Adjustment Account

Balance as at 1 April
Charges for depreciation and amortisation
Capital grants and contributions applied
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
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103

London Legacy Development Corporation

Pensions reserve
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Balance as at 1 April

12,182

7,376

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset)

(2,723)

4,079

Reversal of charges relating to retirement benefits

2,263

1,728

Employer’s pension contribution and direct
payments to pensioners payable in the year

(984)

(1,001)

10,738

12,182

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

72

121

(72)

(121)

Amounts accrued at the end of the current year

66

72

Balance at 31 March

66

72

6

49

Balance at 31 March

Accumulated absences reserve

Balance as at 1 April
Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on a accrual basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with the statutory requirements
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G3. Adjustments between accounting basis and funding under regulations
For the year ended 31 March 2016

General
Fund

Capital
Receipts
Reserves

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

Total
usable
reserves

Movement
in unusable
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(427)

–

–

(427)

427

(64,986)

–

–

(64,986)

64,986

–

–

–

–

–

(103,591)

103,591

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation amortisation and impairment of non-current assets
Movements in the market value of investment property
Deferred tax liability on the movements
in the market value of investment properties
Movements in the market value of joint venture
Capital grants and contributions applied
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

(103,591)
8,596

–

–

8,596

(8,596)

(11,504)

–

–

(11,504)

11,504

3,145

(3,145)

–

–

–

3,145

(3,145)

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve
Transfer of cash sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure

3,145

Adjustments involving the pensions reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in year

(2,263)

–

–

(2,263)

2,263

984

–

–

984

(984)

6

–

–

6

(6)

(170,041)

–

–

(170,041)

170,041

Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total adjustments
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For the year ended 31 March 2015

General
Fund

Capital
Receipts
Reserves

Capital
Grants
Unapplied

Total
usable
reserves

Movement
in unusable
reserves

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

£’000

(433)

–

–

(433)

433

215,711

–

–

215,711

(215,711)

–

–

–

–

–

(123,864)

123,864

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account
Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation amortisation and impairment of non-current assets
Movements in the market value of investment property
Deferred tax liability on the movements
in the market value of investment properties
Movements in the market value of joint venture
Capital grants and contributions applied
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute
Net gain/loss on disposal on non-current assets charged
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(123,864)
7,191

–

–

7,191

(7,191)

(8,070)

–

–

(8,070)

8,070

–

–

–

–

–

(1,728)

–

–

(1,728)

1,728

1,001

–

–

1,001

(1,001)

49

–

–

49

(49)

89,857

–

–

89,857

(89,857)

Adjustments involving the pensions reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in year
Adjustments primarily involving the Accumulated Absences Account
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements
Total adjustments
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G4. Cash flow notes
a. Adjustments to net deficit for non-cash movement

Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangibles
Reversal of defined benefit pensions services costs
Increase in interest debtors
Reversal of share of loss or profit on joint venture

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

388

404

40

29

2,263

1,728

–

–

103,591

123,864

Cash payments for employer’s contributions to pension funds

(984)

(1,001)

(Increase) in trade and other debtors

1,691

(1,889)

12,222

(23,230)

64

(46)

5,051

52,821

–

–

64,986

(215,711)

–

(16)

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors
Increase in bad debt provision
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liability
Net gain or loss on non-current assets disposal
Changes in fair value of investment property
Tax paid
Stadium lease premium

(5)

–

189,307

(63,047)

Capital grants credited to the deficit on the provision of services

8,596

(7,191)

Gain/loss on sale of investment property

3,145

–

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets

(23,423)

(37,687)

Investment in joint venture

(90,103)

(110,209)

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets proceeds from sale of land and buildings

3,145

–

Capital grant received and other capital receipts

8,596

2,808

(101,786)

(145,088)

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£’000

£’000

100,942

170,626

(3,016)

(2,267)

Adjustment to net deficit for non-cash movements
Adjust for items included in the net deficit on the provisions
of services that are investing or financing activities

Net cash outflow from investing activities

ACCOUNTS

b. Investing activities

c. Financing activities

Borrowings
Movement on OPTEMS fund
Movement on S106 fund
Net cash flow from financing activities

1,322

1,694

99,248

170,053
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Annual governance statement
Scope of responsibility
The Legacy Corporation is a Mayoral Development
Corporation, established on 1 April 2012,
under the provisions of the Localism Act 2011.
Its aims were defined by the Mayor of London
as follows:
“To promote and deliver physical, social,
economic and environmental regeneration
in the Olympic Park and surrounding area,
in particular by maximising the legacy of the
Olympic and Paralympic Games, by securing
high-quality sustainable development and
investment, ensuring the long-term success
of the facilities and assets within its direct
control and supporting and promoting
the aim of convergence.”
The Legacy Corporation is a functional body
of the GLA, which operates within the overall
legislative and governance framework provided
by the GLA Act 1999 and 2007; the Mayor of
London appoints members to its Board and
allocates its budgets. The Legacy Corporation
became a planning authority within its Mayoral
development area on 1 October 2012.
The Mayor is also able to direct the Legacy
Corporation in the exercise of its functions, and to
delegate functions to it. The Mayor has given the
following delegations, consents and directions:
In July 2014, the Mayor approved a general
consent for the Legacy Corporation to give
financial assistance by way of a grant with a total
lifetime cost up to £150,000 in line with Section
213 and 221 of the Localism Act 2011 and gave
automatic consent to grants funded under
Section 106 agreements, or grants paid from
the Community Infrastructure Levy collected
by the Legacy Corporation for projects or types
of infrastructure contained in the regulation 123
list published by the Legacy Corporation. This
replaced an earlier consent given in 2012.
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In July 2013, the Mayor directed the Legacy
Corporation on the approval of certain
transactions as set out in the London Legacy
Development Corporation Governance Direction.
This set out arrangements for the Mayor to be
consulted on, or approve certain decisions,
activities and larger projects of the Legacy
Corporation and its subsidiaries, over and above
the limited circumstances where Mayoral consent
is required under the Localism Act. It covers
Mayoral approval for such matters as the budgets
and business plans of the Legacy Corporation;
approving major decisions to spend, borrow,
give grants, create subsidiaries and dispose
of land interests; and making appointments
to the Legacy Corporation committees.
In November 2012, the Mayor delegated
to the Legacy Corporation powers to promote
economic development and wealth creation,
social development and the improvement of the
environment. In May 2016, the Mayor delegated
to the Legacy Corporation powers to maintain
and upkeep the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park
(QEOP) and to collect a Fixed Estate Charge
to fund this obligation, and directed LLDC to
use these delegated powers. This complemented
and supplemented the general powers
delegated in 2012.
The Legacy Corporation is responsible for ensuring
that its business is conducted in accordance with
the law and proper standards, and that public
money is safeguarded and properly accounted for,
and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
In discharging this overall responsibility, the
Legacy Corporation is responsible for putting
in place proper arrangements for the governance
of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of
its functions, and which includes arrangements
for the management of risk.
The purpose of the governance framework
The governance framework describes the systems
and processes by which the Legacy Corporation
is directed and controlled, how it is accountable
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to its stakeholders and communities, and how
it monitors the achievement of its strategic
objectives and value for money.
The system of internal control is a significant part
of this framework and is designed to manage risk
to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives
and can therefore only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system
of internal control is based on a continuous process
designed to identify and prioritise risks, to evaluate
the likelihood and potential impact of those
risks being realised, and to mitigate and manage
them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The governance framework has been in place
at the Legacy Corporation for the year ended
31 March 2016 and up to the date of approval
of the Statement of Accounts.
The governance framework
Board and committees
The Legacy Corporation’s board and committees
operate within the governance and openness
framework prescribed by the Local Government
Act 1972. During the year ended 31 March 2016
the Legacy Corporation’s committee structure
was as follows:

Chairman’s Committee
To ensure effective communication and coordination of the Legacy Corporation’s different
committees and to provide advice on specific
matters as requested by the board or Chairman.
Investment Committee
To ensure the efficient and effective discharge
of the Legacy Corporation’s functions, through
investment of public funds and use of assets
and resources.

Regeneration and Communities Committee
To ensure the efficient and effective discharge
of the Legacy Corporation’s functions, through
the advocacy and delivery of regeneration,
community engagement, environmental
sustainability, education and learning
programmes.
Committee members must be members of the
Legacy Corporation’s board, except where the
Mayor of London has approved the appointment
of additional members. He has done so in
relation to the Planning Decisions Committee,
which is comprised of three board members,
five members nominated by the neighbouring
boroughs, and four independent members
appointed following advertisement (there are
currently three independent members serving
on the Committee).
Cultural and Education District Governance
Following a decision by the board in July 2015
the Investment Committee assumed the role
as the lead governance body for the Corporation
in relation to Cultural and Education District
programme to develop a cultural and higher
education district on Queen Elizabeth Olympic
Park and its Terms of Reference were updated
accordingly.
Wider governance for the Cultural and
Education District is in place including the
Cultural and Education District Programme
Board which has oversight of the programme
and senior representation from LLDC, the
Cultural and Education District partners,
the GLA and government.
A Risk and Assurance Board has been
established to provide support to the Cultural
and Education District Programme Board in
executing their duties in relation to the oversight
of Integrated Assurance with an independent
Chair and representatives from LLDC, Cultural
and Education District partners, the GLA and

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Audit Committee
To ensure the efficient and effective discharge
of the Legacy Corporation’s functions, through
the proper administration of the Legacy
Corporation’s financial affairs including but
not limited to the maintenance, preparation and
audit of accounts, internal controls and risk
management, internal and external audit.

Planning Decisions Committee
To enable transparent, efficient and effective
discharge of the Legacy Corporation’s functions
to determine planning applications and to
respond to consultation on applications on
which the Legacy Corporation is a consultee.
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government (represented by the Infrastructure
and Projects Authority).

•	Financial Regulations, which set out
the framework for managing the Legacy
Corporation’s financial affairs; and

Independent assurance (known as “third
line assurance”) for the Cultural and Education
District is provided by RSM Consulting (UK) LLP.
A programme of reviews on key areas of activity
for the programme is in place, reporting to
the Risk and Assurance Board.

•	Procurement Code, which sets out policies in
relation to the proper procurement of goods,
services, supplies and works.

Vision and performance
The Legacy Corporation’s vision, purpose and
strategic objectives are set out in its Ten Year Plan.
The Ten Year Plan is updated annually as part of the
GLA Group’s annual budget and business planning
round, and a revised Ten Year Plan was approved
by the Board in March 2016. In 2015/16 the Legacy
Corporation adopted a Five Year Strategy for the
Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park and surrounding
areas covering the years 2015 to 2020.
Performance against measures and milestones
included in the Ten Year Plan and the Strategy
is reported through quarterly reports to the
Board and quarterly reports to the GLA on
financial and service performance. Financial
performance is also reported through monthly
management accounts.
Standing orders, delegations
and codes of conduct
Key governance documents for the Legacy
Corporation comprise:
•	Standing Orders, which set out arrangements
for the conduct of meetings, recording of
decisions and managing conflicts of interest,
and also include the Members’ Code of
Conduct and Gifts and Hospitality Code;
•	Scheme of Delegations, which sets out
arrangements for delegation of decisions
to committees and officers;
•	Scheme of Planning Delegations, which
sets out how the Legacy Corporation will
discharge some of its town and country
planning functions and responsibilities
through delegation to the Planning Decisions
Committee and planning officers;
•	Planning Code of Conduct, which sets out the
approach of Planning Officers and the Planning
Decisions Committee Members to planning
decision-making;
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These documents have all been in place
throughout 2015/16. Changes to the scheme
of delegations (and consequential amendments
to the Financial Regulations and Standing
Orders) were approved in November 2015 to
appoint Transport for London to be the Legacy
Corporation’s agent and authorised signatory to
execute any contract procured through the GLA
Collaborative Procurement Team. The Board
approved further amendments to the scheme
of delegations in January 2016 to reflect changes
to the signing delegations for specified standard
form of events hire agreements to specified LLDC
officers. The proposal to delegate the authority
to the specified officers in relation to the
authentication of the use of the seal for freehold
and leasehold disposals at Chobham Manor of
values up to £1m, within the approved budget was
approved by the Board in March 2016. The Chief
Executive or the Executive Director of Finance and
Corporate Services would authenticate the use of
the seal for all other disposals. The consequential
amendments to the Financial Regulations and
Standing Orders were made accordingly.
All the above documents are available on the
Legacy Corporation’s website, with the exception
of the procurement code which is being revised.
A staff code of conduct (and other people
management polices) are published on the
Legacy Corporation’s intranet site, and issued
to staff as part of their induction process.
The governance arrangements will continue
to be reviewed and updated to ensure that the
organisation’s structures and decision-making
processes remain appropriate to the Legacy
Corporation’s changing role.
Risk management, fraud and corruption
The Legacy Corporation’s risk management
processes are based on embedding risk
management in all aspects of its work programme

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

and ensuring that programme-wide and project
risks are identified, quantified, mitigated and
monitored effectively. The primary objective is
to have effective strategies in place to control risks
through reducing the likelihood of a risk arising,
reducing the likely impact of a risk should it arise,
or — where possible — eliminating the risk.

and the Cultural and Education District) to
inform contingency management. In 2015/16
the Board approved the LLDC’s risk appetite
statement which sets out the amount of risk that
the Legacy Corporation is prepared to accept,
tolerate, or be exposed to across different
the activities it undertakes.

Risks and issues are managed at various different
levels across the organisation: risks and issues
within a project are managed by project
managers; risks and issues within a directorate
are managed by the relevant executive director
or director; and corporate risks are owned by the
Executive Management Team. Risks are managed
through the Legacy Corporation’s programme and
project management reporting system, Execview.

Management of change
The Legacy Corporation is an organisation
whose role has changed from planning for the
Olympic legacy to the management of the
Park following reopening in April 2014 and the
delivery of development programmes as new
neighbourhoods are developed. A further step
change in the organisation of the Legacy
Corporation has been required to support the
Cultural and Education District programme.
During 2013/14 the Legacy Corporation
commenced a ‘One Organisation’ programme
to develop its culture and values, harmonise terms
and conditions of employment inherited from
predecessor bodies, review its appraisal process
and review pay and grading. Following feedback
from staff the ‘One Organisation’ programme
moved into new areas of focus in 2015/16 with a
continuous improvement programme led by the
Executive Management Team. This work allowed
the Legacy Corporation to become accredited
Investors in People (bronze level) in 2015/16.

Corporate-level risks and issues are identified
through analysing the risk register and considering
any other risks and issues impacting on the Legacy
Corporation. These are agreed by the Executive
Management Team and the risks are summarised
in the Legacy Corporation’s Ten Year Plan. Updates
on corporate risks and issues are reported to the
Board through dashboard reporting and an annual
review and to every Audit Committee meeting.

The Legacy Corporation undertakes quantified
risk assessments on its corporate level risks and
on major project risks (Stadium Transformation

Financial and legal controls compliance
The Legacy Corporation’s financial management
arrangements conform with the governance
requirements of the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
statement on the Role of the Chief Financial
Officer in local government:
•	The Chief Finance Officer of the Legacy
Corporation (designated in accordance with
Section 127 of the Greater London Authority
Act 1999) is Gerry Murphy, the Executive
Director of Finance and Corporate Services
and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.
•	The Chief Finance Officer sits on the Executive
Management Team, and is able to attend all
board and committee meetings. She prepares
the budget and corporate plan, including
leading internal review processes, and is party to
all material business decisions. Financial advice
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The Legacy Corporation has an Anti-Fraud,
Bribery and Corruption Policy and a Whistle
Blowing Policy, and these have been presented
to the Audit Committee (the Anti-Fraud, Bribery
and Corruption Policy was last reviewed by the
Committee in July 2015; the Whistle Blowing
Policy was last reviewed in June 2014). Measures
include processes to prevent and detect fraud.
Preventative controls include the Legacy
Corporation’s policies and procedures, including
senior management authorisation of new
suppliers, separation of functions for raising
and authorising purchase orders and making
payments, and other decision-making,
procurement and accounting processes. Key
detective processes and controls are the systems
for authorisation of accounts payable and
receivable, general ledger journals and payroll
allied to senior management scrutiny of the
monthly management accounts.
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is included on all board papers and sign-off is
required above the thresholds specified in the
Scheme of Delegations. The execution of
contracts and grant agreements is reserved
to the Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer
and any Board member, apart from: specified
Three Mills Studio Agreements and specified
standard form event hire agreements which
have been delegated to senior members of the
Park Operations and Venues team; contracts
procured through the GLA Group Collaborative
Procurement Board which have been delegated
to TfL; where the authentication of the use of
the seal for freehold and leasehold disposals at
Chobham Manor of values up to £1m has been
delegated to specified senior officers in the
Development directorate.
•	The Chief Finance Officer is also responsible
for financial controls, for corporate programme
management, for performance measurement
and for supporting the Audit Committee’s
work (including internal audit).
•	The Chief Finance Officer is supported by a
suitably qualified team which provides support
on budget monitoring, financial and taxation
management, and which includes a CIPFAqualified accountant with significant public
sector experience.
The Legacy Corporation ensures compliance
with relevant laws and regulations through the
activities of an in-house procurement team and
a shared services arrangement with Transport
for London’s (TfL) legal team. This shared services
arrangement came into effect on 1 May 2014.
Legal advice is required for all significant
decisions, whether taken by the Board or under
delegated authority, and is recorded in Board
papers. All contracts entered into by the Legacy
Corporation must also be approved by the TfL
legal team for signing (unless the agreement
is an unamended LLDC standard contract or have
been prepared by external legal advisers) through
approval of the Contact Authorisation Form. Legal
advice is also sought on some Project Initiation
Documents (PIDs) and Business Cases (if the
project is novel, contentious or repercussive);
or not contained within the current approved
Ten Year Plan (i.e. a new project) regarding how
the project approach complies with relevant
legislation, how it is covered in the Legacy
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Corporation’s powers, any other legal implications
and any legal instruments to be entered into as
a result of this project.
Compliance with other legalisation (e.g.
employment or procurement) is ensured by the
working policies, procedures and practice of the
relevant Legacy Corporation team. Policies are
approved by the Executive Management Team
following consultation with the Employee Forum
and available for staff on the Legacy
Corporation’s intranet.
Audit Committee and internal audit
The Audit Committee helps to raise the profile
of internal control and risk management within
the Legacy Corporation through considering
a standing item on internal control and risk
management at each meeting and reporting
back to the Legacy Corporation’s board. It raises
the profile of financial reporting issues within the
organisation through a report at every meeting
from the Executive Director of Finance and
Corporate Services, which reports on key activities
including those relating finance and governance,
and reporting back to the Legacy Corporation’s
board. The Audit Committee also helps to raise
the profile of internal control, risk management
and financial reporting by requesting information
on individual areas of concern and asking the
internal auditors to review particular areas
of risk. Audit Committee meetings are held
in public and the papers are made available on
the Legacy Corporation’s website which helps to
enhance public trust in the Legacy Corporation’s
financial governance.
The Audit Committee is made up of members
of the Legacy Corporation’s board. It includes
members with both public and private sector
experience with expertise in areas including
finance, audit, law and governance.
In April 2015 the Mayor’s Office of Policing and
Crime (MOPAC) commenced work as the Legacy
Corporations Internal Auditors as part of the
Mayor of London’s shared services agenda.
This followed a handover process that MOPAC
have completed with the Legacy Corporation
and the previous internal auditors, Moore
Stephens. The internal auditors work is reported
to, and monitored and reviewed by, the Audit
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Committee. MOPAC assist in the promotion
of good governance through implementation
of the Internal Audit Plan, as approved by the
Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Plan
includes individual audits on activities identified
as areas of risk. When complete the reviews
are reported to the executive and the Audit
Committee. The Legacy Corporation’s progress
against agreed internal audit recommendations
are monitored regularly and reported to the
Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors provide
an annual report summarising their findings for
the year. The box below is their audit opinion,
extracted from the 2015/16 annual report:

•	Finance system follow up (no rating but
findings were that of the 14 actions agreed
in 2014/15 11 had been fully implemented
and 3 were partly implemented).

The LLDC governance framework is clearly
defined and is in line with best practice to meet
statutory requirements. The risk management
framework in use within the LLDC is also based
upon recognised best practice and has a clearly
defined risk appetite. Internal Audit reviews
conducted during the year show that overall
the internal control framework can be assessed
as adequate.

Yellow — adequate: the control framework is
adequate and controls to mitigate key risks are
generally operating effectively, although a
number of controls need to improve to ensure
business objectives are met.

The Head of Internal Audit’s overall opinion
for 2015/16 is that:

Red — no assurance: a control framework is
not in place to mitigate key risks. The business
area is open to abuse, significant error or loss
and/or misappropriation.

LLDC has an adequate internal control
environment and controls to mitigate risks are
generally operating effectively.

• Stadium Readiness (amber — limited assurance)*
•	Information Management and Security
(yellow — adequate assurance)
•	Physical Security (green — substantial assurance)
•	Property management (yellow —
adequate assurance)
• Payroll (green — substantial assurance)
•	CIL and Section 106 (green —
substantial assurance)
•	Commercial arrangements (yellow —
adequate assurance)
•	Board Information (no rating, add commentary
when this is through assurance)

The ratings are defined as follows:
Green — substantial: there is a sound framework
of control operating effectively to mitigate key
risks, which is contributing to the achievement
of business objectives.

Amber — limited: the control framework is
not operating effectively to mitigate key risks.
A number of key controls are absent or are not
being applied to meet business objectives.

Code of Corporate Governance
The Legacy Corporation’s code of corporate
governance sets out the Legacy Corporation’s
approach to openness, accountability and
effective governance. It is based around the
six principles identified in “Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government” by CIPFA and
the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives
(SOLACE) as the essential criteria for good
governance. It was presented to the Audit
Committee in April 2015 and it was proposed
that performance against the code would be
evaluated on an annual basis and included
in the Annual Governance Statement.
Overall, the Legacy Corporation performs well
against the code. Work undertaken during
2015/16 to address the identified areas for
improvement includes:
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The full audits carried out as part of the 2015/16
Internal Audit plan are listed below with
assurance ratings:

*	This review was a snapshot a point in time to
assess Stadium readiness for the Summer 2015
events. Despite the limited assurance provided
by this review, ultimately the Stadium hosted
these events successfully and on schedule.

•	completing an evaluation of the effectiveness
of the Board and committees (see later section)
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•	updating the Procurement Code and publishing
it on the website
•	providing training to finance staff on fraud
and whistle blowing.
The areas for further work identified for the next
financial year include:
•	developing an induction programme for new
board member
•	updating the standing orders to reflect latest
openness and transparency guidance and
recent internal audit recommendations
• providing fraud training to budget holders.
Greater London Authority (GLA)
Corporate Governance
The Legacy Corporation is a functional body of
the GLA and complies with its annual budgeting
process, engages with the London Assembly
and its committees as required and also fulfils
the requirements of any Mayoral directions given.
There is also an ongoing dialogue with the
Mayor’s office to ensure that the activities of
the Legacy Corporation are aligned with the
Mayor’s general policy framework. The Legacy
Corporation also complies with the requirements
of the GLA Group Corporate Governance
Framework Agreement relating to codes of
conduct, complaints procedures and the
registration and declaration of interests, gifts
and hospitality. The Legacy Corporation is not
currently covered by this agreement, which is
being revised by the GLA and which will then,
subject to the views and decision of the Legacy
Corporation’s board, formally incorporate the
Legacy Corporation within its scope.
Whistleblowing and complaints
The Legacy Corporation’s Whistleblowing Policy
is on its website, available for all staff setting out
how employees can report concerns. The Policy
includes provision for staff members to report
concerns directly to the Chair of the Audit
Committee if necessary. The Audit Committee
last reviewed the policy in June 2014.
The Legacy Corporation’s Complaints Policy
was formally adopted and added to the website
in May 2013. It sets out how the Legacy
Corporation handles complaints, the different
stages of the procedure, and how complaints can
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be made to the Local Government Ombudsman
if the complainant is not satisfied with Legacy
Corporation’s response. This includes a
dedicated email address to receive complaints.
Meeting development needs
of members and senior staff
The Legacy Corporation’s people development
processes are incorporated into its performance
management framework for staff, which were
revised as part of the One Organisation
programme mentioned under the Managing
Change section above. Board members are
offered tailored induction meetings, and
specialist induction was provided to Planning
Committee members. Staff training has
addressed corporate governance and approval
issues through presentations at team meetings
across the organisation and through a revised
or updated induction.
Community engagement and partnership
The Legacy Corporation’s Community and Business
Engagement Team manages a programme of
active engagement with local people, through
participation in relevant local community forums,
as well as through dedicated consultation on
the legacy masterplan, and the constituent
development proposals.
The Legacy Corporation manages a Park Hotline
which enables local people to raise issues relating
to construction activities (lorry movements,
dust, noise) and events (noise, temporary road
or Park closures) 24 hours a day as well as answer
general customer service queries. The hotline is
also where members of the public can book the
Park mobility service vehicles.
The Legacy Corporation’s website and messaging
was regularly updated during the year to ensure
that the Park, venues and related services
remained fully accessible to the local community
and wider audience.
During the course of the financial year, the Legacy
Corporation has completed the development
of the Local Plan and successfully introduced
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). These
have been prepared in accordance with the
Legacy Corporation Statement of Community
Involvement (2012), which sets out publicly

2015–2016 Annual Report and Accounts

how it will go about planning related consultation
and engagement. The Local Plan went through
four formal stages of public consultation in
addition to less formal meetings, public meetings
and workshops, which included two rounds
of public consultation in 2013/14. In 2014/15,
there was public consultation on the ‘Publication
Local Plan’ from August 2014 to October 2014.
Following examination by an independent
planning inspector appointed by the Secretary
of State, there was a further public consultation in
April and May 2015 on the modifications proposed
to the Local Plan during the examination process.
The Local Plan was approved by the Board in
July 2015 and monitoring commenced; work on
area and topic based Supplementary Planning
Documents commenced in 2015/16 ahead of
public consultation in 2016/17, the first SPD,
relating to Carbon Offset, was approved by the
Board in March 2016. Public consultation on the
final Draft CIL Charging Schedule took place during
May and June 2014. This followed earlier public
consultation during 2013. The CIL was adopted
by the Board in January 2015 and the charging
schedule came into force in April 2015.
The Legacy Corporation has partnership
arrangements in place with a number of bodies,
including neighbouring local authorities and
landowners, the Lee Valley Regional Park
Authority and other stakeholders and partners.
These address issues from engagement on Park
operations and events, to discussion of local
job brokerage, sports participation and
regeneration schemes.

A number of immediate actions and longer-term
recommendations have been identified to address

The findings and recommendations were
discussed by the Chairman’s Committee and
the board in March 2016.
Significant governance issues
Significant governance challenges for the
Legacy Corporation in the year ahead are set
out below together with the proposed
management response:
Issue: The LLDC board is appointed by the
Mayor and currently has 13 Members, including
the elected Mayors of the London Boroughs of
Hackney, Newham, and Tower Hamlets and the
leader of Waltham Forest Council. Apart from
the elected Members and the Chairman, the
appointments of the other board members are
due to end in December 2016.
Proposed response: Succession planning
to identify the skills required that will enable
the board to operate effectively and that reflect
the future priorities and business areas of the
Legacy Corporation. The outcomes of this
succession planning will support the next Mayor
with recruiting and appointing new Members.
Issue: The need to achieve more with less
financially, and to ensure a firm financial footing
for future years.
Proposed response: Ten Year Plan approved by
Board and Mayor of London, which sets out the
medium-term funding challenges.
Issue: The need to manage the risks to the
successful delivery of the Cultural and Education
District and ensure that there is effective
stakeholder engagement at all levels.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Board effectiveness review
In line with good corporate governance practice,
a Board effectiveness review was undertaken
during 2015/16. The review was undertaken
internally following discussion with the
Chairman’s Committee. Overall, the review
highlighted positive views about the Board’s
composition and performance, support processes,
the role of the Chairman and the relationship
with the CEO. There were similar positive findings
from the Committee review. Board and the
executive also agreed that on the whole that
the Committees were working well.

the findings of the review. The immediate actions
related to: addressing issues with the quality and
level of detail of Board and Committee papers;
enabling Board members to raise issues for the
agenda; providing more information on the
forward plan of agenda items for Committee
meetings and briefings; providing a calendar
of site visits and planning related training; and
reviewing the format of the Planning Decisions
Committee. The longer-term recommendations
related to future Board composition, induction
and training for new members and increased
focus on strategic issues.
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Proposed response: Integrated assurance
framework in place which follows recognised
best practice of the three lines of defence model
to provide assurance to funders, partners and
the Legacy Corporation board that the risks to
the programme are being successfully managed.
Governance structures in place include partners
and funders as well as a stakeholder forum for
wider engagement. Third line assurance in
place for the Cultural and Education District,
the first review, which was on the programme’s
risk management processes, commenced in
April 2016.
Issue: The need to develop staff and corporate
culture to respond to a changing role.
Proposed response: One Organisation
continuous improvement action plan continues
into phase 2.
Issue: The need to continue to develop effective
joint working with other parts of the GLA Group,
including through shared services.
Proposed response: Effective shared service
arrangements already in place for legal, treasury
management and secretariat services. In 2015/16
shared services extended to include internal audit
provision (through MOPAC) insurance services
(with TfL) and sharing some elements of
procurement with the GLA.
Issue: The need to continue developing
capability and enhancing the internal control
environment in relation to finance.
Proposed response: Financial improvement plan
implemented. Finance organisation restructured.
New finance system procured and implemented.
Budgeting and business planning process
reviewed and enhanced.
Issue: Ensuring that the Legacy Corporation
has the right skills to deliver its objectives as its
purpose evolves.
Proposed response: Continued workforce
planning and reviews of staff and resourcing.
The Legacy Corporation will address these and
other issues that arise, in order to enhance its
governance arrangements, and will keep these
under review to ensure fitness for function.
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Significant changes in the board
On 5 May 2015, the Mayor of London, Boris
Johnson, resigned as Chairman and a member
of the Legacy Corporation Board with immediate
effect. He subsequently wrote to the Chairman
of the London Assembly to give formal notice
of his intention to appoint Neale Coleman, the
then Deputy Chairman, to be the Chairman of
the Legacy Corporation Board, subject to a
confirmatory hearing as provided for under the
Localism Act 2011. Neale Coleman, in his capacity
as Deputy Chairman and in line with the Standing
Orders, fulfilled the role of Chairman until the
Mayor appointed a new Chairman of the Legacy
Corporation. Following the confirmatory hearing,
the Mayor confirmed the appointment of Neale
Coleman as Chairman on 2 June 2015. In line with
the Standing Orders, he subsequently appointed
David Edmonds, the Chair of the Investment
Committee as the Deputy Chairman in June 2015.
On 17 September 2015 Neale Coleman resigned
as Chairman of the Legacy Corporation Board.
The Mayor of London subsequently wrote to the
Chairman of the London Assembly to give formal
notice of his intention to appoint David Edmonds,
the then Deputy Chairman, to be the Chairman
of the Legacy Corporation Board, subject to a
confirmatory hearing as provided for under the
Localism Act 2011. Following the confirmatory
hearing, the Mayor confirmed the appointment of
David Edmonds as Chairman on 14 October 2015.
In line with the Standing Orders, he subsequently
appointed Philip Lewis, the Chair of the Planning
Decisions Committee, as the Deputy Chairman
in October 2015.
On 23 April 2015, Lutfur Rahman ceased to be the
Mayor of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets.
This automatically created a vacancy on the
Legacy Corporation Board (as per the paragraph
2 of schedule 21 of the Localism Act 2011). John
Biggs, the newly elected Mayor of Tower Hamlets
was appointed by the Mayor of London to the
Legacy Corporation Board on 9 July 2015.
During 2015/16 two members of the Board
resigned: David Ross whose appointment came
to an end at the end of November 2015; and Jayne
McGivern whose service came to an end at the
end of January 2016.
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David Goldstone
Chief Executive
29 July 2016

David Edmonds
Chairman
29 July 2016
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
Accruals basis
The accruals principle is that income is recorded
when it is earned rather than when it is received,
and expenses are recorded when goods or
services are received rather than when the
payment is made.
Actuarial gains and losses
Actuaries assess financial and non-financial
information provided by the Legacy Corporation
to project levels of future pension fund
requirements. Changes in actuarial deficits
or surpluses can arise leading to a loss or
gain because:
•	events have not coincided with the actuarial
assumptions made for the last valuation;
and/or
• the actuarial assumptions have changed.
Balances
The balances of the Legacy Corporation
represent the accumulated surplus of income
over expenditure on any of the funds.
Capital Adjustment Account
The account accumulates (on the debit side)
the write-down of the historical cost of fixed
assets as they are consumed by depreciation
and impairments or written off on disposal.
It accumulates (on the credit side) the resources
that have been set aside to finance capital
expenditure. The same process applies to capital
expenditure that is only capital by statutory
definition (deferred charges). The balance on
the account thus represents timing differences
between the amount of the historical cost of
fixed assets that has been consumed and the
amount that has been financed in accordance
with statutory requirements.
Capital expenditure
This is expenditure on the acquisition of
a fixed asset, or expenditure, which adds to,
and not merely maintains, the value of an
existing fixed asset.
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Capital financing charges
This is the annual charge to the revenue account
in respect of interest and principal repayments
and payments of borrowed money, together
with leasing rentals.
Capital receipts
Income received from the sale of land or other
capital assets, a proportion of which may be
used to finance new capital expenditure, subject
to the provisions contained within the Local
Government Act 2003.
Carrying amount
The balance sheet value recorded of either
an asset or a liability.
Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
CIPFA is the leading professional accountancy
body for public services.
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR)
CSR is the public expenditure planning process
introduced by the government in 1997. The
CSR in October 2010 set the parameters for
public spending for the four years from
2011/12 to 2014/15.
Contingent liabilities or assets
These are amounts potentially due to or
from individuals or organisations which may
arise in the future but which at this time
cannot be determined accurately, and for which
provision has not been made in the Legacy
Corporation’s accounts.
Creditors
Amounts owed by the Legacy Corporation for
work done, goods received or services rendered,
for which payment has not been made at the
date of the balance sheet.
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Current service cost
Current service cost is the increase in the present
value of a defined benefit pension scheme’s
liabilities expected to arise from employee
service in the current period, i.e. the ultimate
pension benefits ‘earned’ by employees in
the current year’s employment.

Exceptional items
Material items deriving from events or
transactions that fall within the ordinary activities
of the Legacy Corporation, but which need to
be separately disclosed by virtue of their size
and/or incidence to give a fair presentation
of the accounts.

Curtailment
Curtailments will show the cost of the early
payment of pension benefits if any employee
has been made redundant in the previous
financial year.

External audit
The independent examination of the activities
and accounts of local authorities to ensure the
accounts have been prepared in accordance with
legislative requirements and proper practices,
and to ensure the Legacy Corporation has made
proper arrangements to secure value for money
in its use of resources.

Debtors
These are sums of money due to the Legacy
Corporation that have not been received at the
date of the balance sheet.
Defined benefit scheme
This is a pension or other retirement benefit
scheme other than a defined contribution
scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the
benefits independently of the contributions
payable and the benefits are not directly related
to the investments of the scheme. The scheme
may be funded or unfunded (including
notionally funded).
Defined contribution scheme
A defined contribution scheme is a pension
or other retirement benefit scheme into which
an employer pays regular contributions as an
amount or as a percentage of pay and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the scheme does not have
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

Depreciation
This is the measure of the wearing out,
consumption, or other reduction in the useful
economic life of a fixed asset.

Fair value
Fair value is the price at which an asset could
be exchanged in an arm’s length transaction,
less any grants receivable towards the purchase
or use of the asset.
Finance lease
A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee.
Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another. The term ‘financial instrument’ covers
both financial assets and financial liabilities
and includes both the most straightforward
financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, and the most
complex ones such as derivatives and
embedded derivatives.
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Department for Communities
and Local Government (DCLG)
A department of central government with
an overriding responsibility for determining
the allocation of general resources to
local authorities.

Expenditure
This is amounts paid by the Legacy Corporation
for goods received or services rendered of
either a capital or revenue nature. This does
not necessarily involve a cash payment since
expenditure is deemed to have been incurred
once the goods or services have been received
even if they have not been paid for.
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Financial regulations
These are the written code of procedures
approved by the Legacy Corporation, intended
to provide a framework for proper financial
management. Financial regulations usually set
out rules on accounting, audit, administrative
and budgeting procedures.
Fixed assets
Assets that yield benefits to the Legacy
Corporation and the services it provides for
a period of more than one year. Examples
include land, buildings and vehicles.
General Fund
This is the main revenue fund of the Legacy
Corporation and includes the net cost of all
services financed by government and other
trading income.
Impairment
A reduction in the value of a fixed asset below
its value brought forward in the balance sheet.
Examples of factors which may cause such
a reduction in value include general price
decreases, a significant decline in a fixed asset’s
market value and evidence of obsolescence
or physical damage to the asset.
Income
These are amounts due to the Legacy
Corporation for goods supplied or services
rendered of either a capital or a revenue nature.
This does not necessarily involve a cash payment.
Income is deemed to have been earned once
the goods or services have been supplied even
if the payment has not been received (in which
case the recipient is a debtor to the Legacy
Corporation).
Intangible fixed assets
These are fixed assets that do not have physical
substance but are identifiable and controlled
by the Legacy Corporation. Examples include
software, licenses and patents.

International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS)
Defined accounting standards that must be
applied by all reporting entities to all financial
statements in order to provide a true and fair
view of the entity’s financial position, and
a standardised method of comparison with
financial statements of the other entities.
Leasing costs
This is where a rental is paid for the use of an
asset for a specified period of time. Two forms
of lease exist: finance leases and operating leases.
Liabilities
These are amounts due to individuals or
organisations which will have to be paid at
some time in the future. Current liabilities are
usually payable within one year of the balance
sheet date.
Net Realisable Value (NRV)
NRV is the open market value of the asset in
its existing use (or open market value in the case
of non-operational assets) less the expenses to
be incurred in realising the asset.
Operating lease
This is a type of lease, usually of computer
equipment, office equipment, furniture, etc
where the balance of risks and rewards of
holding the asset remains with the lessor.
The asset remains the property of the lessor
and the lease costs are revenue expenditure
to the Legacy Corporation.
Prior period adjustments
These are material adjustments which are
applicable to an earlier period arising from
changes in accounting policies or for the
correction of fundamental errors.
Provisions
Amounts set aside to meet liabilities or losses
which it is anticipated will be incurred but
where the amount and/or the timing of such
costs is uncertain.
Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)
An arm of central government which is the major
provider of loans to finance long-term funding
requirements for local authorities.
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Related parties
Related parties are central government, other
local authorities, subsidiary and associated
companies, Members and all Executive
Management Team members. For individuals
identified as related parties, the following are
also presumed to be related parties:
•	members of the close family,
or the same household, and
•	partnerships, companies, trusts or other
entities in which the individual, or member
of their close family or the same household,
has a controlling interest.
Reporting standards
The Code of Practice prescribes the accounting
treatment and disclosures for all normal
transactions of a local authority. It is based
on International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), International Standards (IAS) and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) plus UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS).
Reserves
Amounts set aside for general contingencies,
to provide working balances or earmarked
to specific future expenditure.
Revaluation reserve
The reserve records the accumulated gains on
the fixed assets held by the Legacy Corporation
arising from increases in value as a result of
inflation or other factors (to the extent that these
gains have not been consumed by subsequent
downward movements in value).

Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP)
Prepared and published by CIPFA, the Service
Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) replaced
the previous Best Value Accounting Code
of Practice (BVACOP). It is reviewed annually
to ensure that it develops in line with the needs
of modern local government, transparency,
best value and public services reform. SeRCOP
establishes proper practices with regard to
consistent financial reporting for services and in
England and Wales, it is given legislative backing
by regulations which identify the accounting
practices it propounds as proper practices
under the Local Government Act 2003.
Treasury management
This is the process by which the Legacy
Corporation controls its cash flow and its
borrowing and lending activities.
Treasury Management Strategy (TMS)
A strategy prepared with regard to legislative
and CIPFA requirements setting out the
framework for treasury management activity
for the Legacy Corporation.
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Revenue expenditure
Expenditure incurred on the day-to-day running
of the Legacy Corporation. This mainly includes
employee costs, general running expenses
and capital financing costs.

Revenue Expenditure Funded
from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)
Expenditure incurred during the year that
may be capitalised under statutory provision
but that does not result in the creation of
a non-current asset that has been charged
as expenditure to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.
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